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OVERVIEW

Introduction
Citigroup operates, for management reporting pses, via two
primary business segments: Citicorp, consistinG oft i 6 s
Regional Consumer Bankitoyisinesses andstitutional
Clients Group and Citi Holdings, consisting & i t Bro&esage
and Asset ManagemeandLocal Consumer Lending
businesses, araiSpecial Asset PoolThere is alsa third
segmentCorporate/Other For a further description of the
business segments and the products and services they provide,
see ACitigroup Segmentso bel ow, AManagement 6s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Cortdi on and Results of Operationso
and Note3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Throughout thi sf Ciedpriodd tA,t hfieCi t i gr oup o0
C o mp arefer to Citigroup Inc. and its consolidated

subsidiaries.
This Quarterly Report on Form 4D should be reauh
conjunction with Citigr&fopds Annual Report on Form 10

the year ended December 31, 202010 Annual Report on
Form 10K). Additionalinformation about Citigroup is available
on t he c¢ompa mwywcitigravgdom s iCti ¢ i gtr oup 6 s
recent annualeports on Form &, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current reports on Formkg, as well as its other filings
with the SEC are available free of charge through the
compaWegssite by clicking on the fAlnvestorso page and
sel ecting A AIhéSE®BUED siealsa confais 0 T
periodic and curremeports, proxy and information statements,
and dher information regarding Citit www.sec.gov
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior per
financial statements to conformtotheeumt per i odo s
presentation.
Within this Form 16Q, please refer to thables of contents
onpages2and0f or page references to Management6s
Discussion and Analysisf Financial Condition and Results of
Operationsand Notes to Con#idated Financial Statements,
respectively.
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As described above, Citigroup is managed pursuant to the following segments:

CITIGROUP ISEGMENTS

Citicorp

Regional
Consumer
Banking

Institutional
Clients
Group

- Retail banking,
local commercial
banking and
branchbased
financial advisors
in North America,
EMEA, Latin
America and Asia;
Residential real
estate

- Asset management
in Latin America

- Citi-branded
cardsin North
America, EMEA,
Latin America and
Asia

0 Securities and
Banking
- Investment
banking
- Debt andequity
markets(including
prime brokerage)
- Lending
- Private equity
- Hedge funds
- Real estate
- Structuredproducts
- Private Bank
- Equity and fixed
income research
0 Transaction Serviceq
- Treasury andrade
solutions
- Securities and fun
services

The following are the four regions in which Citigroup operates. The regional results are fully reflected in the segment

results above

i : Corporate/
Citi Holdings
g Other
0 Brokerage and Asse| - Treasury
Management - Operations and
- Primarily includes technology

investment in and
associated earning
from Morgan
Stanley Smith
Barney joint
venture
- Retail alternative
investments
0 Local Consumer
Lending
- Consumer finance
lending: residential
and commercialgal
estate; auto, persol
and student loans;
and consumer
branch lending
- Retail partner cards
- Investment in
Primerica Financial
Services
- Certain internationg
consumer lending
(including Western
Europe retail
banking and cards)
0 Special Asset Pool
- Certain institutional
and consumer bani
portfolios

- Global staff functiong
and other corporate
expenses

- Discontinued
operations

CITIGROUP REGIONS ™
|

North
America

Europe,
Middle East
and Africa

(EMEA)

Latin America

Asia

(1) Asiaincludes Japar,atin Americaincludes Mexico, antllorth Americacomprise the U.S., Canada and Puerto Rico.
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4



MANAGEMENTO6S DI SCUSSI ON
OF OPERATIONS

FIRST QUARTER 2011
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Citigroup
Citigroup reported first quartef 2011 net income of $3.0
billion, or $0.10 pediluted shareCi t i gincormep 6 s
declined $1.4 billion from the first quartef 2010, but more
than doubledrom the prior quarter

Citigroup revenueset of interest expensegre $19.7
billion, down $5.7 billion or 22%,from the first quarteof
2010. Net interest revenues of $12.2 billion were 16% lower
than theprior-year periodlargely due to declining loan
balances iLocal Consumer Lendingithin Citi Holdings
Net interest revenues also included a $245 milliortaxe
chargeduring the fir$ quarter 20110 increase reserves
related to customer refunds in Japan Consumer Finance. Non
interest revenues were $7.5 billion, down 31% frompther-
year periodprincipally driven by loweGecurities and
Bankingrevenues, negativaedit valuatioradjustments
(CVA), anda $709 millionnet charge resulting from the
transferof certain assetis the Special Asset Podlom held
tomaturity to t &@idHoldiggdaSpexsialt s (
Asset Po@ Reclassification of HTM Securities to Trading
and Notellto the Consolidated Financial Statements)

Citicorp

Citicorp net income of $4.1 billion declined 19% from the
prior-year periogdbutwas up 69% from the prior quarter.
Yearoveryear, lower revenues and increased expenses were

AND ANALYSI S OF FI NANCI

decrease@2%yearoveryear largely due to declines in
revenues fromates and currencies and credit aeduritized
products, andauity markets revenues were 9% lower mainly
driven by lower trading reanues related to principal positions
Investmenbanking revenues were down 19% from the prior
year period, primarily reflecting lower revenues from
municipal and investment grade debt underwriting.
Transaction Service®venues were $2.6 billion, up 5%
from theprior-year perioddriven by growth in Latin America
and Asia. Average deposits and other customer liabilities
grew 11%yearoveryearto $355 billion, with growth in
every region. Strong growth in business volumes was
partially offset by contiued spread compression.
Citicorp end of period loans increased 198&roveryear
to $418 billion, with 6% growth in consumer loans and 16%
growth in corporate loans.

Citi Holdings

Citi Holdings net loss of $608 million was 31% less than the

reelass ofs886 million in the first quartesf 201Q and down

40% from the net loss of $1.0 billion in the prior quaréesr

continued improvement in credit costs and lower expenses

more than offsethe decline in revenuess discussed below
Citi Holdings revenuedeclined 50% to $3.3 billiofrom

the prioryear period. Net interest revenues declined 40%

yearoveryearto $2.6 billion, largely driven by lower loan

balances irLocal Consumer Lendingnd the higher reserve

partiallyoffet by i mprovement i n cr ellidtelatedbtscustomer @furtds ic Ja@opsiireer Finance

international operations accounted for 72% of first quarter
2011 net income.

Citicorp revenues were $16.5 billion, down $2.0 billion
11%,from the first quarteof 2010. Net interest revenues of
$9.5 billion declined 4% from the prigrear period,
principally driven by North Americ®egional Consumer
BankingandSecurities and BankingNoninterest revenues
declined 19% to $7.0 billion, largely due to the decline in
Securities and Bankinggvenues, includig negative CVA.

Regional Consumer Bankimgvenues of $7.9 billion were
2% loweryearoveryear, mostly due to lower cards balances
in North America, the impact dfhe Credit Card
Accountability Responsibility and Disclosufet (CARD
Act), and continuedpread compression in Asia and Latin
America Average retail banking loans increased 1y@ar
overyearto $121.4 billion and aerage deposits increased 6%
to $307.0 billionbothdriven by Latin America and Asia
Citi-branded cards average loans dexdi?%yearoveryear
to $110.3 billion, as growth in Latin America and Asias
offset by lower balances in North America. Cards purchase
sales grew 8% from the priyear period to $64.9 billion, and
international investment sales increased 5% to $28idnbi

Securities and Bankingevenues declined 25Ygarover
year, driven principally by lowerevenues iniked income
marketsandCVA of negative$229 millionin the current
guarter(compared to positive $285 million in tipeior-year
period). Excluding CVA fixedincomemarkets revenues

5

during the current quartemNoninterest revenues declined
70% to $653 million from the prieyear periodreflecting the
$709 million net preax charge related to the asset transfer in
Special Asset Poglower positive marks on subprémelated
direct exposures, and a repurchase reserve build of $122
million related to North America residential real estate

Local Consumer Lendingartially offset by gains on private
equity investments.

Citi Holdings assets declined 33% from thetfgaarterof
2010 to $337 billion at the end of the first quadé2011. The
decline reflected $106 billion in asset sales and business
dispositions$49 billion in net ruroff and amortizationand
$10 billion in net cost of credit and net asset marks
Sequentially, Citi Holdings assets declined 6% from $359
billion in the fourth quarteof 2010. At the end of the first
quarterof 2011,Citi Holdings assets comprised approximately
17% of total CitigroupGAAP asset&and 31% of riskweighted
assets

CITIGROUPT 2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@



Credit Costs Capital and Loan Loss Reserve Positions
Citigroup total provisions for credit losses and for benefitisand Ci t i gr oupds
its Tier 1 Common ratio wakl.3%.

Citigroupo6s

claims of $3.2 billion declined $5.4 billior 63%,from the
prior-year period Net credit losses of $6.3 billion were down

Ti

er 1

tot al

C a pend,aad r

al

owance

$2.1 billion, or 25%,from the first quarteof 2010. Consumer billion at quarterend, or 5.79%of total loans, down from

net credit losses declined $2.6 billjmr 32%,to $5.4 billion,

$48.7 billion, or 6.80%, in thprior-year period Thedecline

driven by continued improvement in credit in North America in the total allowance for loan lossedlected asset sales,

Citi-branded cards in Citicorp, aneltail partneicards and

residential real estate lending in Citi Holdings. Caogbe net
credit losses increased $485 million to $849 miljearover
year, primarily due to higher cost of loan sales as well as

had previously been established and were released in the

lower nan-accrual loans, and overall improvementhie credit
quality of theloan portfolio.

The Consumer allowance for loan losses was $32.7 bijllion
or 7.47% of total Consumer loas, at quartetend,compared
losses from loans to specific counterparties for which reserves  to $41.4billion, or 7.84% at March 31, 20Q.

Citi gr cacqudldoans af $14.8 billion declined

cument quarter. 48% from theprior-year periodAt the end of the first quarter
The net release of allowance for loan losses and unfunded  of 2011, he allowance for loan losses was 247% of-non

lending commitments was $3.3 billiamthe first quarteof accrual loans.
2011 compared to $53 million in the first quarte#r2010.

The$2.0 billionnetConsumer reserve release was mainly

driven byretail partneicards and North America Gitiranded

cards. The1.4 billionnetCorporate reserve release reflected

releases for the overall portfolio, as credit trends continued to

improve, as well as the release of previously established

reservedor specific loans that offset chargéfs taken in the

current quarter.

Operating Expenses

Citigroup expenses increased $808 million7%, yearover

yearto $12.3 billion, reflecting higher legal and related costs,
the impact of foreign exchangadinflation, continued

investment spending and increased business volumes, partially
offset by a decline in Citi Holdings as well as productivity
saves across the firm.

Citicorp expenses of $9.6 billion grew 12% from the prior
yearperiod More than half ofhe increase in Citicorp
expenses was due to higher investment spending, with the
remainder roughly split between the impact of foreign
exchangen the translation of local currency results into U.S.
dollars for reporting purposes (as used throughoufis
10-Q, FX translation and inflation and higher legal and
related costsHigher expenses from increased business
volumes wergyenerallyoffset by continued productivity
saves.

Citi Holdings expenses were down 23#aroveryearto
$2.0 billion, prncipally due to the continued decline in assets
and therefore lower operating caosts

Citigroup continues to expeeariability in its operating
expenses during the remaining quarters of 2011@mtinue
investing in Citicorp wHe rationalizing CitiHoldings.

Certain expenses, particularly legal costs and the impact of
foreign exchangewill remain difficult to predict.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINA NCIAL DATA

Citigroup Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
First Quarter

In millions of dollars, except peshare amounts, ratios and direct staff 2011 2010 % Chanae

Net interest revenue $ 12,224 $ 14,561 (16)%

Norrinterest reenue 7,502 10,860 (31

Revenues, net of interest expense $ 19,726 $ 25421 (22%

Operating expenses 12,326 11,518 7

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims 3,184 8,618 (63)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 4,216 $ 5,285 (20)%

Income taxes 1,185 1,036 14

Income from continuing operations $ 3,031 $ 4,249 (29)%

Income from discontinued operations, net of taxe® 40 211 (81)

Net income before attribution of noncontrolling interests $ 3,071 $ 4,460 (31)%

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 72 32 NM

Citigroupds net i ncome $ 2999 $ 4428 (32)%

Less:Preferred dividendBasic $ 4 $ 0

Less:Dividends andindistributecearning allocated to participating securities,

applicable to Basic EPS 35 28
Income allocated to unrestricted common shareholders for basic EPS $ 2960 $ 4,400 (33)%
Add: Incremental dividends anahdistributedearnings allocated to participating
securities, applicable to Diluted EPS 1 d

Income allocated to unrestricted common shareholders for diluted EPS $ 2961 $ 4,400 (33)%

Earnings per share

Basic

Income from continuing operations $ 0.10 $ 0.15 (33)%

Net income 0.10 0.15 (33)

Diluted

Income from continuing operations $ 0.10 $ 0.14 (29)%

Net income 0.10 0.15 (33)

At March 3L

Total assets $1,947,815 $2,002,213 3)%

Total deposits 865,863 827,914 5

Longterm deb 376,541 439,274 14)

Mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary tr(istduded in longterm debt) 17,940 21,682 a7)

Common stockhol dersd equity 170,725 151,109 13

Total stockholdersd equity 171,037 151,421 13

Direct staff(in thousands) 260 263 1)

Ratios:

Return oraverage o mmon st ockPol dersd equity 7.3% 12.0%

Returnoraveragg ot al st ock?hol dersoé equity 7.3 12.0

Tier 1 Commof? 11.34% 9.11%

Tier 1 Capital 13.%6 11.28

Total Capital 16.8 14.88

Leverage? 7.00 6.16

Common stockholdersd equity to asset 8.76% 7.5%%

Total stockholdersd equity to assets 8.78 7.56

Book value per common share $ 5.85 $ 5.28

Tangible book value per sh&te $ 469 $  4.09

Ratio of earnings to fixed chges and preferred stock dividends 1.70x 1.82x

(1) Discontinued operatiormimarilyreflecst he sal e of Ni kko Cordial Securities, the sale of Cit
equipment finance unit to General &fgc, and the announced sale of the Bgmking PLCcredit cardbusinessSee Note? to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(2) Thereturnon average common stockholdersd equity is cal caiMeartaegde ucsa mngo m estt a cnk
equity. The return on total stockholdersdé equity is calculated using n

(3) As defined by the banking regulators, the Tier 1 Common ratio represents Tier 1 Capital lesaigumifyetual preferred stock, qualifying noncontrolling

4)

interests in subsidiaries and qualifying mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts divideddighisid assets.
The Leverage ratio represents Tier 1 Capital divided by adjastdge total assets.
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(5) Tangible book value per share is a f®AAP financial measure for SEC purposes. &tditionalinformation anda reconciliation of this measure to the most
directly comparabl e GAAP measud épitalReseurcdsCTapigt &l eR€Esmmpoe &qandybi geli dwt y
NM Not meaningful

SEGMENT, BUSINESS AND PRODUCTS INCOME (LOSS) AND REVENUES

The following tables show the income (loss) and revenues for Citigroup on a segment, business and product view:

CITIGROUP INCOME (LOSS)
First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Income (loss) from continuing operations
CITICORP
Regional Consumer Banking
North America $ 551 $ 15 NM
EMEA 49 24 NM
Latin America 484 367 32%
Asia 461 567 (19)
Total $1,545 $ 973 5%
Securities and Banking
North America $ 458 $1,422 (68)%0
EMEA 765 1,021 (25
Latin America 272 269 1
Asia 210 469 (55)
Total $1,705 $3,181 (46)%
Transaction Services
North America $ 113 $ 161 (30)%
EMEA 278 303 (8)
Latin America 170 152 12
Asia 284 319 (11)
Total $ 845 $ 935 (10%
Institutional Clients Group $2,550 $4,116 (38)%
Total Citicorp $4,095 $5,089 (20)%
CITI HOLDINGS
Brokerage and Asset Management $ (10) $ 76 NM
Local Consumer Lading (599) (1,829) 67%
Special Asset Pool 62 878 (93)
Total Citi Holdings $ (547) $ (875) 37%
Corporate/Other $ (517) $ 35 NM
Income from continuing operations $3,031 $4,249 (29)%
Discontinued operations $ 40 $ 211 NM
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 72 32 NM
Citigroupds net i ncome $2,999 $4,428 (32)%

NM Not meaningful
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CITIGROUP REVENUES

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
CITICORP
Regional Consumer Banking
North America $ 3,334 $ 3,801 (12)%
EMEA 398 405 %))
Latin America 2,309 2,076 11
Asia 1,901 1,800 6
Total $ 7,942 $ 8,082 2%
Securities and Banking
North America $ 2,328 $ 3,553 (39%
EMEA 2,059 2,515 (18)
Latin America 582 607 4)
Asia 1,043 1,328 (21
Total $ 6,012 $ 8,003 (25)%
Transaction Services
North America $ 610 $ 639 (5)%
EMEA 836 833 o}
Latin America 408 344 19
Asia 696 621 12
Total $ 2,550 $ 2,437 5%
Institutional Clients Group $ 8,562 $10,48 (18)%
Total Citicorp $16,504 $18,522 (11)%
CITI HOLDINGS
Brokerage and Asset Management $ 137 $ 340 (60)%
Local Consumer Lending 3,153 4,670 (32
Special Asset Pool (7) 1,540 NM
Total Citi Holdings $ 3,283 $ 6,550 (50)
Corporate/Other $ (61) $ 349 NM
Total net revenues $19,726 $25,421 (22)%

NM Not meaningful
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CITICORP

CiticorpistheCo mpamgy @ a | bank for consumers and businesses and re
providingbesin-c | ass products and services to customers and | ever a
physically present iapproximatelyl00 countries, many for over 100 years, and offers services in 6@eodlntriesand
jurisdictions Citi beleves this global network provides a strong foundation for servicing the broad financial services needs of large
multinational clients and for meeting the needs of retail, private bardangmercial public sectoand institutionatlients around the
world. Citigroupb6s gl obal footprint provi dCébeliavas vepresangaestroogared h e
of growth. At March31, 2011, Citicorp had approximately $118llion of assets and @4 billion of deposis, representing
appoximately68% of Citi 6s t ot al 9l8cofitedepsitea nd approxi mately

Citicorp consists of the following businessdgegional Consumer Bankirfghich includes retail banking and Ciiranded cards
in four region$ North America, EMEA, Latin AmeaandAsia) andInstitutional Clients Grougwhich includesSecurities and
BankingandTransaction Servicgs

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $ 9,506 $ 9,870 (4%
Norrinterest revenue 6,998 8,652 (29)

Total revenues, net of interest expense $16,504 $18,522 (11)%

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims
Net credit losses $ 2,318 $ 3,142 (26)%
Credit reserve build (release) (1,258 (360) NM
Provision for loan losses $ 1,060 $ 2,782 (62)%
Provision for benefits and claims 44 44 4
Provision for unfunded lending commitments 4 (7) NM

Total provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims $ 1,108 $ 2,819 (61)0%

Total operating expenses $ 9,601 $ 8,595 12%

Income from caontinuing operations before taxes $ 5,795 $ 7,108 (18)%

Provisions for income taxes 1,700 2,019 (16)

Income from continuing operations $ 4,095 $ 5,089 (20)%

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 11 21 (48)

Citicorpds net i ncome $ 4,04 $ 5,068 (19)

Balance sheet datdin billions of dollars)

Total EOP assets $ 1,330 $ 1236 8%

EOP Loans:

Consumer 235 221 6
Corporate 183 158 16
Average assets 1323 1,233 7

Total EOP deposits 784 730 7

NM Not meanngful
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REGIONAL CONSUMER BANKING

Regional Consumer Banking (RCBo nsi st s o f RCBbusinessethal prdvide traditional banking services to retail
customersRCBal so contains Citi gr ouQibtsi oOksmahecdetadking busirkssRABIS & globadlys s an
diversified business witbver4,200 branches in 39 countries around the woAtlMarch 31, 2011, RCBhad 833 billion of assets

and 814 billion of deposits.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $5,752 $5,917 (3)%
Non-interest revenue 2,190 2,165 1
Total revenues, net of interest expense $7,942 $8,082 (2)%
Total operating expenses $4,482 $3,998 12%
Net credit losses $2,108 $3,040 (31%
Credit reserve buil@release) (862) (180) NM
Provisions for unfunded lending commitments o} o} o}
Provision for benefits and claims 44 44 o)
Provisions forcreditlosses and for benefits and claims $1,290 $2,904 (56)%
Income from continuing operations before taxes $2,170 $1,180 84%
Income taxes 625 207 NM
Income from continuing operations $1,545 $ 973 59%
Net income(loss)attributable to noncontrolling interests (2 (5) 60
Net income $1,547 $ 978 58%
Average assef@n billions of dollars) $ 327 $ 308 6%
Return on assset 1.92% 1.29%
Total EOP assets $ 333 $ 313 6
Average depositéin billions of dollars) 307.0 289.2 6
Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans 3.69% 5.5
Revenue by business
Retail banking $3,907 $3,814 2%
Citi-branded cards 4,035 4,268 (5)
Total $7,942 $8,082 (2%
Income from continuing operations by business
Retail banking $ 681 $ 799 (15)%
Citi-branded cards 864 174 NM
Total $1,545 $ 973 59%

NM Not meaningful
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NORTH AMERICA REGIONAL CONSUMER BAN KING

North America Regional Consumer Banking (NA R@Yides traditional banking and Cliranded card services to retail customers
and smalto mid-size businessesinthe UMMARCE® s appr oxi mat e 1, 0 0 B.Omilon eetaillcusbreem k br ar
accounts are largely concentrated in the greater metropolitan areas of New York, Los Angeles, San Francisco, Chicago, Miami,
Washington, D.C., Boston, Philadelphia, amdtain larger cities in Texas. Atarch 31 2011, NA RCBhad 83.0billion of refail

banking and residential real estate loans a@B%billion of averagedeposits. In additioMA RCBhad21.1million Citi-branded

credit card accounts, wittv$.2billion in outstandingcardloan balances.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $2,624 $2,954 (11)%
Norrinterest revenue 710 847 (16)
Total revenues, net of interest expense $3,334 $3,801 (12)%
Total operating expenses $1,689 $1,621 4%
Net credit losses $1,440 $2,157 (33%
Credit reserve bld (release) (649 4 NM
Provisions for benefits and claims 6 8 (25)
Provisiors for loan losses and for benefits and claims $ 797 $2,169 (63)%%
Income from continuing operations before taxes $ 848 $ 11 NM
Income taxes (benefits) 297 4) NM
Income from continuing operations $ 551 $ 15 NM
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests o} 0 o}
Net income $ 551 $ 15 NM
Average assef@n billions of dollars) $ 120 $ 121 )%
Average depositén billions of dollars) 144 144 o}
Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans 5.52%6 7.8%%
Revenue by business
Retail banking $1,187 $1,280 (1%
Citi-branded cards 2,147 2,521 (15)
Total $3,334 $3,801 (12)%
Income (loss) from continuing operations by business
Retail banking $ 91 $ 165 (45)%
Citi-branded cards 460 (150 NM
Total $ 551 $ 15 NM

NM Not meaningful
Operating expenséncreased 4%o $1.7 billionfrom the

1Q11 vs. 1Q10 prior-year quarter, primarily driven by higher marketing costs
NA RCBrevenues, net of interest experdecreased 12% and technology spendinjlanagement currently anticipates
$3.3 billionmainly due to lower volumes in branded cards and  that, assuming credit ctnues to improve ilNA RCB(see
thenet impact of the Credit Card Accountability below), it will further increase investment spending irN£s
Responsibility and Disclosure Act (CARD Act) on cards RCBbusinesses.
revenues, as well as lower mortgagéated revenues. Provisions for loan losses and for benefits and claims
Net interest revenueas down 11%o0 $2.6 billiondriven decreased $1.4 billigr 63% primarily due to a net loan loss
primarily by lower volumes in cards, with aege loans down reserve release of $648llion in the current quarter and
7% from the priotyear quarter. In addition, cards net interest lower net credit losses in tl@&ti-branded cards portfolio.
revenue was negatively impacted by the CARD Act. Cards net credit losses were down $732 millimm35% from
Nortinterest revenudecreased 16% $710 millionfrom the prioryear quarter, anthe net credit loss ratio decreased
the prioryear quarter mainly due to lower gains from 325 basis points to 7.42%.
mortgage loanales andower net mortgage servicing
revenues
12
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EMEA REGIONAL CONSUMER BANKING

EMEA Regional Consumer Banking (EMEA R@R)vides traditional banking and Giiranded card services to retail customers and
small to midsize businesses, primarily in Central and Eastern Europe, the Middle East andRdnning activities in respect of
Western Europe retail bankirmgnd cardsireincluded in Citi HoldingsThe countries in whicEMEA RCBhas the largest presence
are Poland, Turkey, Russia and teited Arab Emiratesit March 31, 201 1EMEA RCBhad297 retail bank branches with6

million customer accountsA%¥ billion in retail banking loans and $billion in averagedeposits. In addition, the business 228
million Citi-branded card accounts wit2.8 billion in outstandingcardloan balances.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $228 $248 (8)%
Norinterest revenue 170 157 8
Total revenues, net of interest expense $398 $405 (2%
Total operating expenses $308 $282 9%
Net credit losses $ 49 $ 97 (49%
Provision for unfunded lending commitments o) o) o}
Credit reserve buil@release) (33 (10) NM
Provisions for loan losses $ 16 $ 87 (82)%
Income from continuing operations before taxes $ 74 $ 36 NM
Income taxes 25 12 o]
Income from continuing operations $ 49 $24 NM
Net incomeattributable to noncontrolling interests 0 0 o)
Net income $ 49 $ 24 NM
Average assef@n billions of dollars) $ 10 $ 10 d
Return on assets 1.99% 0.9%%
Average depositéin billions of dollars) $ 10 $ 10 d
Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans 2.6 4.98%
Revenue by business
Retail banking $219 $222 (D)%
Citi-branded cards 179 183 (2
Total $398 $405 (2%
Income (loss) from continuing operations by business
Retail banking $ 4 $ 9) NM
Citi-branded cards 45 33 36%
Total $ 49 $ 24 NM

NM Not meaningful

1Q11vs.1Q10 Provisions for loan lossedecrease82%to $16 million.
Revenues, net of interest expetdselined2% to $398 million Net credit lossedecreased9%to $49 million, while

from the prioryear perioddue to bwer lendingevenuesn the loan loss reservelease increased from $tdllion in the
the continuediquidation of na-strategiccustomeiportfolios, first quarter 02010 to 83 million in the first quarter 02011,
unrest in Middle East markets and lower contribution from an reflectingthe ongoing improvement in credit quality during
equity investment in Turkey. the period.

Net interest revenueas$228 million, or8%, lower than
the prioryearperioddue tothe continuedlecline in the non
strategic pdfolio, lower retail bankaverage loanand spread
compression in the cards portfalio
Nonrinterest revenuacreasedby 8% to $170 million,
reflecting higher investment sales and cards fees offset by a
lower contribution fromanequity investment in Tikey.
Investment sales grew 43% yeareryear and assets under
management grew 20%.

Operating expenséascreased % to $308 million
reflecting accountacquisitionfocused investment spending,
expansion of the sales force and higher regulatory expenses.

13
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LATIN AMERICA REGIONAL CONSUMER BANKING

Latin America Regional Consumer Banking (LATAM R@Byides traditional banking and Cliiranded card services to retail

customers andmall to midsize businesses, with the largest presence in Mexico and BraZAM RCBincludes branch networks
throughout_atin Americaas well aBanco Nacional de Mexico, @ a n a me x , Me xi co 6 switbavera, 8 | ar ge s
branchesAt March 31 2011, LATAM RCBhad 2196 retail branches, witB6.6 million customer accounts238.5billion in retail

banking loan balances and36 billion in averageleposits. In addition, the business had/ 1illion Citi-branded card accounts with
$13.5 billion in outstanding loan balances.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $1,574 $1,458 8%
Norinterest revenue 735 618 19
Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,309 $2,076 11%
Total operating expenses $1,365 $1,175 16%
Net credit losses $ 407 $ 509 (200%
Credit reserve buil¢release) (146 (136) @)
Provision for benefits and claims 38 36 6
Provisions for loan losses and for benefits and claims $ 299 $ 409 (27%
Income from continuing operations beé taxes $ 645 $ 492 31%
Income taxes 161 125 29
Income from continuing operations $ 484 $ 367 32%
Net (loss)attributable to noncontrolling interests (2 (5) 60
Net income $ 486 $ 372 31%
Average assef@n billions of dollars) $ B $ 72 10%
Return on assets 24% 2.10%
Average depositén billions of dollars) $ 46 $ 40 15
Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans 4.60% 6.7%%
Revenue by business
Retail banking $1,348 $1,196 13%
Citi-branded cards 961 880 9
Total $2,309 $2,076 11%
Income from continuing operations by business
Retail banking $ 305 $ 234 30%
Citi-branded cards 179 133 35
Total $ 484 $ 367 32%
1Q11vs.1Q10 Provisions for loan losses and for benefits and claims
Revenues, net of interest expeimseeased 1% to $2.3 decrease@7% to $299 million reflectinga $1@ million, or
billi on, driven by higher loaand deposit volumes as well as 20%, decrease imet credit lossei spite of the incremental
the impact of FX translation. $5.3 billion loan volumes and changes in FX rates. This
Net interest revenuiacreased % to $1.6 billion driven progresswas driven mainly by improved portfolio quality in
by higher loan volumegrimarily in the retail businesand Mexico cards Additionally, loan loss reserve releasd#sb146
the impact of FX translatigmvhich was partiallyffset by million were $10 million higher thatheprevious year, driven
spread compression. by retail bankingoan losses

Norrinterest revenucreased 1% to $735 million
driven byhighercards fee incom&om increased customer
activity as purchase sales increased by 25%.

Operating expensancreased 1% to $1.4 billionas
compared to the for-yearperiod primarily driven bynew
investments and the impact of FX translatidigher
operating expenses also reflected an increase in business
volumes, partlly offset by productivity saves.

14
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ASIA REGIONAL CONSUMER BANKING

Asia Regional Consumer Banking (Asia RPB)vides traditionabanking and Citbranded card servisdo retail customers and

smallto mid-size businesses, with the largest Citi presence in South Korea, Japan, Taiwan, Singapore, Australia, Hong Kong, India
and Indonesia. AMarch 31 2011, Asia RCBhad707 retail brarthes,16.2milli on retail banking accounts1®8.1billion in average
customer deposits, an@4 1billion in retail banking loans. In addition, the business had d#llion Citi-branded card accounts with
$200 billion in outstanding loan balances.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $1,326 $1,257 5%
Norrinterest revenue 575 543 6
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,901 $1,800 6%
Total operating expenses $1,120 $ 920 22%
Net credit losses $ 212 $ 277 (23)%
Credit reserve buil¢release) (39 (38) 11
Provisions for loan losses and for benefits and claims $ 178 $ 239 (26)%
Income from continuing operations before taxes $ 603 $ 641 (6)%
Income taxes 142 74 92
Income from continuing operations $ 461 $ 567 (19%
Netincomeattributable to noncontrolling interests 0 o] 0
Net income $ 461 $ 567 (19%
Average assefén billions of dollars) $ 118 $ 105 12%
Return on assets 1.58% 2.1%%
Average depositén billions of dolars) $ 108 $ 96 13
Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans 1.04% 1.5
Revenue by business
Retail banking $1,153 $1,116 3%
Citi-branded cards 748 684 9
Total $1,901 $1,800 6%
Income from continuing operations by business
Retal banking $ 281 $ 409 B)%
Citi-branded cards 180 158 14
Total $ 461 $ 567 (19%
1Q11vs.1Q10 Provisions for loan lossesnd for benefits and claims
Revenues, net of interest expeinseeased 6%o $1.9 billion decreased 26%0 $178 million mainly due ta 23% decline
driven by higher cardsuschase sales, investment salean in net credit losses. The declines were partially offset by the
anddeposit volums, and the impact of FX translatioFhis impact of FX translation. The decrease in provision for loan
was partially offset by lower spreads and a $70 million charge  losses and for benefits and claiaisoreflected continued
for the anticipated repurchase of certain securities. credit quality improvement across the region, particularly in
Net interest revenuacreased% to $1.3 billion mainly India, partially offset by incrasing volumes.

due to higher lending and deposit voksrand the impact of
FX translation, partially offset by lower spreads.

Nortinterest revenueacreased 6%o $575 million
primarily due to higher investment revenpleighher cards
purchase saleandthe impact of FX translatigmpartially
offset by thecharge for the anticipated repurchase of certain
securitiesand cards partnership payments

Operating expensascreased 22%o $1.1 billion due to
continued investment spendinggiemental legal and related
expensesand the impact of FX translationigher operating
expenses also reflectadincrease in business volumes,
partially offset by productivity saves.

15
CITIGROUPi 2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@



INSTITUTIONAL CLIENTS GROUP

Institutional Clients Group (ICGincludesSecurities and Bankingnd Transaction Service$CG provides corporate, institutional,

public sector and highetworth clients with a full range of pducts and services, including cash management, trade finance and
services, securities services, trading, underwriting, lending and advisory services, around tHE@brkl. | nt er nati onal
supported by trading floors in approximately 75 co@stand a proprietary network withlmansaction Services over95 countries.

At March 31, 2011lCG had $997 billion of assets and $470 billion of deposits.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Commissions and fees $1,132 $ 1,18 2%
Administration and other fiduciary fees 744 721 3
Investment banking 793 953 a7
Principal transactions 2,260 3,307 (32
Other (121) 398 NM
Total noninterest revenue $4,808 $ 6,487 (26)%
Net interest revenue (including dividends) 3,754 3,953 (5)
Total revenues, net of interest expense $8,562 $10,440 (18)%
Total operating expenses 5,119 4,597 11
Net credit losses 210 102 NM
Provision(releasefor unfunded lending commitments 4 (7) NM
Credit reserve buil@release) (396 (180) NM
Provisians for loan losses and benefits and claims $ (182 $ (85) NM
Income from continuing operations before taxes $3,625 $5,928 (39%
Income taxes 1,075 1,812 (41
Income from continuing operations $2,550 $ 4,116 (38)%
Net income attributable to noowtrolling interests 13 26 (50)
Net income $2,537 $ 4,090 (38)%
Average assef@n billions of dollars) $ 996 $ 925 8%
Return on assets 1.03% 1.7%
Revenues by region
North America $2,938 $ 4,192 (300
EMEA 2,895 3,348 (14
Latin Ameri@a 990 951 4
Asia 1,739 1,949 (12)
Total $8,562 $10,440 (18)%
Income from continuing operations by region
North America $ 571 $ 1,583 (64)Y%
EMEA 1,043 1,324 (22)
Latin America 442 421 5
Asia 494 788 (37
Total $2,550 $ 4,116 (39)%
Average laans by region(in billions of dollars)
North America $ 66 $ 68 (3)%
EMEA 42 37 14
Latin America 24 22 9
Asia 44 30 47
Total $ 176 $ 157 12%

NM Not meaningful
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SECURITIES AND BANKING

Securities and Banking (S&Bffers a wide aay of investment and commercial banking services and products for corporations,
governments, institutional and retail investors, anddmgfworth individuals.S&B includes investment banking and advisory

services, lending, debt and equity sales andritpdinstitutional brokerage, foreign exchange, structured products, cash instruments
and related derivatives, and private bank®§B revenue is generated primarily from fees for investment banking and advisory
services, fees and interest on loans, feelsspread on foreign exchange, structured products, cash instruments and related derivative:
income earned on principal transactions, and fees and spreads on private banking services.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $2,324 $2,565 (9)%
Norrinterest revenue 3,688 5,438 (32
Revenues, net of interest expense $6,012 $8,003 (25%
Total operating expenses 3,802 3,437 11
Net credit losses 204 101 NM
Provisions for unfunded lending commitments 4 ) NM
Creditreserve buildrelease) (397 (162) NM
Provisions for loan losses and benefits and claims $ (189 $ (68) NM
Income before taxes and noncontrolling interests $2,399 $4,634 (48)%
Income taxes 694 1,453 (52
Income from continuing operations 1,705 3,181 (46)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 9 21 (57)
Net income $1,696 $3,160 (46)%
Average assef@n billions of dollars) $ 875 $ 827 6%
Return on assets 0.7 1.5%%
Revenues by region
North America $2,328 $3,553 (34)%
EMEA 2,059 2,515 (18
Latin America 582 607 (4
Asia 1,043 1,328 (23
Total revenues $6,012 $8,003 (25%
Net income from continuing operations by region
North America $ 458 $1,422 (68)%0
EMEA 765 1,021 (25)
Latin America 272 269 1
Asia 210 469 (55)
Total net income from continuing operations $1,705 $3,181 (46)%0
Securities and Bankingevenue details
Total investment banking $ 851 $1,057 (19)%
Lending 244 243 o}
Equity markets 1,070 1,213 (12)
Fixed income markets 3,795 5,380 (29
Private bank 515 494 4
OtherSecurities and Banking (463 (384) (21)
Total Securities and Bankingevenues $6,012 $8,003 25%

NM Not meaningful

1Q11 vs. 1Q10

Revenues, net of interest expeof$6.0 billion decreased
25%as compared tthe prior-year peiod, primarily driven by
lower fixed income markets revenues and negative CVA.
CVA decreased $0.5 billion to negative $8ikion, mainly
due to agreatemarrowing of Citigroup spreads the first
quarter 02011 compared tthe first quarter of 200. Fixed
income markets revenues decrea22¥ to $4.0 billion
(excluding CVA, net of hedges, of negative $0.2 billion and
positive $0.3 billion in the current quarter and piyear

17

period respectively)reflecting weaker results in rates and
currencies, adit products, and securitized products.
Investment banking revenues declirié®oto $851 million,
primarily reflecting lower revenues from municipal and
investment grade debt underwriting. Equity markets declined
9% to $1.1 billion (excluding CVA, net diedges, of negative
$34 million and negative $5 million in the current quarter and
prior-yearperiod respectively, driven by lower trading
revenues related to principal positions, partially offset by
growth in cash equities. The declinaghesebusinessewere
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slightly offset bya 5% growth in private bank revenues
$520million (excluding CVA, net of hedges, of negative $5
million and negative $2 million in the current quarter and
prior-year period, respectively)

Operating expensascreasd 11%to $3.8 hllion.
Excludingallitigation reserve release the prioryearperiod
operating expenses increased 5%, mainly due to continued
investment spending, higher business volumes and the impact
of FX translation partially offset by productivitgavings

Provisions for loan losses and for benefits and claims
decreased by $121 million to negative $189 million, mainly
due to continued improvement in the corporate credit portfolio
and net releases for specific counterparties.

18
CITIGROUPi 2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@



TRANSACTION SERVICES

Transaction Servicas composed of Treasury and Trade Solutions (TTS) and Securities and Fund Services (SFS). TTS provides
comprehensive cash management and trade firmrtservicefor corporations, financial institutionsid public sector entities
worldwide. SFS providesecuritiesservices to investorsuchas global asset managers, custody@edring services to

intermediaries such as brokéealers, and depository and agency/trust services to multinational corppaattbgovernments

globally. Revenue is generated from net interest revenue on deposits in TTS and SFS, dsoweltade loans and fees for
transaction processing and fees on assets under castdcdidministratiom SFS.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $1,430 $1,388 3%
Nortinterest revenue 1,120 1,049 7
Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,550 $2,437 5%
Total operating expenses 1,317 1,160 14
Provisiong(releases) for credit losses and forebefits and claims 7 (17) NM
Income before taxes and noncontrolling interests $1,226 $1,294 (5)%
Income taxes 381 359 6
Income from continuing operations 845 935 (10
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 4 5 (20)
Net income $ 841 $ 930 (10)%
Average assef@n billions of dollars) $ 121 $ 98 23%
Return on assets 2.8%% 3.8%%
Revenues by region
North America $ 610 $ 639 (5)%
EMEA 836 833 o}
Latin America 408 344 19
Asia 696 621 12
Total revenues $2,550 $2,437 5%
Income from continuing operations by region
North America $ 113 $ 161 (30)%
EMEA 278 303 (8)
Latin America 170 152 12
Asia 284 319 (11)
Total net income from continuing operations $ 845 $ 935 (10)%
Key indicators (in billions of dollas)
Average deposits and other customer liability balances $ 355 $ 319 11%
EOP assets under custa@y trillions of dollars) 13.0 11.8 10

NM Not meaningful

1Q11vs.1Q10

Revenues, net of interest expergsew 5%to $2.6 billion
comparedo the prioryear periodas strong growth in both
TTS and SFSdriven bylLatin AmericaandAsia, more than
offset spread compression. Average customer liability
balances and assets under custody were up 11% andd 0%,
$355 million and $13 trillionrespetively, fromthe first
quarter of 2010

Treasury and Trade Solutiomevenue increased 3%,
driven by stronger performances in thede and cards
businesses as well as increased balampaesally offset by
spread compression

Securities and Fund Secésrevenues increased 9%,
driven by higher asset valuations, inflows, and business
volumes.

Operating expensascreased 14%o $1.3 billion dueto
continued investment spending primarily in operations and
technology to support business expansion.

Provisions for loan losses and for benefits and claims
increasd $24 millionfrom the prioryear period primarily
reflecing a reserve release in theor-yearperiod

19
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CITI HOLDINGS

Citi Holdings contains businesses and portfolios of assets thatdDjpigras determined are not central to its core Citicorp businesses.
Consistent with its strateg@iti intends to exit these businesses as quickly as practicable in an economically rational manner through
business divestitures, portfolio raffs and assetalesCi t i Hol di n gof$837 QoA lavedees reduced B166 billion
from March 31 2010, and$490 billion from the peak in the first quarter of 2QG8d representegpproximatelyl7% of Ci t i 0s
as ofMarch 31 2011. Ci t i rislHveeighded asgets of approximatelydSdillion represered approximately 3% of Cit i 6 s
risk-weighted assets as of March, 2011.

Citi Holdings consists of the followinggrokerage and Asset Management, Local Consumer Leratidgpecial Asset Pool.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $2,630 $ 4,375 (40/%
Norrinterest revenue 653 2,175 (70
Total revenues, net of interest expense $3,283 $ 6,550 (50)%
Provisions for credit losses and for benefits andaims

Net credit losses $3,950 $ 5,241 (25%
Credit reserve buil@release) (2,112 340 NM
Provision for loan losses $1,838 $ 5,581 (67)%
Provision for benefits and claims 216 243 (11
Provision(releasefor unfunded lending commitments 21 (26) NM
Total provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims $2,075 $ 5,798 (64)%
Total operating expenses $2,019 $ 2,573 (22
Loss from continuing operations before taxes $ (81) $(1,82) 55%
Benefits for income taxes (264 (946) 72

L oss fram continuing operations $ (547 $ (875 37%
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 61 11 NM
Citi Holdings net loss $ (608 $ (886 31%
Balance sheet datdin billions of dollars)

Total EOP assets $ 337 $ 503 (33%
Total EOP deposits $ 77 $ 86 (10)%

NM Not meaningful
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BROKERAGE AND ASSET MANAGEMENT

Brokerage and Asset Management (BAMjich constituted approximateBo of Citi Holdings by assets as ifarch 31 2011,
consists of Cit iedasdagsetmbnagementdusiacsdeslafith3t, RO41r BN had approximately &7 billion of
assets, primarily cons iassetsreaed,heMoantStafley Smith BaensytjomteventuMISB JV). a n d
As more fully described in Forsn8K, filed with the SEC on Januad4, 2009 and June 3, 200dorgan Stanley has options to
purchase Citidéds remaining stake in the MSSB JV over three

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revare $(46) $ (65) o}
Norrinterest revenue 183 405 (55%
Total revenues, net of interest expense $137 $340 (60)%
Total operating expenses $174 $237 (36)%
Net credit losses $ 1 $11 (91)%
Credit reserve buil@release) D @) 86
Provision for unfinded lending commitments o) o) o)
Provision for benefits and claims 8 9 (11
Provisions forcreditlosses and for benefits and claims $ 8 $ 13 (38)%
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes $(45 $ 54 NM
Income taxes (benefits) (35 (22) (59)%
Income (loss) from continuing operations $(10 $ 76 NM
Net income(loss)attributable to noncontrolling interests 2 (5) NM
Net income (loss) $(12 $ 81 NM
EOP assetén billions of dollars) $ 27 $ 31 (13)%
EOP depositén billions ofdollars) 58 59 (2

NM Not meaningful

1Q11vs.1Q10
Revenues, net of interest expedserease®0% to $137
million versus the prieyearperiod mainly driven bythe
absence athe $78 million pretax gason sals relatedto the
Habitat and Colfond®businessed ATAMasset management
businessesdh thefirst quarter of 2010and lowemrevenues
from the MSSB JV

Operating expensatecreased 36 to $174 millionfrom
the prioryearperiod mainly driven bylower legal settlements
and reserveassociatd with Smith Barng

Provisions forcreditlosses and for benefits and claims
decreased 38 to $8 million, mainly due tdower net credit
losses.

Assetglecreased P8 versus the prior yeaig $27
million, mostly driven by the sales tfe Citi private ejuity
business and thein-off of tailoredloanportfolios.
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LOCAL CONSUMER LENDING

Local Consumer Lending (LClyhich constituted approximatel¥% of Citi Holdings assets as bfarch31, 2011, includes a portion

of

Ci ti gr oup 6 srtgaye busirtessctaingamner caads, Western European cards and retail banking, CitiFinancial North

America and other loc&onsumefinance businesses globally. March 31 2011, LCL had $37 billion of assets ($12billion in North
Americg. Approximaely $120billion of assets i.CL as ofMarch 31 2011 consisted of U.S. mortgagesintGe mp any 6 s
CitiMortgage and CitiFinancial operations. The North American assets con@stdential mortgaggresidential first mortgagesnd
home equity loansretail partner card loans, personal loans, commercial real SR, and other consumer loans and assets.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change
Net interest revenue $2,617 $ 4,020 (35)%
Norinterest revenue 536 650 (18)
Total revenues, net of interest expense $3,153 $ 4,670 (32%
Total operating expenses $1,763 $ 2,165 (19)%
Net credit losses $3,279 $ 4,938 (34%
Credit reserve buil¢release) (1,110 386 NM
Provision for benefits and claims 208 234 (11
Provision for unfunded lending commitments o) 0 0
Provisions forcreditlosses and for benefits and claims $2,377 $ 5,558 (57%
Loss from continuing operations before taxes $ (987 $(3,053 68%
Benefits for income taxes (388 (1,229 68
Loss from continuing operatilns $ (599 $(1,829 67%
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests o) o} o}
Net loss $ (599 $(1,829 67%
Average assefn billions of dollars) $ 246 $ 355 (3D)%
Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans 6.136 6.30%

NM Not meaningful

1Q11vs.1Q10
Revenues, net of interest expedserease2% to $3.2
billion from the prioryearperiod Net interest revenue
decreasedB5% to $2.6 billion,primarily due to the impact of
lower loanbalancedrom portfolio runoff andcontinuel asset
sales as well as the increase in reserves related to Japan
Consumer Finance described bel®erinterest revenue
declined18%to $536 million primarily due tahe higher
mortgage repurchase reseolrearge($122 million) in the
current quarter

Operating expensatecreased®s6 to $1.8 billion
primarily due to the impact of divestitures, lower voluraed
productivity saves

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims
decrease®7% to $2.4 billion reflecting a net $1.billion
credt reserve release the current quartetompared to a
$400 million build in the prioryear quarter Net credit losses
werealsolower yearoveryear, driven by improvement in
retail partner card4J.S. mortgages aridternational
portfolios.

Assetgledined 32% from the prioryearperiod to 37
million, primarily driven by portfolio ruroff andtheimpact
of asset sales and divestitures.
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Japan Consumer Finance
During the first quarter of 2011 CL recorded an additional
charge of approximately $24#illion (pretax) to increase its
reserves related to customer refunds for the charging of gray
zone interest in the Japan Consumer Finance business. For
additional information on gr a
Consumer Finance bwmnstidbsedHs scas
and Analysig Citi Holdingsi Local Consumer Lendig i n
Citigroupbs 2010 AfRKnThaihcredsepor
in reserves during the first quarter refextthe recent trends
in the market, including the previougljsclosed bankiptcy
of Takefuji, one of Japands |
companies.

Citi continues to monitor and evaluate these
developments and the potential impact to both currently and
previously outstanding loans in this business, and its reserves
related theretddowever, as previously disclosed, the trend in
the type, number and amount of refund claims remains
volatile, and accordingly, the potential full amount of losses
and their impact on Citi, including its reserves related thereto,
is subject to significantncertainties and continues to be
difficult to predict.
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SPECIAL ASSET POOL

Special Asset Pool (SARyhich constituted approximatel® of Citi Holdings by assets as of Mar8i, 20L1, consists of
portfolio of securities, loans and other assets@i@group intends to actively reduce over time through asset sales and portfelio run
off. At March31, 2A.1, SAPhad &3 billion of assetsSAPassets have declined b235 billion, or 78%, from peak levels in 20Q7

reflecting cumulative writ@lowns, asgesales and portfolio ruoff.

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 % Change

Net interest revenue $ 59 $ 420 (86)%

Norrinterest revenue (66) 1,120 NM

Revenues, net of interest expense $ O $1,540 NM

Total operating expenses $ 82 $ 135 (39%
Net credit losses $ 670 $ 292 NM
Provision(releasesjor unfunded lending commitments 21 (26) NM
Credit reserve buildgelease) (1,009 (39 NM

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims $ (310) $ 227 NM

Incomefrom continuing operations before taxes $ 221 $1,178 (81)%

Income taxes 159 300 (47)

Net incomefrom continuing operations $ 62 $ 878 (93)%

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 59 16 NM

Netincome $ 3 $ 862 (1006

EOP asset6n billions of dollars) $ 73 $ 126 (42)%

NM Not meaningful

1Q11vs.1Q10

Revenues, net of interest expedsereased $1.5 billion versus

the prioryearperiod driven by a $709 milliopretax, netoss

from the movement of12.7 billion of securitiesut of

Investmentseldto-maturity (HTM) during the first quarter of

2011,composed ofhe transfer of $10.0 billionf HTM

securitiego Trading account assetmdthe sale of $2.7

billion of HTM securitieq Citi recognizeda corresponding

receivabldrom these wnsettledsales as of March 31, 2011)

See AReclassi écomntibasofoHTMa®&i ngodo bel ow

This loss was partially offset by positive marks of $501
million on private equity investments the first quarter of
2011 First quarter of 2010 revenues included positive marks
of $804 million on sukprime related direct exposures.

Operating expensatecieased 39%o $82 million mainly
driven by a decrease in transaction expenses and lower
volumes.

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims
decreased $537 millioinom the prioryear perioddriven by
increased releases of loan loss reseo¥&962 million,
partially offset by higher net credit losses of $378 millidet
credit losses more than doubled yeaeryear, reflecting
higher costs of loan sales and higher net credit losses on loans
for which specific FAS 114 reserves had previplieen
established, which were released during the current quarter.

Assetsleclined 42%o0 $73 millionversus the prieyear
period primarily due to asset sales and amortization and
prepayments.
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Reclassification of HTM Securities to Trading

As discussed further in Note 14 the Consolidated Financial
Statements, durinte first quarter of 2011, the Company
determined that o longer hadhe intent to hold $12.7

billion of HTM securities to maturity Accordingly, the
Conpany reclassifie®10.0billion carrying value of
mortgagebacked, other assbacked, state and municipal, and
corporate debt securities framvestmentsield-to-maturity to
Trading account asset$he Companyglsosoldan additional
$2.7 billion of suctHTM securitiesrecognizinga
corresponding receivable from thasettledsales as of March
31, 2011 As a result of these actions, the Company recorded a
pretax net loss of $709 million 487 million after tax) in the
Consolidated Statement of Income foe three months ended

March 31, 2011Through April29, 2011, the Company has

sold $10.6billion of the $12.7 billionof HTM securities.
Citigroup reclassified and sold these securities as part of

its overall efforts to mitigate the riskeighted aset

implications arising from significant new regulatory capital

requirements which, although not yet fully implemented or

formally adopted, are nonetheless currently being used to

assess the regulatory capital status of the Company and other

largeU.S. banking organizationdf retained, he $12.7 billion

of securities would have had averalldisproportionately

higherrisk-weightingunder these new requirementempared

to the remainder ofiti Holdings assets.

The following talke provides details of the composition®APassets as dflarch31, 2011

Assets within Special Aset Pool as of
March 31, 2011

Carrying
value Carrying value as % of

In billions of dollars of assets Face value face value
Securities in availablefor-sale (AFS)

Corporates $5.0 $5.0 99%

Prime and nofU.S.mortgagebacked securities (MBS) 1.4 1.6 83

Auction rate securitieARS) 1.8 2.2 81

Other securities 0.1 0.2 79
Total securities in AFS $8.3 $9.0 91%
Securities in heldto-maturity (HTM)

Prime and notJ.S. MBS $4.8 $5.8 83%

Alt-A mortgages 4.2 7.9 53

Corporats 2.6 2.7 97

Other securiti¢d 23 2.7 82
Total securities in HTM $13.9 $19.1 73%
Loans, leases and letters of credit (LCs) in helébr-investment

(HF1)/held-for-sale (HFS)®

Corporates $5.0 $5.2 96%

Commercial real estate (CRE) 2.8 29 97

Othef® 1.3 1.2 107

Loan loss reserves (1.0 o) NM
Total loans, leases and LCs in HFI/HFS $8.1 $9.3 87%
Mark to market (trading)

Subprime securities $0.2 $2.2 9%

Other sectities” 18.8 374 50

Derivatives 4.0 NM NM

Loans, leases ardCs 2.3 3.2 73

Repurchase agreements 3.3 NM NM
Total mark to market (trading) $28.6 NM NM
Highly leveraged finance commitments $0.8 $1.2 67%
Equities (excludes ARS in AFS) 8.4 NM NM
Consumer and other® 4.7 NM NM
Total $72.8

(1) Includes assets previously held by struaiuirerestment vehicles (SIVs) ($1bllion of assetbacked securities, collateralized debt obligations

(CDOs)/collateralized loan obligations (CLOs) and governrhents).
(2) HFS accounts for approximately $1.0 billion of the total.
(3) Includes $0.»illion of subprime and $0.4 billion of leases.

4) Includes$4.6 billion of Alt-A, $4.4 billion of Corporate securities, $4.1 billion of ARS and38llion of Prime MBS
(5) Includes $1.2illion of small business Ioking and finance loans and $@ilion of personal loans.

Excludes Discontinued Operations.
Totals may not sum due to rounding.
NM Not meaningful

Note: Assets previously held by the Gitlvised SIVs have been allocated to the corresponding asset categoriesbehad total CRE exposures db.$ billion at
March 31, 2011which included unfunded commitments df&billion. SAPhad total subprime assets of $bilion at March31, 2011, including assets of $billion
of subprimerelated direct exposures and Bbillion of trading account positions, which includes securities purchased from CDO liquidations.
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CORPORATE/OTHER

Corporate/Otheincludes global staff functions (incliudy finance, risk, human resources, legal and compliance) and other corporate
expense, global operations and technology, residual Corporate Treasury and Corporate Keareh A1, 2011, this segment had
approximately $81billion of assetspr14% of Ci t i gr o u gdnsisting primarilyofgitd set s qui dity PBdrt f
billion of cash and deposits with banksid $53billion of liquid availablefor-sale securities

First Quarter

In millions of dollars 2011 2010

Net interestevenue $ 88 $316
Norrinterest revenue (149) 33
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ (61) $349
Total operating expenses $ 706 $350
Provisions for loan losses and for benefits and claims 1 1
Loss from continuing operations before taxes $(768) $ (2
Benefits for income taxes (25)) (37
Incomeloss from continuing operations $(517) $ 35
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes 40 211
Netincome (os9 before attribution of noncontrolling interests $477) $246
Net inconme (loss)attributable to noncontrolling interests 0 o)

Net loss $(477) $246

1Q11 vs. 1Q10
Revenues, net of interest expedselined$410 millionto a
negative $61 millionprimarily due to lower investment yields
in Treasury and net losses on hedgiotvities.

Operating Expensédacreased356 millionto $706
million, primarily due to legal and related expenses.
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SEGMENT BALANCE SHEET AT MARCH 31, 2a1
Corporate/Other,
Discontinued
Operations
Regional Institutional and

Consumer Clients Subtotal Citi Consolidating Total Citigroup
In millions of dollars Banking Group Citicorp Holdings Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Cash and due from banks $7,769 $17,717 $ 25486 $ 1,845 $ 511 $ 27,842
Deposits with banks 9,870 71,075 80,945 3,403 79,255 163,603
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purct
under agreements to resell 90 257,347 257,437 3,683 - 261,120
Brokerage receivables 3 28,984 28,987 10,607 1,307 40,901
Trading account assets 11,790 284,014 295804 27,306 - 323,110
Investments 35,063 99,886 134,949 39,067 153,241 327,257
Loans, net of unearned income
Consumer 234,908 - 234,908 206,305 - 441,213
Corporate - 183,401 183,401 12,522 - 195,923
Loans, net of unearned income $ 234,908% 183,401 $ 418,309 $ 218,827 - $ 637,136
Allowance for loan losses (12,592 (3,005) (15,597) (20,971) - (36,568)
Total loans, net $ 222,316$ 180,396 $ 402,712 $ 197,856 - $ 600,568
Goodwill 10,884 10,976 21,860 4,479 - 26,339
Intangible assets {oer than MSRs) 2,198 928 3,126 4,154 - 7,280
Mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) 2,232 80 2,312 2,378 - 4,690
Other assets 30,331 45,737 76,068 39,634 46,731 162,433
Assets of discontinued operations - - - 2,672 - 2,672
Total assets $ 332,546 $ 997,140 $1,329,686 $ 337,084 $ 281,045 $ 1,947,815
Liabilities and equity
Total deposits $ 313,727 $ 470,262 $783,989 $ 77,066 $ 4,808 $ 865,863
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or s
under agreements to repurchase 5,620 182,118 187,738 1 86 187,825
Brokerage payables 152 50,168 50,320 1 73 50,394
Trading account liabilities 43 144,501 144,544 1,802 o) 146,346
Shortterm borrowings 421 57,320 57,741 1,652 19,229 78,622
Long-term debt 2,340 77,373 79,713 14,214 282,614 376,541
Other liablities 17,572 28,078 45,650 9,785 13,357 68,792
Liabilities of discontinued operations o] o) 0 39 o} 39
Net intersegment funding (lending) (7,329) (12,680) (20,009) 232,524 (212,515) -
Tot al Citigroup stockho o] o) 0 0 171,037 171,037
Noncontolling interest o} 0 0 0 2,356 2,356
Total equity 0 0 0 0 173,393 173,393
Total liabilities and equity $ 332,546 $997,140 $ 1,329,686 $ 337,084 $ 281,045 $ 1,947,815
The supplemental informatigeresented aboweflects
Citigroup6s c balasce sheetlly tepodingGA AP
segment as dflarch 31, 2011. The respective segment
information depicts the assets and liabilities managed by each
segment as of such date. While this presentation is not defined
by GAAP, Citi believes that these r@AAP finandal
measures enhance investorsé understanding of the balance

sheet components managed by the underlying business
segments, as well as the beneficial imedationship of the

asset and liability dynamics of the balance sheet components
among Ci tsisdgments.usi nes
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview
Citi generats capitalthroughearnings from its operating
businesses. However, Citi may augment, and during the
financial crisis did augment, its capital through issuarufe
common stock, convertible preferred stock, preferred stock
andequity issued through awards under employee benefit
plans Citi also augmented itegulatory capitathrough the
issuance of subordinated debt underlying trust preferred
securities althaugh the treatment of such instruments as
regulatory capital will be phased out under Basel Ill and the
Financi al R eChpital ResoArces and ldgeidity A
Capital Resourcés Regulatory Capital Standards
Devel op méehait Bios ka nEBkcton ofCri s d 6 s
AnnualReport on Form 14K). Further, the impact of future
events on Citids business
dispositionsas well as changes in regulatory and accounting
standardsalso affecsCi t i 6 s capi t al l evel
Capitalissed primarily to
businesses and to absorb market, credit or operational losses.
Capital may be used for other purposes, such as to pay
dividends or repurchase common stddkwever,Ci t i 6 s
ability to pay regular quarterly cash dilgnds of more than
$0.01 per share, or to redeem or repurchase equity securities
or trust preferred securitieis,currentlyrestricted (which such
restriction maybewsa e d ) d u egreaement€withi 6 s
certain U.S. government entities, generally $orlong as the
U.S. governmetncontinues to hold any Citi trust preferred
securities acquired in connection with the exchange offers
consummated in 2009

For an overview of Citigroupglh2iCcapital management
framework i ncluding Citiod6s Finance and Asset and Liability
Committee (FinALCO), see i Ca pCitigeoup RéyalastoryCapitat Ratioa n d
Liquidityd Capital ResourcégsOv er vi ewd i n Citigroup6s
2010 Annual Report on Form Q. Mar. 31, Dec. 31,
At periodend 2011 2010
Capital Ratios T@er 1 Common 11.34% 10.75%
Citigroup is subject to the riskased capital gdelines issued Tier 1 Capital . . 133 1291
by the Federal Reserve Board. Historically, capital adequacy Ig\t/i'rgaapggg(ﬂer 1 Capital + Tier 2 Caplt 1?%% 12‘28
has been measured, in part, based on twebdsled capital 9 - -
ratios, the Tier 1 Capital and Total Capital (Tier 1 Capital + .
Tier 2 Capital) ratios. Tier 1 Capital consists of thenof As_, n 0 t e d ' n he t a ble above
Afcore capital el ements, o suchc?g'g gﬁ%ﬂj tBi Eoryagency
stockhol dersé equity, as adjugenguanas(gl\daéc aﬂd ﬁ”a% rol i
interests, and qualifying mandatorily redeemable securities of
subsidiary trusts, principally reduced by goodwill, other
disallowed intaniple assets, and disallowed deferred tax
assets. Tot al Capital also includes fisupplementaryo Tier 2
Capital elements, such as qualifying subordinated debt and a
limited portion of the allowance for credit losses. Both
measures of capital adequacy are dtatea percentage of
risk-weighted assets.
In 2009, the U.S. banking regulators developed a new
measure of capital termed ATier 1 Common, d which is define
as Tier 1 Capital less nazommon elements, including
qualifying perpetual preferred stock, quailifg noncontrolling
interests, and qualifying mandatorily redeemable securities of
27

supporbelowassets in

subsidiary trustd=or more detail on all of these capital
metrics, g e A Components of Capital
Guidelineso bel ow.

Ci t i gr owejghiesl assets ark pripeily derived
from application of the riskased capital guidelines related to
the measurement of credit risk. Pursuant to these guidelines,
ontbalancesheet assets and the credit equivalent amount of
certain offbalancesheet exposures (such as financial
guarantees, unfunded lending commitmemdletters of
creditand derivativesare assigned to one of several
prescribed riskwveight categories based upon the perceived
credit risk associated with the obligor, or if relevant, the
guarantor, the nature tife collateral, or external credit
ratings. Riskweighted assets also incorporate a measure for
market risk on covered trading account positions and all

2 0 fbrBign exchange and commodity positions whether or not

carried in the trading account. Excluded fraskiweighted

r e s asbets are ang assets, suehsas goodwip and defereed taxrassetsa

to the extent required to be deducted from regulatory capital.
See AComponents of Capital
Citios

Citigroup is also subject to a Leverage ratio regquient,

a nonrisk-based measure of capital adequacy, which is
defined as Tier 1 Capital as a percentage of quarterly adjusted
average total assets.

To be fiwell capitalizedo u
regulatory agency definitions, a bank holding compangtm
have a Tier 1 Capital ratio of at least 6%, a Total Capital ratio
of at least 10%, and a Leverage ratio of at least 3%, and not be
subject to a Federal Reserve Board directive to maintain
hi gher capital l evels. The fo
regulatory capital ratios as bfarch31, 201 and December

Un

n
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Components of Capital Under Rgulatory Guidelines

March 31, December 31

In millions of dollars 2011 2010
Tier 1 Common
Citigroup common stockholdersé equity $17Q0725 $163,156
Less: Net unrealized losses on securities avaiffaiieale, net of tak’ (1,655) (2,395)
Less: Accumulated net losses on cash flow hedgetsf tax (2,498) (2,650)
Less: Pension liability adjustment, net of {3x (4,068) (4,105)
Less: Cumulative effect included in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to the change in own credi

worthiness, net of ta®’ 94 164
Less: Disallowed deferred tax asséts 34,093 34,946
Less: Intangible assets:

Goodwill 26,486 26,152

Other disallowed intangible assets 5,128 5,211
Other (686) (698)
Total Tier 1 Common $112459 $105,135
Qualifying perpetual preferred stock $ 312 $ 312
Qualifying mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts 17,813 18,003
Qualifying noncontrolling interests 926 868
Other o) 1,875
Total Tier 1 Capital $131510 $126,193
Tier 2 Capital
Allowance for credit losse $ 12,20 $ 12,627
Qualifying subordinated def§t 23,155 22,423
Net unrealized pretax gains on availafile sale equity securitiéd 983 976
Total Tier 2 Capital $ 36,88 $ 36,026
Total Capital (Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital) $168383 $162,219
Risk-weighted asset§RWA) ) $991,607 $977,629

(1) Tier 1 Capital excludes net unrealized gains (losses) on avaitatdale debt securities and net unrealized gains on avaftakdaleequity securities with
readily determinable fair values, in accordance with-biaked capital guidelines. In arriving at Tier 1 Capital, banking organizations are required to deduct net
unrealized losses on availali@-sale equity securities with redddeterminable fair values, net of tax. Banking organizations are permitted to include in Tier 2
Capital up to 45% of net unrealized pretax gains on avaifablgale equity securities with readily determinable fair values.

(2) The Federal Reserve Boagthnted interim capital relief for the impact of ASC 720 Compensatiod Retirement BenefilsDefined Benefits Plan$ormerly
SFAS 158).

B The impact of including Citigroupds own cr e dption hasdhaen alegtediisexcludad from Tiegl f i nan
Capital, in accordance with ridkased capital guidelines.

(4) Of Citi 6s adPbilioncoknet ahedetrexl tay assetsMarch31, 2011, approximately $3 billion of such assets were includable witihdimitation in
regulatory capital pursuant to ridlased capital gdelines, while approximately 8dillion of such assets exceeded the limitation imposed by these guidelines
and, as fddisallowed deferred tlaxapastsadt.s G tw egrrdbilidpedsothetpepdefeivad taeadsas pyinafly a t
represented approximately Billion of deferred tax effects of unrealized gains and losses on avéiteisiele debt securities and approximatedybilion of
defered tax effects of the pension liability adjustment, which are permitted to be excluded prior to deriving the amouefafedtax assets subject to
limitation under the guidelines.

(5) Includable up to 1.25% of riskeeighted assets. Any excess alémce for credit losses is deducted in arriving atwisighted assets.

(6) Includes qualifying subordinated debt in an amount not exceeding 50% of Tier 1 Capital.

(7) Includes riskweighted credit equivalent amounts, net of applicable bilateral negjireggments, ofel.2 billion for interest rate, commodity and equity derivative
contracts, foreign exchange contraetsd credit derivatives as bfarch31, 2011, compared with &2.1billion as of DecembeB1, 2A.0. Market risk equivalent
assets includeih risk-weighted assets amounted &0%®billion at March 31 2011 and $1.4 billion at Decembe31, 2010 Riskweighted assets also include the
effect of certain other ofialancesheet exposures, such as unused lending commitments and letters pardediflect deductions such as certain intangible
assets and any excess allowance for credit losses.

28
CITIGROUPi 2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@



Common Stockhol der sé
Citigroupbés common
three months ended March 31, 2041%7.5billion to $170.7
billion, and represente8.8% of total assets as dfarch31,

20l. The table below

common

In billions of dollars

Equity
s t dwirgthe | d e 8hard

st ockhol thefirssqbarter gf 2011 y

Common st ockh dDecdreberd1p2a6 q ui $163.2
Net incomé& 3.0
Employee benefit plans and other activifles 0.3
Conversion ofADIA Upper DECs equity units purchase
contractto common stock 19
Net change in accumulated other comprehensive incorr
(loss), net of tal¥ 23
Common stocklo | d e r s Marehg3a, 2Qly , $170.7

(1) Numbers reflect the net impacttbie transfer of certain ass@isSAP
from Investmentseldto-maturity toTrading account assetduring the
first quarter of 2011S e e  Hdllingsdi Special Asset Pool
and Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

above

Tangible Common Equity and Tangible Book Value Per
equity increased
Tangiblecommon ¢uity (TCE), as defined by Citigroup,
represent€ommon equitlessGoodwill andintangible assets

a manner di fferent from th
$136.9billion at March31, 2011 and $.29.4billion at

December 31, 21D.

summar i z e ®ther thaeMortghge Bayvecing Righ(d®$RY), apdretateg 6 s
d wet defargd taassetsOther companies may calculate TCE in

at

The TCE ratio (TCE divided by riskeighted assets) was

138% atMarch31, 2011 and13.246 at December 31, 20.

TCE and tangible book value per share, as well as related

ratios, arecapital adequacy metsased and relied upon by
investors andndustry analysts; howevehey arenonGAAP
financial measurefor SEC purposes. A renoailiation of
Citigroupbs total sandbankvaloel
per shareo tangiblebook value per sharéllows:

Mar. 31,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

In millionsat periodend, except ratios

der

@

Citids authorized

As of March31, 2011, $6.7 billion of stock repurchases remained under
repurchase
made inthe first quarter of 2011 and the year ended December 3@, 20

and per share data

progr
Preferred stock

312

Eg@'g" ING T Q& Pe 1St C kDO 171037 § 163408,

312

Common equity

$ 170,725 $ 163,156

Less:

Goodwill 26,339 26,152
Intangible assets

(other than MSRs) 7,280 7,504
Goodwill related to Asset®r Disc Ops

held for sale 147 o}
Intangible assets

(other than MSRs) related &ssets foi

Disc Opsheld for sale 18 o}
Related net deferred tax assets 53 56

Tangible common equity (TCE)

$ 136,888 $ 129,444

Tangible assets
GAAP assets

$1,947,815 $1,913902

Less:

Goodwill 26,339 26,152
Intangible assets

(other than MSRs) 7,280 7,504
Goodwill related to Assets for Disc Of

held for sale 147 o}
Intangible assets

(other than MSR<s)elated to Assets fo

Disc Ops held for sale 18 o}
Rdated deferred tax assets 358 359

Tangible assets (TA)

$1,913,673 $1,879,887

Risk-weighted assets (RWA)

$ 991607 $ 977,629

TCE/TA ratio 7.15% 6.89%
TCE/RWA ratio 13.8% 13.24%
Common shares outstanding €SO) 29,206.4 29,058.4
Book valueper share

(common equity/CSQO) $ 5.85 $ 5.61
Tangible book value per share (TCE/CSO$ 4.69% 4.45
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Capital Resources of Citigrou
Citigroupébés U.S. subsidsocary d
subject to riskbased capital guidelines issued by their
respective primary federal bank regulatory agencies, which are
similar to the guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board.

The following table sets fortthe capital ratioof
Citibank, N.A., Citids primary subsidiary depository
institution, as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

pos Depo
e ito

0 sito
pos ry in

<

stitutions
ti

r
S ons ar e

Citibank, N.A. Components of Capital and Ratios Under
Regulatory Guidelines

Mar. 31, Dec. 31,

In billions of dollarsat periodend, except ratios 2011 2010
Tier 1 Common $106.4 $103.9
Tier 1 Capital 107.1 104.6
Total Capital (Tier 1 Capital + Tier 2 Capital) 120.3 117.7
Tier 1 Commorratio 15.13% 15.07%
Tier 1 Capital ratio 1523 15.17
Total Capital ratio 17.11 17.06
Leverage ratio 9.36 8.88

There are various legal and regulatory limitations on the
ability of Citigroupbs subsidiary depository institutions
dividendsto Citigroup and its no#ibank subsidiaries. In
determining the declaration of dividends, each depository
institution must also consider its effect on applicable-risk
based capital and Leverage ratio requirements, as well as
policy statements of the federal regairy agencies that
indicate that banking organizations should generally pay
dividends out of current operating earnings. Citigroup did not
receive any dividends from isubsidiarydepository
institutionsduringthe first quarter oe011.See al s@ A Fundi n
and Liquidityd Liquidity Transfer Between Entitiés b el o w.

30
CITIGROUPi 2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@



Impact of Changeson Capital Ratios
The following table presents the estimated sensitivity of

Citigroupébés and Citibank, N.A.6s capital ratios to changes
$100 million in Tier 1 Common, Tier 1dpital or Total
Capital (numerator), or changes of $1 billion in rigkighted
assets or adjusted average total assets (denominator), based on
financial information as dflarch 31, 2011This information
is provided for the purpose of analyzing the imghat a
change in Citigroupés or Citibank, N. A. 6s financi al posi ti
results of operations could have on these ratios. These
sensitivities only consider a single change to either a
component of capital, risweighted assets, or adjusted
average total asts. Accordingly, an event that affects more
than one factor may have a larger basis point impact than is
reflected in this table.
Tier 1 Common ratio Tier 1 Capital ratio Total Capital ratio Leverage ratio
Impact of $1 Impact of $1 Impact of $1
Impact of $100 Impact of $1 billion change billion change Impact of  billion change
million change billion change in Impact of $100 inrisk-  Impact of $100 in risk- $100 million in adjusted
in Tier 1 risk-weighted million change in weighted  million change weighted change in  average total
Common assets Tier 1 Capital assets in Total Capital assets Tier 1 Capital assets
Citigroup 1.0 bps 1.1bps 1.0 bps 1.3bps 1.0 bps 1.7 bps 0.5 bps 0.4bps
Citibank, N.A. 1.4 bps 2.2bps 1.4 bps 2.2bps 1.4 bps 2.4 bps 0.9 bps 0.8 bps

Broker-Dealer Subsidiaries

At March 31, 2011Citigroup Global Markets Inc., a broker
dealer registered with the SEC that is an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc.,

had net capital, computédn accor dance with
capital rule, of $.9billion, which exceeded the minimum
requirement by %.2 billion.

I n additi on,othertwakdardedlen of Ci t

subsidiaries are subject to regulation in the countries in which
they do businessnéluding requirements to maintain specified

l evel s of net capital o-dealdrt s
subsidiaries were in compliance with their capital
requirements atarch 31, 2011

31

Regulatory Capital Standards Developments

The prospectiveagulatory capitastandards for financial
institutions are currently subject significantdebate,

rulemaking activity and uncertainty, both in the Ua8d
inteation&llf£ Bod asdiseussion of these developments, see
ACapital Re s o wWrCaptatResowrabd Li qui d
Regul atory Capital Standar ds
iArthsal Reporbn Form 16K.

equi val ent . Citigroupds broke

CITIGROUPT 2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@



FUNDING AND LIQUIDITY have excess cash capit&lor additional information on

i Citigroupés liquidity managem
Overview ) ) o iCapital ResouirFeuensd ianngd alnidg uLii dg
Citios funding and liquidity egbjesgti Zﬁeﬁcﬁt%rﬂ%n%ﬁ.{ﬂ.ll l'y "are to
maintain ample liquidity to fund its existing asset baseals Citios primary sources of f
as grow its core businesses in Citicorp, while at the sametime i t i 6s bank subsidiaries . whi
maintain sufficient excess liquidity, structured appropriately, lowestcost source of longerm funding, (ii) longterm debt
so that it can operate under a wide variety of market (including trust preferred securities and other koexgn
conditions, in.cluding market disruptions for both shartd collateralized financing) issued at the Agank level and
long-term periods. _ o certain bank subsidiaries, an

Due to various constraints that limit the free transfer of sources are supplemented by sttertm borrowings, primarily
liquidity or capital between Ciaffiliated entities (as _in the form of commercial paper and secured financing
discussed below), Citigroupos sqiilieRardedordolti Ghiel dhredméntsWhdpiichdsd) 4t € S
established by entity, and in aggregate, across: the nonbank level.

(i) the norbank, which is largely compsed of the parent As referenced above, Citigroup works to ensure that the

holding company (Citigroup), Citigroup Funding Inc. structural tenor of these funding sources is sufficiently long in

( CF1) and -dealef suisidiariesr(collectiviely relation to the tenor of its asset base. In fact, the kelyogoa

referred to inbarhkao) seaxnd oncjas; gbfg smanagement s to ensure that there is
(ii) Citidos bank subsidiari egycesstdhd i th@Rbiliy strbictuk 8d%K to prVidePexcess
At an aggregate level, Citi gqiidtytB Rk thdBbis. TheSexchs? lighidhySrdslitfg t N 2

there is sufficient funding in amount and tenor to ensure that from a longetterm tenor profile can effectively offset
aggregate liquidity resources are availat_nl_e- for these _e_ntities. potentia downward pressures on liquidity that may occur
The liquidity framework requires that entities be salffficient under stress. This excess funding is held in the form of
or nd providers of liquidity in their designated stress tests and aggregate liquidity resources, as described below.

Aggregate Liquidity Resources

Non-bank Significant bank entities Total
Mar. 31, Dec.31, Mar. 31, Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Mar.31, Mar.31, Dec.31, Mar. 31,
In billions of dollas 2011 2010 2010 201 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010
Cash at major central banks $12.1 $22.7 $9.5 $85.5 $82.1 $108.9 $97.6 $104.8 $118.¢
Unencumbered liquid
securities 83.4 71.8 72.8 167.6 145.3 128.7 251.0 217.1 201.5
Total $95.5 $94.5 $82.3 $253.1 $227.4 $237.6 $348.6 $321.9 $319.¢

As noted in the table above, Qdittiiggrroouuppddss abgagnrke gsautbes ildiigauriid

resources totaled3#8.6billion at March31, 2011 compared additional liquidity resources through unencumbered highly
with $321.9billion at Decembel, 2010 and $19.9billion liquid government athgovernmenbacked securities. These
atMarch31, 2010. These amounts are asp#riodend and securities are available for sale or secured funding through
may increase or decrease inprariodin the ordinary course of private markets or by pledging to the major central banks. The
business. During the quarter endédrch31, 2011, the intra liquidity value of these liquid securities was $167.6 billion at
quarter amounts did not fluctuate materially from the quarter March 31, 2011, compared wi#145.3 billion at December
end amounts noted above 31, 2010 and $128.7 billion at March 31, 2010. Significant

At March 31, 2 O-dankfcashbiotxi 0g r o u pathauntsiobaash and liquid securities are also available in
totaled $95.5 billion, compared with $94.5 billion at other Citigroup entities.
December 31, 2010 and $82.3 billion at March3110. This In addition to the highly liquid securities noted above,
amount includes the liquidity portfolio arfidashb o >heid in Citigr oup 06 sieslalsomiaintanuabdgional i a r
the United States as well as government bonds and cash held unencumbered securities and loans, which are currently
by Ci t i gr -dealerérgitiedin tioekJrited Kingdom pledged to the U.S. Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB) and
and Japan. the U.S. Feder al Reserve Bank

Citigroupébés bank gaelo6i di ari es had an aggre
approximately $85.5 billion of cash on deposit with major
central banks (including the U.S. Federal Reserve Bank,
European Central Bank, Bank of England, Swiss National
Bank, Bank of Japan, the Monetary Authority of Singapore,
and the Hong Kong Maatary Authority) at March 31, 2011,
compared with $82.1 billion at December 31, 2010 and $108.9
billion at March 31, 2010.
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Deposits
Citid deposit base stood at@®gbillion at March31, 20L1, as
compared with $85 billion at December 31, 2@ and 828

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt is an important funding source because of its
multi-year maturity structure. At March 31, 2011, lelegm

billion at March31, 2010. Deposits can biterest bearing or
norrinterest bearing. Of the $866 billion of deposits at March
31, 2011, $144 billion were neinterest bearing, compared to
$133 billion at December 31, 2010 and $112 billion at March Total

debt outstanding for Citigroup was as follows:

31, 2010. The remainder, or $722 billion, were interest In billions ofdollars Non-bank Bank __Citigroup ®
bearing, compared to $712 billion at December 31, 2010 and Long-term deb®® $267.4 $109.1® $376.5

$716 billion at March 31, 2010. (1) Total longterm debt 8BMarch31, 201l included $67.6billion of |
. . H HTH Otal longterm de arc y INCIU . 1hon or long-
Yearoveryear, deposits grew by $38 billion, 576, term debi related foonsolidated VIES

largely dye to FX.transIation' armigher deposiVqums in (2) Original maturities of one year or more.
Transaction ServicesndRegional Consumer Bankinghe (3) Of this amount, approximatel$.5billion is guaranteed by the FDIC
$21billion, or 3%,increase in deposifsom the fourth quarter under theTemporary Liquidity Guarantee ProgrdiiL.GP) with $18.5

; ; ; ; billion maturing in 2011 and $38billion maturing in 2012.
_?_];:r?s:l'a(?cr:lsr? ggmmngug;?r::sr;?;id balances in (4) At March31, 201, collateralized advancésm the FHLB were$17.5

billion.
Citigroup continued to focus on maintaining a

geographically diverse retail and corporate deposit base during
the first quarter of 2011. At March 31, 20Bpproximately
65% of deposits were locatemlitside of the United Statetn
addition, & of March 31, 2011, interebkaring deposits
payable by Citigroupds foreign and domestic banking
subsidiaries constituted 58% and 26% of total deposits,
respectively, while notinterestbearing deposits constituted
7% and 9%, respectively
The table belovdetails the longerm debt issuances of Citigroup during the past five quarters:
In billions ofdollars 1Q10 2010 3010 4010 1011
Unsecured longerm debt issued $1.3 $5.3% $7.6 $5.9? 6.8%
Unsecured longerm debt issued on a localurdry

level 1.7 0.9 2.1 2.2 1.3
Trust preferred securities 2.3 o} o} o] o]
Secured debt and securitizations 2.0 o} 0 25 o}
Total $7.3 $6.2 $9.7 $10.6 $8.1

(1) Includesissuance 0$1.9 billion of senior delduring the seconduarter of 2010 pursuant to tremarketing of $1.9 billion of Citigroup Capital XXX trust
preferred securities held by ADIA to enable the execution of a forward stock purchase contract in September 2010.

(2) Includesthe issuance ¢§1.9 billion of seniodebtduring the fourth quarter of 2010 pursuant torégraarketing of $1.9 billion of Citigroup Capital XXXI trust
preferred securities held by ADIA to enable the execution of a forward stock purchase contract in March 2011.

(3) Includes $0.5 billionfdong-term FHLB issuance.

Duringthe first quarter of 2011, Citi issued approximately
$6.3 billion of longterm debtexcluding FHLB issuanceCiti
continues to expect to refinance an aggregate of approximately
$20 billion of its maturing longerm dét during 2011,
meaning it currently anticipates approximately $14 billion of
issuance during the remainder of 2011. However, Citi
continually reviews its funding and liquidity needs, and may
adjust its expected issuances due to market conditions or
reguldory requirements, among other factors.
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The table below shows the aggregate annual maturiti€s of langterm debt obligations:

ExpectedLong-Term Debt M aturities as of March 31, 2011

In billions of dollars 20119 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total
Senior/subordinated debt $41.3 $63.3 $29.2 $24.5 $15.9 $88.4 $262.6
Local country maturities 6.2 5.2 3.8 23 17 5.0 24.2
Trust preferred securities o] o) o] 4 4 17.9 17.9
Securitized deband

securitizations 11.2 23.1 6.4 8.1 54 12.9 67.1
FHLB borrowings 12.5 0.5 2.5 o) o) 3.0 185
Total long-term debt $71.2 $92.1 $41.9 $34.9 $23.0 $127.2 $390.3

(1) Includes $13.8 billion dfrst quarter 2011 maturities.

Structural Liquidity and Cash Capital
The structural liquidity ratio, wibh is defined as the sum of

deposits,long er m debt and st ockhol dEitigedp's ®P AnntiayRe@od ond&orm K.
percentage of total assets, measures whether Citids asset
is funded by sufficientlylongl at ed | i abi | i t i e sCommetialPap&rs

structural liquidity ratio was 73% at March 31, 2073% at
December 31, 2010, and 71% at March 31, 2010.

Anot her measure of Citiés
capital. Cash capital is a more detailed measure of the ability
to fund the structurally il/I
sheet. Cash capal measures the amount of lotgrm funding
0 or core customer deposits, loterm debiand equity
available to fund illiquid assets. llliquid assets generally
include loans (net of securitization adjustments), securities
haircuts and o#r assets (i.e., goodwill, intangibles, fixed
assets). At March 31, 2011, both the +i@mk and the
aggregate bank subsidiariesdcash capital n e xces s
liquidity requirements In addition, as of March 31, 2011gth
nonbank maintained liquidity to meet all maturing obligations
in excess o& oneyear period without access to the unsecured
wholesale markets.

Short-Term Borrowings

As referenced above, Citi supplements its primary sources of
funding with shortterm borrowings. Shoiterm borrowings
generally include (i) secured financing (securities loaned or
sold under agreements to repurchase) and (i) $aort
borrowings consisting of commercial paper and borrowings
from banks and other market paipants

Secured Financing

Secured financing is
brokerdealer subsidiaries to facilitateistomematcheabook
activity and to efficiently fund a portion of the trading

inventory. Secured financing appearsasaligbjii on Ci t i
Consolidated Balance Sheet (A
Under Agr eement #sofMarch3& 201y c has

secured financing wasl87.8billion and averaged
approximately 814billion during the quarterSecured
financing atMarch31, 2.1 decreasedy $20.1billion from
$207.9 billion at March 31, 2010 and by $1.8 billion from
$189.6billion at December 31, 2M. Year over yearreverse
repos and securities borrowing increased 2§.8billion, and
increased by $14.5 billion as compatedhe fourth quarter of
2010.
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s subsidiaries, respéctively, was as dollotvsy

For additional information on Citi's secured financing
activities, including the collateralization of such activity, see
"Capital Resources and LiquidityFunding and Liquidity" in

At March31, 201 and December 31, 201€@mmercial paper
out st andi ng ndnbank e@itiesahddgoank u p 6 s
is cash

aVfarch@l, t i BecemhenBh s
2011 2010

qguid portion
In millions of dollars
Commercial paper

Bank

Non-bank

Total

$15,096
9,481
$24,577

$14,987
9,670
$24,657

pri mari |l

grl) At March31, 201 and December 31, 20, collateralized advances
flonh tHeAHLBsSvere ® billion and H0billion, respectively.

Other ShorTerm Borrowings
At Mar c h 31 ther2hdrietm bor@wings lese o
$54.0 billion, compared with $54.1 billion at December 31,
2010 andb78.5 billion at March 31, 2010. This amount
included $41.7 billion of borrowings from banks and other
market participants, which includes borrowings friima
FHLB. The average balance of borrowings from banks and
other market participants for the quarter ended March 31,
2011 was approximately billion. Other $iortterm
borrowingsalsoincluded $11.8billion of broker borrowings at
March31, 201, which averaged approximatelst &billion
during the first quarter of 2011.

See Note % to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
furtheriofordationd @ dCit hir gughp &€s t a v g i
outstanding longerm debt and sheterm borrowings.

Légeidity Transf er Between Entities

Sciidity is geherally sransfevable witHin tilembabkp | d
subject.to regulatory restrictions (if any) and standard legal
terms. Similarly, the nobank can generally transfer excess
liquidity into Citi 6s nkbNAKk
I n addition, Citigroupds
N.A., can lend to the Citigroup parent and bre#tealer only
in accordance with Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act.
As of March 31, 2011, the amount available for lending under
Section 23A waspproximately$25hbillion, provided the

funds are collateralized appropriately.
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Credit Ratings

Citigroupébés ability to access the capital mar ket s and ot he
sources of funds, as well as the cost of these funds and its

ability to maintain cerin deposits, is dependent on its credit

ratings. The table below indicates the current ratings for

Citigroup and Citibank, N.A.

Citigroupbés Debt Ratings as of March 31, 2011
Citigroup Inc./Citigroup
1)

Funding Inc. Citibank, N.A.
Senior Commercial Long- Short-
debt paper term term
Fitch Ratings (Fitch) A+ F1+ A+ F1+
Moodyds I nvestors Service (Moodyds) A3 P-1 Al P-1
Standard & Poorédés (S&P) A A-1 A+ A-1

(1) As a result of the Citigroup guarantee, the ratingaraf,changes in ratings for, CFl are the same as those of Citigroup.

Potential Impact of Ratings Downgrades
Ratings downgrades by Fitch, MoFkudhgrbas of blarch $1&2011 cacmetchddowngradef

material impacts on funding and liquidity through cash the senior debt/lonterm ratings of Citibank, N.A. could
obligations, reduced funding cagpty, and due to collateral result in an approximate $4.7 billion funding requirement in
triggers. Because of the current credit ratings of Citigroup, a the form of collateral and cash obligations. Because of the
onenotch downgrade of its senior debt/letggm rating may current credit ratings of Citibank, N.A., a enetch

or may not i mpact Citi gernmo up 6 s dowmmnade efitcseoadebt/lprgtprm rating ie unlikely to
rating by one notch. have any impact on its commercial paper/siemn rating.

As of March 31, 2011, i@ currently estimates that a one Citids significant bank entit
notch downgrade of both the senior debt/léagn rating of aggregate liquidity resources of $253.1 billion at March 31,
Citigroupandaoneot ch downgrade of Ci20ilgandmisgphéve detaileohtingency funding plans that
commercial paper/shetérm rating could result in the encompass a broad range of mitigating actions.
assumed loss of unsecured commercial paper ($8.7millio For additional information
and tender option bonds funding ($0.3 billion), as well as see fACapital Re$PBundingand Liqaiditd L i
derivative triggers and additional margin requirements ($0.5 iCredit Ratingso and t he0l®Ri s|

billion). Other funding sources, such as secured financing and  Annual Report on Form K.
other margin requirements for which there are no explicit
triggers, ould also be adversely affected.

As set forth in the table above, the aggregate liquidity
resour ces o f-badkientiiegstoodiap 6 s non
approximately $96 billion as of March 31, 2011, in part as a
contingency for such an event, and a broad rangatafating
actions are currently included in Citigroupbs detailed
contingency funding plans. These mitigating factors include,
but are not limited tpaccessing surplus funding capacity from
existing clients, tailoring levels of secured lending, adjusting
the size of select trading books, and collateralized borrowings
from significant bank subsidiaries.

Citi currently believes that a more severe ratings
downgrade scenario, such as a-watch downgrade of the
senior debt/londerm rating of Citigroup, acenpanied by a
onenotch downgrade of Citi-groupbdbs commerci al paper/ short
term rating, could result in an additional $1.7 billion in
funding requirements in the form of cash obligations and
collateral.
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MANAGING GLOBAL RISK

Citigroupébés risk management

f r a me wo Wdd&ineth independenterisk managemeny

functions for each business and region, as well as-tiesisesproduct expertise. The Citigroup risk management framework is

morefullydescri bed

CREDIT RISK

Loan and Credit Overview
As of March 312011, Citigroupd aggregate loan portfolio
was$637.1 billion, downfrom $648.8 billion in the fourth
quarter of 2010 and $721.8 billion in the prygrar period.
Citids total all owa3é6ebilionfato r
March 31,2011, a coverage ratio &.79% of total loans,
downfrom 6.31% at December 31, 2018c26.80% at March
31, 2010

Net credit losses of@b3 billion duringthe first quarter of
2011decrease®2.1billion from yearago levels. The
decreaseonsisted of net decrease 8.6 billion for
Consumetoans (mainly a$1.7 hllion decrease ihCL and a
$932million decrease iIRCB) partially offset by an increase
of $485million for Corporatdoans ($108 million inICG and
approximately $380 milliom SAB. The increase in net credit
losses for Corporate loans during the first quarter of 2044 w
due to the higher cost of loans sales, as well as losses from
loans to specific counterparties for which reserves had

200 Athual Regort onu-prid $KI.

previously been established and were released in the current

quarter

Consumenonaccrual loangexcluding credit card
receivablesjotaled 9.3 billion at March31, 2011, compared
to $10.8 billion at Decembef1, 2010 and $5.6 billion at
March31, 2010. For totalConsumetoans,the 90 days or
morepast dualelinquency rate waa68% atMarch 31, 2011,
compared t@2.99% atDecembef31, 2010 andl.02% a year
ago.The 30 to 89 days past d@ensumetoan delinquency
rate wa2.56% atMarch31, 2011, compared t@.92% at
December 312010 and 21% a year agdDuring thefirst
quarter of 201, early and laterstage delinquencies impres
on a dollar and rate basisross most of thEonsumetoan
portfolios, driven by improvement in North America
mortgages, both iresidential first mortgageend home equity
loans Citi-branded cards in Citicorp ametail partner cards in
Citi Holdings The improvement imesidential first mortgages
was driven bycontinuedasset sales and loans moving from
trial to permanent modificatomn der Ci t i 0s
programs

Corporate noraccrual loans were5% billion at March
31, 2011, compared to &6 billion at December 312010 and
$12.9 billion a year ago.The decrease in negrccrual loans
from the prior quarter was mainly duette recapitalization
of Maltby Acquisitions LimitedMaltby), the holding
company that controls EMI Group Ltd., duritiee first quarter
of 2011 whichresulted n Ci t i 6s
Mal t by 6s s har eloac salpsi virigoffs,anda s
paydowns

acquisition
wel |
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During thefirst quarter of 201, Citi had a net release of
$3.3 billion from its credit reserveand allovance for
unfunded lending commitmentsompared to a net release of
$2.3hillion in thefourth quarter of 201@&nd anetreleaseof
$6amillion is thedirst quantet od 20@. The r8leaseconsisted
of anetreleaseof $2.0 Lllion for Consumer loanémainly an
$862million releag in RCBand a$1.1 hllion releasen LCL)
andanetrelease o$1.4 billion for Corporate loans
principally related to previously established reserves for
specific loans that offset chargéfs taken in the current
quarter($391 milion in ICG and approximately $1.0 billioim
SAB. Despite the reserve release during the quarter for
Consumer loans, the coincident months of net credit loss
coverage for the Consumer portfolio increased from 17.2
months in the fourth quarter of 201018.1 months at March
31, 2011, and increased from the yago level 0fl5.5
months.

During the first quarter
foreclosure inventory continued to increase. As previously

disclosed, to datehis increaséas been offsetinpaoy Ci t i 6 s

continued loan sales awgdnversios of trial modifications to

permanent modifications (see
Lendingd Consumer Mortgage Quarterly Tredds
Del i nquencies and Net Credit

these actions do not offset @itsontinued backlog iits

foreclosure inventoryC i tfareklesure inventory will further
increase,wiih has broader
Consumer mortgage portfolios. Specifically, if Citigroup is

unable to take possession of the underlying assets and sell the

properties on a timely basis, growth in foreclosure inventory
could:

1 increasehe amount of 180+ day delinquencies in

Citigroupbés mortgage stati
1 increase Consumer natcrual loans (90+ day
delinquencies);
modi fV1cqhieythe a dampening effect
margin as notaccrual assets build on the balance

sheet;

1 negativey impact the amount ultimately realized for
property subject to foreclosurthéreby increasing
thehseverityo risk, given
home prices in particular markets); and

1 cause additional costs to be incuriedollecting

o thesejagsgts@s well as pursuapaiential
aggvernmental actions in the foreclosure area
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Loans Outstanding

1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 3rd Qtr.  2ndQtr. 1st Qtr.
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010
Consumer loans
In U.S. offices
Mortgage and real estdfe $147,301 $151,469 $158,986 $171,102 $180,33¢
Installment, revolving credit, and other 26,346 28,291 29,455 61,867 69,111
Cards 113,763 122,384 120,781 125,3% 127,81¢
Commercial and industrial 4,929 5,021 4,952 5,540 5,386
Lease financing 2 2 3 6 7
$292,341 $307,167 $314,177 $363,852 $382,65¢
In offices outside the U.S.
Mortgage and real estdfe $53,030 $ 52,175 $50,692 $ 47,921  $49,421
Instalment, revolving credit, and other 38624 38,024 39,755 38,115 44,541
Cards 36,848 40,948 39,466 37,510 38,191
Commercial and industrial 19632 18,584 17,653 16,420 14,82¢
Lease financing 626 665 639 677 771
$148,760 $150,396 $148,205 $140,643 $147,7%
Total consumer loans $441,101 $457,563 $462,382 $504,495 $530,40¢
Unearned income 112 69 722 951 1,061
Consumer loans, net of unearned income $441,213 $457,632 $463,104 $505,446 $531,46¢
Corporate loans
In U.S. offices
Commercial and indstrial $ 15426 $ 14,334 $ 11,750 $ 11,656  $15,55¢
Loans to financial institutions 29,361 29,813 29,518 31,450 31,27¢
Mortgage and real estéfe 19,397 19,693 21,479 22,453 21,287
Installment, revolving credit, and other 13,712 12,640 16,182 14,812 15,792
Lease financing 1,395 1,413 1,255 1,244 1,239
$ 79291 $ 77,893 $ 80,184 $ 81,615 $85,151
In offices outside the U.S.
Commercial and industrial $ 71,81 $ 69,718 $ 67,531 $ 63,355 $62,85¢
Installment, revolving credit, and other 13,551 11,829 10,586 11,174 10,95¢€
Mortgage and real estdfe 6,086 5,899 6,272 7,301 9,771
Loans to financial institutions 22,965 22,620 24,019 20,646 19,002
Lease financing 511 531 568 582 663
Governments and official institutions 2,838 3,644 3,10 3,306 3,373
$117,332 $114,241 $112,155 $106,364 $106,62(
Total corporate loans $196,623 $192,134 $192,339 $187,979 $191,771
Unearned income (700) (972) (1,132) (1,259) (1,436)
Corporate loans, net of unearned income $195,923 $191,162 $191,207 $186,20 $190,33¢
Total loansd net of unearned income $637,136 $648,794 $654,311 $692,166 $721,80¢
Allowance for loan losséson drawn exposures (36,568) (40,655) (43,674) (46,197) (48,746,
Total loansd net of unearned income and allowance for credit losses $600568 $608,139 $610,637 $645,969 $673,05¢
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total lo@nset of
unearned incomé 5.79% 6.31%  6.73%  6.72% 6.80%
Allowance for consumer loan losses as a percentage of total consumer
loansd net of unearned incomé& 7.47% 7.77% 8.16% 7.87% 7.84%
Allowance for corporate loan losses as a percentage of total corporate
loansd net of unearned incomé& 1.99% 2.76%  3.22% 3.59% 3.90%

(1) Loans secured primarily by real estate.

(2) All periodsexclude loans which aregied at fair value.
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Details of Credit Loss Experience

1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 1st Qtr.
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010
Allowance for loan losses
at beginning of period $40,655 $43,674 $46,197 $48,746 $36,03
Provision for loan losses
Consumer $ 3,444 $ 4,858 $5,345 $6,672 $ 8,244
Corporate (545) (219) 321 (149) 122
$ 2,899 $ 4,639 $ 5,666 $ 6,523 $ 8,366
Gross credit losses
Consumer
In U.S. offices $4,704 $5,231 $5,727 $6,379 $ 6,846
In offices outside the U.S. 1,429 1,620 1,701 1,774 1,797
Corporate
In U.S. offices 291 677 806 563 404
In offices outside the U.S. 707 256 265 290 155
$7,131 $7,784 $ 8,499 $ 9,006 $ 9,202
Credit recoveries
Consumer
In U.S. offices $ 396 $314 $ 341 $ 345 $ 323
In offices outside the U.S. 317 347 350 318 300
Corporate
In U.S. offices 51 159 78 307 177
In offices outside the U.S. 98 110 71 74 18
$ 862 $ 930 $ 840 $ 1,044 $ 818
Net credit losses
In U.S. offices $4,548 $5,435 $6,114 $6,290 $6,750
In offices outside the U.S. 1,721 1,419 1,545 1,672 1,634
Total $ 6,269 $ 6,854 $ 7,659 $ 7,962 $ 8,384
Othe® net@EAO $ (717) $ (804) $ (530) $ (1,110) $ 12,731
Allowance for loan losses at end of peridd $36,568 $40,655 $43,674 $46,197 $48,746
Allowance for loan losses as a % of total loa 5.79% 6.31% 6.73% 6.72% 6.80%
Allowancefor unfunded lending
commitmeng” $ 1,105 $ 1,066 $ 1,102 $ 1,054 $ 1,122
Total allowance for loan losses
and unfunded lending commitments $37,673 $41,721 $44,776 $47,251 $49,868
Net consumer credit losses $ 5,420 $ 6,190 $ 6,737 $ 7,490 $ 8,020
As a percenige of average consumer loans 4.8%% 5.3%% 5.78% 5.75% 6.04%
Net corporate credit losses $ 849 $ 664 $ 922 $ 472 $ 364
As a percentage of average corporate loans 0.4%% 0.33% 0.49% 0.25% 0.19%
Allowance for loan losses at end of peridd
Citicorp $15,597 $17,075 $17,371 $17,524 $18,503
Citi Holdings 20,971 23,580 26,303 28,673 30,243
Total Citigroup $36,568 $40,655 $43,674 $46,197 $48,746
Allowance by type
Consumép $32,726 $35,445 $37,607 $39,578 $41,422
Corporate 3,842 5,210 6,067 6,619 7,324
Total Citigroup $36,568 $40,655 $43,674 $46,197 $48,746

(1) The first quarter of 2011 includes a reductiormpproximately $560 million related to the sale or transfers tofbelsiale of various U.S. loan portfolios and a

redwction of $240 million related to the announced sale of theBzgtdking PLCcreditcard business.
(2) The fourth quarter of 2010 includes a reductioaggroximately $00million related to the sale or transfers to kigldsale of various U.S. loan portifs.

(3) The third quarter of 2010 includes a reduction of approximately $54 million related to the announced sale of The Stu@ernpdadion (the allowance was
transferred to assets hdfr-sale). Additionally, the third quarter of 2010 includeeduction of approximately $950 million related to the sale or transfer to

held-for-sale of various U.S. loan portfolios.

(4) The second quarter of 2010 includes a reductiappfoximately $237 milliomelated to the transfers to hefat-sale of tle Canada cards portfolio and an auto

portfolio. Additionally, second quarter of 2010 includes a reduction of approximately $480 million related to the sasfens tiaheldor-sale of U.S. real

estate lending loans.

(5) Thefirstquarterof 2010 priar i 'y i ncl udes
January 1, 201@&ndreductions of approximately $640 million related to the sale or transfer tddneddle of U.S. and W. real estate lending loans.

(6) Included in the allowance for loan losses are reserves for loans which have been modified subject to troubled delngegfids) 0f$8,417 million, $7,609
million, $7,090 million, $7,320 millionand$6,926 millionasof March 31, 201, December 31, 2M, September 30, 20, June 30, 2010 and March 31, 2010,

respectively.

$13.

4 billion

rel ated

to the

i mpac 6700 f

(7) Represents additional credit loss reserves for unfunded corporate lending commitments and letters of credit r@toedddabilitieson the Consolidated

Balance Sheet.
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B8 All owance for | oan |l osses represents management 8s dblebdsesekteditoteagee of pr ¢
individually evaluated impaired loans and TDRs. Attribution ofah@vance is made for analytical purposes only, and the entire allowance is available to absorb
probable credit losses inherent in the overall portfolio.

(9) Included in thdirst quarter of 201 Consumer loan loss reserve E58billion relatedto Citd s gl o b a l credit card portfolio.
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Impaired Loans, NonrAccrual Loans and Assets, and
Renegotiated Loans

The foll owing
Loans,-AcdiNoal Loans and
Loans. 0 T h e ruat ofiogerlappmangthredea i n
categoriesThe following general summary provides a basic
description of eachategory

pages include

Impaired Loans:

1 Corporate loans are identified as impaired when they
are placed on neaccrual status; that is, when it is
determined thathe payment of interest or principal is
doubtful.

1 Consumer impaired loans include: @Qdnsumer
loans modified in troubled debt restructurings
(TDRs) where a longerm concession has been
granted to a borrower in financial difficulty; and (ii)
nonaccrud Consumer (commercial market) loans.

1 Consumer impaired loans exclude smaliatance
homogeneous loans that have not been modified and
are carried on a neaccrual basis, as well as
substantially all loans modified for periods of 12
months or less.

Non-Accrual Loansand Assets

1 Corporateand Consumer (commercial marketn
accrual statuss based orthe determination that
payment of interest or principal is doubtfthese
loans are also included in Impaired Loans.

1 Consumer notaccrual status basedon aging, i.e.
theborrower has fallen behind in payments.

1 North Americabranded andetail partnercards are
not includedasunder industry standards, they accrue
interest untilchargeoff.

Renegotiated Loans:

1 BothCorporateand Consumeloans whoséerms
have been modifiesh a TDR
9 Includes both accrual and naecrualTDRs

Impaired Loans
Impaired loans are those where Citigroup believes it is
probable that it will not collect all amounts due according to
the original contractual terms of the lodmpaired loans
includeCorporateand Consumer (commercial marketn
accrual loans as well as smallzalance homogeneous loans
whose terms have been modi fi
financial difficultiesandCitigroup hasgranted a concession to
the borower. Such modifications may include interest rate
reductions and/or principal forgiveness.

Valuation allowances fampairedloans aredetermined
in accordance with ASC 3100-35 andestimated considering
all available evidence including, as appropridte present
value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the
|l oanés original contractual
value of the loan and the fair value of collateral less disposal
costs.
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As ofMarch 31, 2011Consumer smallebbalance
homogenoufoans included ishortterm modification
i prég@msnamaunted Bpp@ximately$s.obibion. Thel mpai r e

As s et allowarce fdr lodnRossesfq thdse l@ahsasdnaterially

a oopsistent with the requirements of ASC 31®35.
The following table presents imfmation about impaired
loans:

March 31, Dec. 31,
In millions of dollars 2011 2010
Non-accrual corporate loans
Commercial and industrial $ 1,98 $5,125
Loans to financial institutions 1,094 1,258
Mortgage and real estate 1,8% 1,782
Lease financing 42 45
Other 576 400
Total noraccrual corporate loans $ 5481 $ 8,610
Impairedconsumer loan
Mortgage and real estate $18,953  $17,677
Installment and other 3,343 3,745
Cards 6,276 5,906
Total impaired consmer loans $28,572  $27,328
Total @® $34,053  $35,938
Non-accrual corporate loans with
valuation allowances $ 3,031 $6,324
Impaired consumer loans with valuatior
allowances 27,360 25,949
Non-accrual corporate valuation allowal $ 898 $ 1,689
Impaired consumer valuation allowance 8,605 7,735
Total valuation allowances® $ 9503  $9,424

(1) Priorto 2008C i tfinadcsal accounting systems did not separately
track impaired smallebalance, homogeneo@®nsumetoans whose
terms were modifiedue t o t he borrower sd
was determined that a concession was granted to the borBmwealier
balanceConsumetoans modified since January 1, 2G8ounted to
$27 8 billion and $6.6billion at March 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010,respectively. However, information derived fr@n triskd s
management systems indicates that the amounts of outstanding modified
loans, including those modified prior to 2008, approxima®ei %

billion and $£8.2billion at March 31, 2011 and Decemb31, 2010,
respectively.

Excludes deferred fees/costs.

Excludes loans purchased for investment purposes.

Included in theAllowance for loan losses

fin

@)
©)
4

ed due to the borrowerds

effective rate, the secondary
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Non-Accrual Loans and Assets
The table bel ow
of the periods indicated. Nesccrual loans are loans in which
the borrower has fallen behind in interest payments or, for
Corporateand Consumer (commercial markketans, where

Citi has determined that the payment of interest or principal is
doubtful and which are therefore considered impained.
situations where Citi reasonably expects that only a portion of
the principal anbtbr interest owed will ultimately be collected,
all payments received are reflected as a reduction of principal
and rot as interest income. There is no industtige

Non-accrual loans

s u raocadAl lbapseas Ci

definition of nonaccrual assets, however, and as such,

analypisacrasghé isdustryisinot always comparable.
Corporate noraccrual loans may still be current on

interest paymentsut are considered neatcrual as Citi has

determined that thiiture payment of interesind/orprincipal

is doubtful.Consistent with industry conventions, Citi

generally accrues interest on credit card loans until such loans

are chargeaff, which typically occurs at 180 daysmtractual

delinquency. As such, the natcrual loan disclosures in this

section do not includ®.S. credit card loans.

1st Qtr. 4th Qtr.  3rd Qtr.  2nd Qtr.  1st Qtr.
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010
Citicorp $ 5102 $ 4909 $ 4928 $ 4510 $5,024
Citi Holdings 9,710 14,498 17,491 20,302 23,544
Total non-accrual loans (NAL) $14,812 $19,407 $22,419 $24,812 $28,568
Corporate NALW
North America $1997 $ 2,112 $ 3299 $ 4,411 $ 5,660
EMEA? 2,427 5,327 5,473 5,508 5,834
Latin America 606 701 658 570 608
Asia 451 470 517 547 830
$5481 $8610 $9947 $11,036 $12,932
Citicorp $3256 $3081L $291 $2573 $2975
Citi Holdings 2,225 5,529 6,986 8,463 9,957
$5481 $8610 $9947 $11,036 $12,932
ConsumerNAL
North America $ 7,068 $8540 $9,978 $11,289 $12,966
EMEA 667 662 758 690 790
Latin America 1,034 1,019 1,150 1,218 1,246
Asia 562 576 586 579 634
$ 9,331  $10,797 $12,472 $13,776 $15,636
Citicorp $1846 $ 1,828 $ 1,967 $ 1937 $ 2,049
Citi Holdings 7,485 8,969 10,505 11,839 13,587
$ 9,331  $10,797 $12,472 $13,776 $15,636

(1) Excludes purchased distressed loans as they are generally accreting interest uoffl. Whte carrying valuef these loans we®453 million at March 31, 2011,
$469 million at December 31, 2010, $568 million at September 30, 2010, $672 million at June 30, 2010, and $804 millbbn3at, R&0.
(2) Reflects the recapitalization of Maltby Acquisitions Limited, lioédingcompany that controls EMI Group Ltd., during the first quarter of 2011.

[Statenent continues on the nepage]
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Non-Accrual Loans andAssets (continued)
The table bel ow summar i zes (OREQ) asgetsoThiprépsesethe darying valecaf all reatestate e o
property acquired by foreclosure or other legal proceedings whenaSitaken possession of the collateral.

Non-Accrual Assets

1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 1st Qtr.
OREO(in millions of dollars) 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010
Citicorp $ 776 $ 826 $ 879 $ 866 $ 881
Citi Holdings 787 863 855 800 632
Corporate/Other 14 14 7 7 8
Total OREO $1,577 $1,703 $1,741 $1,673 $1,521
North America $1,331 $1,440 $1,470 $1,422 $1,291
EMEA 140 161 164 146 134
Latin America 52 47 53 49 51
Asia 54 55 54 56 45
$1,577 $1,703 $1,741 $1,673 $1,521
Other repossessed assets $ 21 $ 28 $ 38 $ 55 $ 64
1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 1st Qtr.
Non-accrual assets (NAA) Total Citigroup 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010
Corporate NAL $ 5,481 $ 8,610 $ 9,947 $11,036 $12,932
Consumer NAL 9,331 10,797 12,472 13,776 15,636
NAL $14,812 $19,407 $22,419  $24,812 $28,568
OREO $ 1,577 $ 1,703 $ 1,741 $ 1,673 $ 1,521
Other repossessed assets 21 28 38 55 64
NAA $16,410  $21,138 $24,198 $26,540 $30,153
NAL as a percentage of total loans 2.32% 2.99% 3.43% 3.58% 3.96%
NAA as a percentage of total assets 0.84% 1.10% 1.22% 1.37% 1.51%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of IFAL 247% 209% 195% 186% 171%
1% Qtr. 4th Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 1st Qtr.
NAAS Total Citicorp 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010
NAL $ 5,102 $ 4909 $ 4,928 $ 4,510 $5,024
OREO 776 826 879 866 881
Other repossessed assets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NAA $ 5,878 $ 5735 $ 5,807 $ 5,376 $5,905
NAA as a percentage of total assets 0.44% 0.45% 0.45% 0.44% 0.48%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of AL 306% 348% 352% 389% 368%
NAAJ Total Citi Holdings
NAL $9,710 $14498  $17,491 $20,302 $23,544
OREO 787 863 855 800 632
Other repossessed assets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NAA $10,497 $15361  $18,346 $21,102 $24,176
NAA as a percentage of total assets 3.11% 4.28% 4.36% 4.54% 4.81%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of AL 216% 163% 150% 141% 128%

(1) The allowance foloan losses includes the allowance for credit cat®.@billion at March 31, 2011) and purchased distressed loans, while treconral loans
exclude credit card balances and purchased distressed loans, as these generally cortinedrtteszst until writeff.
N/A Not available at the Citicorp or Citloldings level.
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Renegotiated Loans

represent loansiodified inTDRs

In certain circumstances, Citigroup modifies certain of its
The following table presenGi t i 6 s rleansempicht i a t earporateloans involving a noitroubled borrower. These
modi fi cati ons snomnal snddrwritngt t o

standards for new loans and are made in the normal course of

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, business to match customerséo
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 products or programs (these nifaghtions are not included in
Corporate renegotiated loan§” the table above). In other cases, loan modifications involve a
In U.S. offices troubled borroweto whomCiti may grant a concession
Commercial and industrfé $ 199 $ 240 (modification). Modifications involving troubled borrowers
Mortgage and real estéte 298 61 may include extension of maturity date, reductiothe stated
Other 608 699 interest rate, rescheduling of future cash flows, reduction in
_ _ $ 1105 $ 1,000 the face amount of the debt, or reduction of past accrued
In offices outside the U.S. ) interest. In cases where Citi grants a concession to a troubled
Commercial and '”dusgf $ 213§ 207 borrower, Citi accounts for the modification as a TDRem
g:)hr;?age and real est 7; ig ASC 31040and the related allowance under ASC -306B5.
$ 298 $ 315
Total corporate renegotiated loans $ 1,403 $ 1,315
Consumer renegotiated loan§®©()
In U.S. offices
Mortgage and real estate $18900 $17,717
Cards 5,099 4,747
Installment and other 1,656 1,986
$25,655 $24,450
In offices outside the U.S.
Mortgage and real estate $ 931 $ 927
Cards 1,178 1,159
Installment and other 1,649 1875
$ 3,758 $ 3961
Total consumer renegotiated loans $29,413 $28,411

@

@)

©)

4)

®)
()
@)

Includes $705 million and $553 million of nawcrual loans included in

the nonaccrual assets table above, at March 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010, respectively. The remaining loans are accruing interest.

In addition to modifications reflected as TDRs at March2BiIL1, Citi

also modified $59 million and $362 million of commercial loans risk
rated fAiSubBPémhdamdn®onor worse (asset category defined
by banking regulators) in U.S. offices andifices outside the U.S.,
respectively. These modifications were not considered TDRs because
the modifications did not involve a concession (a required element of a
TDR for accounting purposes).
In addition to modifications reflected as TDRs, at 8faB1, 2011, Citi

also modified $161 million and $118 million of commercial real estate
ratPdrfisumshgodar dwboae (asset
defined by banking regulators) U.S. offices and in offices outside the

U.S., respectively These modifications were not considered TDRs

because the modifications did not involve a concession (a required

element of a TDR for accounting purposes).
Includes $2242million and $2751 million of nonaccrual loans
included in the nomccrual asssttable above dflarch 31, 201%nd
December 31, 20, respectively. The remaining loans are accruing

l oans ri sk

interest.

Includes 48 million and $22 millionof commercial real estate loans at
March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively

Includes $65 million and .77 million of commercial loans aflarch

31, 2011 and December 31, 20i€spectively.

Smallerb al anc e
management systems.

homogeneous

|l oans were derived
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North America Consumer Mortgage Lending

Overview

Ci tNorthAmericaConsumemortgage portfolio
consists of bothesidential first mortgagesnd home equity
loans. Home equity loanisclude both fixed rate home equity
loans and loans extended under home equity lines of credit
which are typically in junior lien positions. As of March 31,
2011, the residential first mortgage portfolio totaled
approximately 98 billion, while the home guity loan
portfolio was approximately4 billion. Although the
majority of theConsumemortgage portfolio is recorded in
LCL within Citi Holdings, there are $2 billion of residential
first mortgagesind $! billion of home equity loans reported in
Citicorp.

Ci tresidentiafirst mortgage portfolio includes $2.
billion of loans with FHA or VA guarantees. These portfolios
consist of loans originated to let-moderateincome
borrowers with lower FICO (Fair Isaac Corporation) scores
and generally haveigher loanto-value ratios (LTVS). Losses
on FHA loans are borne by the sponsoring agency, provided
that the insurance has not been breached as a result of an
origination defect. The VA establishes a ldawel loss cap,
beyond which Citi is liable for Ies FHA and VA loans have
high delinquency rates but, given the guarantees, Citi has
experienced negligible credit losses on these loans. The
residentiaffirst mortgage portfolio also includes $1kilion of
loans with LTVs above 80%, which have insuratiteugh
private mortgage ingance (PMI) companies, and $hiflion
of loans subject to lonterm standby commitments (LTSC),
with U.S. governmenrsponsored entities (GSES), for which
Citi has | imited exppaeequy t
loan potfolio also includes $0.5illion of loans subject to
LTSCs with GSEs, for which Citi has limited exposure to
credit | osses. Citids alsl
into consideration the impact of these guarantees.
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Consumer Mortgage Quarterlirend® Delinquencies and
Net Credit Losses
The following charts detail the quarterly trends in
delinguencies and net
mortgage and home equity loan portfoliodNiorth America
As set forth in the charts belowelthquencies of 90 days or
more in botlresidential first mortgagesnd home equity loan
continued to improve during the first quarter of 2011.

For residential first mortgageslelinquencies of 90 days
or more were down for the fifth consecutive quarded were
down more than 50% from the yeagoperiod Net credit

losses increased slightly from the fourth quarter of 2010 due to

lower recoveries, but were down approximately 24% from the
yearagoperiod The sequential decline iesidentiafirst
mortgage delinquencies was mostly dueCto t i 6 s
asset sales and trial modifications converting into permanent
modifications. During the first quarter of 2011, Citi sold
approximately$1.1 billion in delinquenfirst mortgagesand

has sold approximale$6 billion of delinquent mortgages
since thebeginningof 201Q In addition, over the past eight
quarters, Citi has converteghproximately$5.3 billion of trial
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modi fications under Citiéds 1o
permanent modificatiws, more than threguartersof which
were pursuant to the U.S. Tr e
Modification Program (HAMP)For i nf or mat i on
loan modification programs regarding mortgages, see
AfiConsumer Loan Modification P
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Residential First Mortgages
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—+—=NCL % —&—90+DPD %

6.11%

$7.6

6.31%

5.27%
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Note: Includes loans for Canada and Puerto Rigaludes loans that are guaranteed by U.S. government agencies.
Home Equity Loans
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Note: Includes loans for Canada and Puerto Rico.
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Consumer Mortgage FICO and LTV

Data appearing in the tables below édeen sourced from
Citigroupébés risk systems
disclosures elsewhere generally due to differences in
methodology or variations in the manner in which information
is capturedThe data has beendlassified to conform tde
current period's presentatidditi has noted such variations in
instances where it believes they could be material to reconcile
to the information presented elsewhere.

Citi doesnot offer option adjustable rate mortgages
(ARMSs)/negative amortizinghortgage products to its
customers. As a result, option ARMs/negative amortizing
mortgages represent an insignificant portion of total balances
since they were acquired only incidentally as part of prior
portfolio and business purchases.

A portion of loars in the U.S. Consumer mortgage
portfolio currently require a payment to satisfy only the
current accrued interest for the payment period, or an interest
only paymentAs of March 31, 2011C i thbndesquityoan
portfolio includel approximately 26 billion of home equity
lines of credit (HELOCS) that are still within their revolving
period and have not commenced amortization. The interest
only payment feature during the revolving perisgtandard
for the HELOC product across the industry. Tesidental
first mortgage portfolio contains approximat&y6 billion of
ARMs that are currently required to make an intecgsy
payment. These loans will be required to make a fully
amortizing payment upon expiration of thigiterestonly
payment period, anahost will do so within a few years of
origination. Borrowers that are currently required to make an
interestonly payment cannot select a lower payment that
would negéively amortize the loanResidential first
mortgages with this payment feature are prarily to high
creditquality borrowers that have on average significantly
highe origination andefreshed FICO sces than other loans
in the residentiafirst mortgage portfolio.

Loan Balances

Residential FirsMortgagesd Loan BalancesAs a

consequere of the economic environment and the decrease in
housing prices, LTV and FICO scores have generally
deteriorated since originatioalthough the negative FICO
migration has generally stabilize@n a refreshed basis,
approximately33% of residential firstmortgage$ad a LTV

ratio above 100%, compared to approximately 0% at
origination. Approximately 2% of residential first mortgages
had FICO scores less than 620zorefreshed basis, compared
to 168% at origination.
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and,

Balances:March 31, 2015 Residential First Mortgages

At Origination FICO > 660

620< FICO<660

FICO <620 il e

LTV O 80%

80% < LTV <100%

LTV > 100%

620< FICO <

Refreshed 660

FICO > 660 FICO <620

LTV <80%

80% <LTV <100%

LTV > 100%

Note: NM& Not meaningfulResidentiafirst mortgage table extudes loans

in Canada and Puerto Rico. Table excludes loans guarantée8 by
government agencielans recorded at fair value and loans subjecT®Cs.
Table also excludes $illion from At Origination balances and $0.4 billion
from Refreshed balanséor which FICO or LTV data was unavailable.
Balances exclude deferred fees/costs. Refreshed FICO scores based on
updated credit scores obtained from Fair Isaac Corporation. Refreshed LTV
ratios are derived from data at origination updated using maialgdhe

Logic HousingPrice IndexHPI) or the Federal Housing Finance Agency
Price Index.

Home Equityd Loan Balancesin the home equitjoan

portfolio, the majority of loans are in the higher FICO
categoriesEconomic conditionand the decrease in haug
pricesgenerally caused a migration towards lower FICO
scores and higher LTV ratipalthough the negative migration
slowed.Approximately £% of home equityoanshad

refreshed LTVs above 100%, compared to approximately 0%
at origination. Approximatgl 17% ofhome equity loasihad
FICO scores less than 620 amefreshed basis, compared to
4% at origination.

Balances:March 31, 201160 Home Equity Loans

620< FICO <

FICO > 660 560

FICO <620

At Origination

LTV <80%

80% < LTV <100%

LTV > 100%

620< FICO <

FICO > 660 660

Refreshed FICO <620

LTV <80%

80% < LTV < 100%

LTV > 100%

Note: NMd Not meaningfulHome equityloans table excludes loans in

Canada and Puerto Rico. Table excludess subject taTSCs. Table also
excludes $2.billion from At Origination balances and S8illion from
Refreshed balances for which FICO or LTV data was unavailBalances
exclude deferred fees/cosRefreshed FICO scores are based on updated
credt scores obtained from Fair Isaac Corporation. Refreshed LTV ratios are
derived from data at origination updated using mainlyabee Logic Housing
Price Index(HPI) or the Federal Housing Finance Agency Price Index.
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Delinquencies Origination Channel, Geographic Distribution and
The tables below pride delinquency statistics for loans 90 or Origination Vintage

more days past due (90+DPD) as a percentage of outstandings The f ol | owi ng résiadntiars madtgageai | C
in each of the FICO/LTV combinations, in both tlesidential and home equitipanportfolios by origination chanels,
first mortgageandhome equityjoanportfolios, at March 31, geographic distribution and origination vintage.
2011 For example, loans viitFICO> 660 and LTV< 80% at
origination have a 90+DPD rate 8f1%. By Origination Channel

As evidenced by the tables belowahs with FICO scores Citids U.S. Consumer mortgage
of less than 62@ontinue tcexhibit significantly higher from three main channels: retail, broker and correspondent.

delinquencies than in any other FICO band. Similarly, loans ) o ) o
with LTVs greater than 100% have higher delinquencies than A  Retail: loans originated through a direct relasioip with

LTVs of less than or equal to 100%he dollar balanceand the borrower.
percentagesf loans90+DPD have declined for bothe A Broker: loans originated through a mortgage broker,
residentiaffirst mortgageandhome equity loan portfolios where Citi underwrites the loan directly with the
from December 31, 2010 borrower. N .
orrespondent: loans originated and funded by a thir

A C dent: | ted and funded by a third
Delinquencies: 90+DPD Rate8 Residential First party, where Citi purchases the closed loans after the
Mortgages correspondent has funded the loan. This channel includes

loans acquired in large bulk purchases from other
mortgage originators primarily in 2006 and 2007. Such

At Origination FICO >660 620<FICO < 66# FICO < 620
bulk purchases were discontinued in 2007.

LTV <80% 3.1% 7.6% 9.6%

80% < LTV <100% 5.9% 9.8% 12.3% Residential First Mortgages: March 31, 2011
LTV > 100% NM NM NM As of March 3L, 2011, approximately60% of theresidential
first mortgage portfolio was originated through thpdrty
620< FICO < channels. Given that loans originated through correspondents
iz e FICO 2660 M FICO =620 havehistoricallyexhibited higher 90+DPD delinquency rates
LTV O 80% than retail originated mortgas, Citi terminated business with

a number of correspondent sellers in 2007 and 2008. During
2008, Citi also severed relationships with a number of brokers,
LTV >100% maintainingonly those who have produced strong, high

quality and profitable volum&0+DPD delingiency amounts
have generally improved from December 31, 2010.

80% < LTV <100%

Note: NM& Not meaningful. 90+DPD are based on balances referenced in the
tables above.

Delinquencies: 90+DPD Rate® Home Equity Loans Residential
First
Mortgages

Channel 90+DPD *FICO < *LTV >

620< FICO < % Total % (40] 100%

660 FICO <620

At Origination FICO > 660

LTV <80%

80% < LTV < 100%

LTV > 100%

* Refreshed FICO and LTV.
620< FICO < Note: Residentiafirst mortgags table excludes Canada and Puerto Rico,
Refreshed FICO > 660 660 FICO <620 deferred fees/costs, loans recorded at fair value, loans guarantdesl. by

m government agenciesd loans subject to LTSCs.
0

80% < LTV <100%

LTV > 100%

Note: NMO Not meaningful. 90+DPD are based on balances referenced in
the tables above.
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Home Equity Loans March 31, 2011

Forhome equity loansapproximatelyt3%of the loans were
originated through thirgharty channels. As thesganshave
demonstrated a higher incidence of delinquencies, Citi no
longer originatefiome equity loanthrough thrd-party
channels.90+DPD delinquency amounts marginally
improved from December 31, 2010

CHANNEL Home |  Channel . FICO TV >
$ in billions Equity % Total 90+DPD % <620 100%

* Refreshed FICO and LTV.
Note: Excludes Canada and Puerto Raeferred fees/costnd loans subject
to LTSCs.

By State

Approximatelyhal f of Citi d6s U.S. Consumer mortgage
portfolio is located in five states: Califia, New York,

Florida, lllinois and Texas. These states repres@it of

Ci tresidentiafirst mortgages an86% of home equity

loans

With respect taesidential first mortgageflorida and
lllinois hadaboveaverage 90+DPD delinquency ratesof
March 31, 2011Florida has 8% of itsresidentialffirst
mortgage portfolio with refreshed LT¥ 100%, comparetb
33% overall forresidential first mortgagedlinois has45% of
its loan portfolio with refreshed LT% 100%. Texasdespite
having 3% of its portfolio with FICO< 620, hal a lower
delinquency rate relative to the overall portfolio. Texad ha
7% of its loan portfolio with refreshed LT¥ 100%.

In thehome equityoanportfolio, Florida continué to
experience abovaverage delinquencies 41% as of March
31, 2011, with approximately 67 of its loans with refreshed
LTV > 100% compared to 8% overall forthe home equity
loanportfolio.

By Vintage

For Citigroupés combined U.S. Consumer mortgage portfolio
(residentiaffirst mortgags andhome equity loang as of

March 31, 2011approximately half of the portfolio consest

of 2006 and 2007 vintages, which demonstrate above average
delinquencies. Imesidential first mortgagesapproximately

3% of the portfolio is of 2006 and 2007 vintagefich hal
90+DPD rates well above the overall portfolio rate7.1%

for 2006 and 7.7% for 200Th home equity loans, 98 of the
portfolio is of 2006 and 2007 vintages, which agaid higher
delinquencies compared to the overall portfolio rat8.2%

for 2006 and 8% for 2007.
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FICO and LTV Trend Information 8 U.S. Consumer Mortgage Lending

100 - Residential First Mortgages (in billions of dollars
>1 38.5 37.0 36.0 36.1
60 - : '
a0 {222 Lot 132 13.7 14.8
20 239 23.7 22.4 20.7 18.9
0 16.3 . 13.6 . 13.1 . 12.4 . 12.4 |
1Q10 2Q10 3Q10 4Q10 1Q11
OCL/ h x ccn OoCL/ h x ccn
OCL/ h * ccn OFICO<660,LTV> 10
Res Mortgage 90+ DPD % 1Q10 2010 3Q10 4Q10 1Q11
FIC® 660, LT\ 100% 0.4% 0.5% 0.5% 0.3% 0.4%
FI®>660, LTV > 100% 1.7% 2.0% 1.8% 1.3% 1.1%
FICO < 660, LRA100% 16.4% 15.3% 14.6% 12.8% 11.0%
FICO < 660, LTV > 100% 32.2% 27.3% 24.5% 20.4% 16.9%

Note:Residentiafirst mortgage charftableexcludes loans in Canada and Puerto Rico, loans guadante
by U.S. government agencidsans recorded at fair value and loans subject to LTSCs. Balances exclude
deferred fees/costs. Balances based on refreshed FICO and LTV ratiodalleatso excludes balances
for which FICO or LTV data was unavailabled(® billion in 1Q10, $0.4illion in 2Q1Q $0.4billion in

3Q1Q $0.4 billion in 4Q10, and $0.4 billion in 1Q11

Home Equity (in billions of dollars)
60
4 23.7
40 24.0 232 217 20.0
204 165 15.0 145 145 149
6.2 6.3 6.0 5.7 5.3
0 7.6 6.9 6.6 6.3 6.2
1Q10 2Q10 3010 4Q10 1Q11
OFICO<660,LTV>100% BECL/h ¥ ccnZ [ ¢4
OCL/h % ccnX [¢+x B malei/ h x ccnZ [ ¢
Home Equity 90+ DPD % 1Q10 2010 3Q10 4Q10 1Q11
FIC®> 660, LT\ 100% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
FICC>660, LTV > 100% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.3%
FICO < 660, LRA100% 6.6% 6.6% 7.4% 7.8% 7.5%
FICO < 660, LTV > 100% 12.8% 12.8% 12.3% 12.4% 11.4%

Note: Homeequity loanchart/table excludes loans in Canada and Puerto Rico, and loans subject to LTSCs.
Balances exclude deferred fees/coBtdances based on refreshed FICO and LTV ratios. Chart/table also
excludes balances for which FICO or LTV data was unavailable ($0.3 billion in 1Q10, $0.3 billion in

2Q10, $0.3 billion in 3Q10, $0.3 billion in 4Q10, and $0.3 billion in 1Q11).
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As of March 31, 2011 theresidentiafirst mortgage portfolio North America Cards
was approximately $88illion, a reduction of $1Billion, or

14%, from March 31, 2010 Residentiafirst mortgages with Overview

refreshed FICO scosdelow 660 and refreshed LTV above Ci tNorthAmericacards portfolio consists of its Giti

100% were $12.billion asof March 31, 2011$3.9 billion, or branded andetail partner cards portfoliosperted in

24%, lower than the balance asMfrch 31, 2010Similarly, Citicorpd Regional Consumer Bankiragnd Citi Holding$®
thehome equityoanportfolio was approximately $4billion Local Consumer Lendingespectively. As ofMarch 31, 2011
as ofMarch 31, 2011a reduction of & billion, or 14%, from the Cii-branded portfolio totaled 8aillion, while theretail
March 31, 2010Home equity loansvith refreshed FICO partner cards portfolio was $4illion.

scores below 660 and rfeeshed LTV above 100% were $6.2 Beginning as early as 280Citi actively pursued loss
billion as ofMarch 31, 2011$1.4 billion, or 18%, lower than mitigation measures, such as stricter underwriting standards
the balance as dflarch 31, 2010 Across both portfolios, 90+ for new accounts and closing higlk accounts,ii each of its
DPD rates have generally improved sihdarch 31, 2010 Citi-branded andetail partner cards portfoliods a result of
across each of the FICO/LTV segments outlined above, these efforts, igher risk customerkave either had their
particularly those segments with refreshed FICO scores below available lines of credit reduced or their accounts closed. On a
660. net basisthe end-of-periodtotal drawn (credit card loans

outstanding) and undrawonused linesgxposurdo credit
card customeraas down 7% in Citi-branded cards ar% in
retail partner cardeachversusthe prior-yearperiodlevels.
See AConsumer Loan béowforfi ca
a discussion o€ i tmodifieation programs for card loans.

Cards Quarterly Trends Delinquencies and Net Crid

Losses
The following charts detail the quarterly trends in
delinqguencies and netNorthr edi t

AmericaCiti-branded andetail partner cards portfolios,

which continued to reflect the improving credit quality of
these portfoliosluring the first quarter of 2011n Citi-

branded cards, delijmencies declined for the fifth consecutive
quarter andhet credit losses declined for tfaurth

consecutive quarter. etail partner cards, deljnencies
declined for the fiftrconsecutive quéer while net credit

losses declined for theeventhconsecutive quarter. For both
portfolios, earlystage delinquencies also continued to show
improvemenbn both a dollar and a rate basis
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Citi-Branded Cards

== NCL $B =—8— 90+ $B —¢— NCL % —#— 90+DPD %

10.67%

7.42%

$1.4
$1.7
$1.4
Ny * 2.97% "\-\_‘.
2.82% :
2.06% 1.96%
1Q09 2Q09 3Q09 4Q09 1Q10 2Q10 3Q10 4Q10 1Q11
Note: Includes Puerto Rico.
Retail Partner Cards NCL $B &— 90+ $B
—o— NCL % —8—90+DPD% ;3 790,
$2.8 11.71%
11.98% 10.29%

$2.0
$1.3
[ - —— $1.4

4.36% 4.40% —— _.\$i.l
3.47% 3.17%

1Q09 2Q09 3Q09 4Q09 1Q10 2010 3Q10 4Q10 1Q11

Note: Includes Canag®&uertoRico andInstallment Lending.
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North America Cardd FICO Information

During the first quarter of 2011he cards businessginthe
U.S.began using a more updated FICO model to score
customer accounfsr substantially all of their loan3he
change was ade to incorporate a more recent version of
FICO in order to improve the predictive strength of the score
and to enhance Citi's ability to managkrThis change
resulted in an increase in therpentag®f balances with

FICO scores equal to or greatbah 660 and conversely
lowering the prcentagef balances with FICO scores lower
than 620, primarily in the Ciibranded portfolio and to a lesser
extent in theetail partner cards portfolidVithout the change

in FICO model, the percentages in the tdi@owwould have
beenthe same as the respective percentages as of December
31, 2010.

As set forth irthe table below, approximately 83of the
Citi-branded portfolio had FICO credit scores of at least 660
on a refreshed basis asMérch 31, 2011while 71% of the
retail partner cardgortfolio had scoresf 660 or above

Retail Partner

71%

Balances:March 31, 2011

Citi-Branded ‘

83%

620< FICO <660 9% 13%

16%

FICO <620 8%

Note: Based on balances of $1Hillion (decreased from $119llon at
December 31, 2010Balances include interest and fees. Excludes Canada,
Puerto RicaandInstallment and Classified portfolios. Excludes balances
where FICO was unavailableQ$ billion for Citi-branded, $.6 billion for

retail partner cards

The table below provides delinquency statistics for loans
90+DPD for both the Cibranded andetail partner cards
portfolios as oMarch 31, 2011As customers roll through the

delinquency buckets, they materially damage their credit score

and may ultimately go to chargeff. Loans 90+DPD are more
likely to be associated with low refreshed FICO scdreth
because low scores are indicative of repayment risk and
because their delinquency has been reported by Citigroup to
the credit bureaus. Loans withG®D scores less than 620,
which constitutd 8% of the Citibranded portfolias of

March 31, 2011have a 90+DPD rate &fL.2%. In theretail
partner cardportfolio, loans with FICO scores less than 620
constitutel 16% of the portfolio as oMarch 31, 201&nd

have a 90+DPD rate 40.1%.

90+DPD Delinquency RateMarch 31, 2011

Citi-Branded
90+DPD%

Retail Partner
90+DPD%

620< FICO < 660

FICO < 620

Note: Based on balances of $1Hillion (decreasd from $119 billion at
DecembeB1, 20D). Balances include interest and fees. Excludes Canada,
Puerto Rico and Installment and Classified portfolios. Excludes balances
where FICO was unavailableQ$ billion for Citi-branded, $.6 billion for

retail patner cards
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U.S. Installment and Other Revolving Loans

The U.S.Installment portfolio consists of Consumer loans in
the following businessesonsumeirfinance retail banking,
auto, studentlending anctards. Other Revolving consists of
Consumer loangeadycredit andcheckingplus products) in
the Consumeretail banking business. Commercialated
loans are not included. As bfarch 31, 2011the U.S.
Installment portfolio totaled approximately $Rillion, while
the U.S. Other Revolving portfoliwas approximately &0
million.

Substantially all of the U.9nstallment portfolio is
reported inLCL within Citi Holdings.As of March 31, 2011,
approximately 8% of the Installment portfolio had FICO
scoredess than 620n a refreshed basi®n a refeshed basis,
loans with FICO scores of less than 620 exhibit significantly
higher delinquencies than in any other FICO band and will
drive the majorityof the lossesThe 90+DPD delinquency rate
for Installment loans with FICO score less than 620 on a
refreshed basis was 7.9% at March 31, 2011.

For information on Citiés
regarding Install ment | oans
Modi fication Programso belo
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CONSUMER LOAN DETAILS

Consumer Loan Delinquency Amounts and Ratios

Total
loans® 90+ days past dué? 30i 89 days past dué”
Mar. Mar. Dec. Mar. Mar. Dec. Mar.
In millions of dollars, except EOP loan amounts in billions 2011 2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010
Citicorp @®
Total $2349 $2983 $ 3,114 $ 3,982 $ 3,362% 3,555% 4,400
Ratio 1.27% 1.35% 1.80% 1.4 1.54% 1.9%%
Retail banking
Total $125.3 $ 811 $ 772 $% 827 $ 1,145$ 1,14£$1,306
Ratio 0.6%%6 0.66% 0.75% 0.92% 0.98% 1.18%
North America 33.0 241 228 142 185 212 236
Ratio 0.75% 0.76% 0.45% 0.58% 0.71% 0.75%
EMEA 4.7 86 96 116 143 136 203
Ratio 1.83% 2.18% 2.37% 3.04% 3.09% 4.14%
Latin America 235 249 224 323 326 267 391
Ratio 1.06% 1.04% 1.66% 1.39% 1.24% 2.02%
Asia 64.1 235 225 246 491 533 476
Ratio 0.37% 0.37% 0.45% 0.77% 0.87% 0.87%
Citi-branded cards
Total $1096 $ 2,172 $ 2,341$ 3,155 $ 2,217% 2,407 3,094
Ratio 1.98% 2.05% 2.86% 2.02% 2.11% 2.81%
North America 73.2 1,432 1,597 2,304 1,327 1,538 2,145
Ratio 1.96% 2.06% 2.97% 1.81% 1.99% 2.76%
EMEA 2.9 60 58 77 78 72 113
Ratio 2.07% 2.07% 2.66% 2.69% 2.57% 3.90%
Latin Ameica 13.5 445 446 510 454 456 475
Ratio 3.30% 3.33% 4.21% 3.36% 3.40% 3.93%
Asia 20.0 235 240 264 358 340 361
Ratio 1.18% 1.18% 1.51% 1.79% 1.67% 2.06%
Citi Holdingsd Local Consumer Lending®®)
Total $207.1 $ 8,541 $10,22f $16,80¢ $ 7,62¢% 9,462%12,236
Ratio 4.33% 4.76% 5.66% 386% 4.41% 4.12%
International 18.1 571 657 953 815 848 1,059
Ratio 3.15% 3.00% 3.44% 450% 3.87% 3.82%
North Americaretail partner cards 41.3 1,310 1,610 2,385 1,515 1,751 2,374
Ratio 3.17% 347% 4.38% 3.67% 3.77% 4.36%
North America(excluding cards) 147.7 6,660 7,958 13,47C 5,294 6,863 8,803
Ratio 4.83% 543% 6.27T% 3.84% 4.68% 4.10%
Total Citigroup (excluding Special Asset Popl $442.0 $11,52¢ $13,33¢ $20,79C $10,98€$13,017$16,63€
Ratio 2.67% 299% 4.02% 2.59% 2.92% 3.21%
(1) The ratios of 98 days past due and B89 days past due are calculated Hame endof-period (EOP)loans.
(2) The 90+ days past due balances for @itanded cardsané t ai | partner cards are generally still accrui

on credit card loans until 180 days past due, sniegification of bankruptcy filing has been received earlier.

(3) The 90 days and 3089 days past due and related ratiodNorth America Regional Consumer Bankiglude U.S. mortgage loans that are guaranteed by U.S.
governmensponsored agenciemese the potential loss predominantly resides within the U.S. agencies. The amounts excluded fot Idays |88st due and
(endof-period loansare $352 million ($0.9 billiongind $£35million and ($0.8) billionat March 31, 2011 and December 31, 20E3pectively The amount
excluded for loans 3®9 days past due (erad-period loans have the same adjustment as above) is $52 raillib$30 million as of March 31, 2011 and

December 31, 2010, respectively

(4) The 90+ daysand 3089 days past due andated ratie for North America LCL(excluding cards) exclude U.S. mortgage loans that are guaranteed by U.S.
governmensponsored agencies since the potential loss predominantly resides within the U.S. agencies. The amounts excluded-fdaieapasidie and
(endof-period loans) for each period are $4.9 billion ($8.3 billid8)2 billion ($8.4 billion),and $5.2 billion ($9.0 billion) as of March 31, 2011, December 31,
2010, and March 31, 2010, respectiv@ljre amounts excluded for loans 80 dgs past due (endf-period loans have the same adjustment as above) for each
period are $1.4illion, $1.6 billion, and 1.2 billioms ofMarch 31, 2011, December 31, 2010, and March 31, 2010, respectively

(5) The March 31, 201,1December 31, 2010 dMarch 31, 201@oans 90+ days past due and 89 days past due and related ratiodNorth Americalexcluding
Cards) exclude 5 billion, $1.7 billion and $2.9 billion, respectivelyf loans that are carried at fair value.

(6) Total loans include ierest and fees on credit cards.
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Consumer Loan Net Credit Losses and Ratios

Avera?e
loans® Net credit lossed?
In millions of dollars, except average loan amounts in billions 1011 1Q11 40Q10 1Q10
Citicorp
Total $231.7 $2,108 $2,528 $3,040
Ratio 3.6%%0 4.4%% 5.5%%
Retail banking
Total $121.4 $ 277 $ 343 $ 28¢
Ratio 0.93% 1.18% 1.07%
North America 319 88 97 73
Ratio 1.12% 1.30% 0.92%
EMEA 45 23 44 47
Ratio 2.07% 4.06% 3.81%
Latin America 225 103 123 91
Ratio 1.86% 2.2% 1.99%
Asia 625 63 79 78
Ratio 041% 0.52% 0.59%
Citi-branded cards
Total $110.3 $1,831 $2,185 $2,751
Ratio 6.73% 7.8%% 9.96%
North America 739 1,352 1,671 2,084
Ratio 7.42% 8.80% 10.6®6
EMEA 29 26 29 50
Ratio 3.64% 4.11% 6.99%
Latin America 134 304 328 418
Ratio 9.20% 10.01% 14.01%
Asia 20.1 149 157 199
Ratio 3.01% 3.19% 4.53%
Citi Holdings & Local Consumer Lending
Total $ 2163 $3,279 $3,61€ $4,938
Ratio 6.15% 6.21% 6.30%
International 18.9 341 376 612
Ratio 7.32% 6.32% 8.27%
North Americaretail partner cards 438 1,111 1,352 1,932
Ratio 10.29% 11.79% 13.72%
North Americaexcluding cards) 153.6 1,827 1,890 2,394
Ratio 4.82% 4.64% 4.20%
Total Citigroup (excluding Special Asset Popl $448.0 $5,387 $6,146 $7,978
Ratio 4.88% 5.3%% 6.00%

(1) Average loanmcludeinterest and fees on credit cards.

(2) The ratios of net credit losses are calculbsestd on average loans, net of unearned income.
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Consumer Loan Modification Programs HAMP and OtherLong-Term Programs Long-term

Citigroup has instituted eariety oflong-term and shosterm modification programer TDRs @cur wherthe terms of a

modification programso assisits mortgage, credit card (Giti loan have been modified due to the borrdwéinancial

branded and retail partner cards) and installment loan difficulties and a longerm concession has been granted to the

borrowers with financial difficulties. These progranmelude borrower. Substantially albng-termprograms in place

modifying the original loan termseducing interest rates, provide interest rate reductiordee Note 1 to the

reducing or waiving feegxtending the remaining loan Consolidatedrinancial Statements @i t201® Annual

duration and/or waiving a portion of the remaining principal Report on Form 1K for a discussion of the allowance for

balance At March 31, 2011C i t sigriifisant modification loan losses for such modified loans.

programs consieloft he U. S. Tr eas g yds HoThefolldwing tablegradentSi t i gr oupds Con s

Modification ProgramKAMP), as well as shotterm and TDRs as of March 31, 2011 and DecemberZ10. These

long-term modification programis the U.S, as set forth in TDRs are predominantly concentrated in the BILBMP

the tables belowFor a more detailed description of these loans whose terms are contractually modified after successful

significant modi ficati on pr ogcomptesionofshe teal geldd areirgludedin tt Ibalancad Ri

0 CreditRisld Conssmer Loans Modificatibdomw Programso in

Citids 2010 Annu-H.I Report on Form 10

The policy for reaging modified U.SConsumer loans to Accrual Non-accrual

current status varies by product. Generally, one of the Mar. 31, Dec. 3, Mar. 31, Dec. 31,

conditions to qualify for these modifications is that a In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2011 2010

minimum nunber of payments (typically ranging from one to Mortgage and real estate $16,844 $15,14C $1,831 $2,29C
Cards 6,240 5,869 37 38

three) be made. Upon modification, the loan iaged to

current status. However,-eging practices for certain open
endedConsumer loans, such as credit cards, are governed by
Federal Financial InstitutiorlSxamination Council (FFIEC)
guidelines. For operndedConsumer loans subject to FFIEC
guidelines, one of the conditions for the loan to baged to
current status is that at least three consecutive minimum
monthly paymentsor the equivalent amountust be

received. In addition, under FFIEC guidelines, the number of
times that such a loan can beaged is subject to limitations
(generally once in 12 months and twice in five years)
FurthermoreFederal Housing Administration (FHA) and
Department of Veerans Affairs (VA)loans are modified
under those respective agenciesd guidelines, and payments
not always required in order to-age a modified loan to

current.

Installment and other 2,664 3,015 230 271
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Long-Term Modification Programsd Summary
The folowing table sets forth, as of Mar@, 2011, information relating t&C i t sigriifisant longterm U.S.mortgagegcreditcard

and installment loamodification programs:

Average Average
Program Program interest rate Average % tenor of Deferred Principal

In millions of dollars balance start date®™ reduction payment relief modified loans principal forgiveness
U.S. Consumer mortgage lending

HAMP $3,776 3Q09 4% 41% 3lyears $462 $3

Citi Supplemental 1,876 4Q09 3 23 27 years 84 1

HAMP Reage 399 1Q10 N/A N/A 24 years 8 o}

2nd FDIC 550 2Q09 5 45 2lyears 33 6

FHA/VA 3,673 2 20 28 years o} o}

CENAAOT 3,769 3 23 29years

RL 960 4Q10 2 14 30years o} o}

2 MP 194 4Q10 5 55 2lyears 10

Other 3,076 4 42 27years 48 a7
North Americacards

Paydown 2,787 16 o} 5 years

CCG 1,816 12 6] 5 years

Interest Reversal Paydown 433 20 o} 5 years
U.S.installment loans

CFNA AOT 790 7 33 9years
(1) Provided if program was introducesdter 2008.
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Short-Term Programs Citigroup has also instited
shorttermprograms (primarily in th&).S) to assist borrowers
experiencing temporary hardships. These programs include
shortterm (12 months or less) interest rate reductions and
deferrals of past due paymerge Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements @i t201® Annual Report on Form
10K for adiscussion of the allowance for loan losses for such
modified loans.

The following table presents the amounts of gross loans
modified under shotterm interest rate reduction programs in
the U.S.as ofMarch 31 2011:

March 31, 2011
In millions of dolars Accrual Non-accrual
Cards $2,200 $0
Mortgage and real estate 1,607 78
Installiment and other 965 118

Short-Term Modification Programsd Summary

The following table satforth, as ofMarch 31 2011,
information related t& i t sigréifisant shorterm U.S.credit
cards, mortgage, and installment loaadification programs:

Average
Average time period
Program Program interest rat for

In millions of dollars balance start dat® reduction reduction

UPP $2,200 20% 12 months
Mortgage

Tempoary AOT 1,677 1Q09 3 8 months
Installment

Temporary AOT 1,083 1Q09 4 7 months

(1) Provided if program was introducexdter 2008.

Payment deferrals that do not continue to accrue interest
(extensionsprimarily occur intheU.S. residential mortgag
businessUnder an extension, payments that are contractually
due are deferred to a later date, thereby extending the maturity
date by the number of months of payments being deferred.
Extensions assist delinquent borrowers who have experienced
shorttermfinancial difficulties that have been resolved by the
time the extension is granted. An extension can only be
offered to borrowers who are past due on their monthly
payments but have since demonstrated the ability and
willingness to pay as agreedther myment deferrals continue
to accrue interest and are not deemed to offer concessions to
the customer. Other types of concessions are not material.
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Impact of Modification Programs

Citi considers various metrics in analyzing the success of U.S.
modification programs. Payment behavior of customers during
the modification (both shoterm and longerm) is monitored.
For shoriterm modifications, performance is also measured
for an additional period of time after the expiration of the
concession. Balance rextions and annualized loss rates are
also important metrics that are monitored. Based on actual
experience, program terms, including eligibility criteria,
interest charged and loan tenor, may be refined. The main
objective of the modification programs sreduce the

payment burden for the borrower and improve the net present
value of Citibs expected cash

Mortgage Modification Programs

With respect to longerm mortgage modification programs,

for modifications in tthee #Oth
fi L o-fiegn Modification PrograndsSu mmar y o t abl
abovg, as of March 31 201henerally at 24 months after
modification, the total balance reduction has been
approximately 8% (as a percentage of the balance at the time

of modification), consisting of approximately 20% of

paydowns and@®% of net credit losses.

Regarding HAMP, 12 monttedfter modification, Citi
continues teexperiene re-default rates of approximately 15%
of the number of active HAM#hodified loans as of Mah
31, 2011. The CSM program has less vintage history and
l' imited | oss data but is trac
currently exhibiting redefault rates of less than 25% of active
modified loans as of March 31, 2011 at 12 months after
modification.

From inception through March 31, 2011, approximately
$10 billion ofresidential first mortgagdsave beernrolled in
the HAMP trial period, while $4 billion have successfully
completed the trial periodAs of March 31, 201135% of the
loan units in theHAMP trial period were successfully
modified, 14% were modified under the Citi Supplemental
program, 5% were in HAMP or Citi Supplemental trial, 2%
subsequently received other Citi modifications, 12% received
HAMP Re-Age, and 32% have not received any nficdtion
from Citi to date.

For modificati ontermAQTder
program,as of March 31 2011he total balance reduction has
been approximately 13% (as a percentage of the balance at the
time of modification) 24 months after modification, corisigt
of approximately 5% of paydowns and 8% of net credit losses.
The shorterm AOT program has less vintage history and
limited loss dataAs of March 31 2011, 1&honths after
modification, the total balances reductiwess beed %, with
approximately bIf coming from paydowsand the remaining
from net credit losses.
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Cards Modification Programs

Generally,as of March 31 2015t 36 months after
modification, the total balance reduction for letegm card
modification programs is approximately 819 @percentage
of the balance at the time of modification), consisting of
approximately 47% of paydowns and 34% of net credit
lossesln addition,thesenetcredit lossefiave been
approximately40% lower depending upon the individual
program and vintagdéhan those of similar card accounts that
were not modified.

For shortterm modificationsas of March 31 20124
months after starting a shagrm modification, balances are
typically reduced by approximately 64% (as a percentage of
the balance at thtime of modification), consisting of
approximately 25% of paydowns and 39% of net credit losses
In addition,these netredit lossehave beempproximately
25%1 33% lower, depending upon the individual program and
vintage, than those of similar ammts that were not modified.

As previously disclosed, Citigroup implemented certain
changes to its credit card modification programs beginning in
the fourth quarter of 2010, including revisions to the eligibility
criteria for such programsThese prograsiare continually
evaluated and additional changes may occur in 2011,
depending upon factors such as program performance and
overall credit conditions. As a result of these changes, as well
as the overall improving portfolio trends, the first quarterfo
2011t he over all volume of new entrants to Citids card
modification programsgboth long and shorterm)decreased
by 8% compared to the fourth quarter of 2010. New entrants
toCi tshodkterm card modification programs decreased by
approximately35% in the frst quarter of 201 as compared to
the prior quarter Citi consideedthese changes to its cards
modification programs and their potential effect on net credit
lossesn determining the loan loss reserves as of March 31,
2011.

Installment LoarModification Programs

With respect to the lonterm CFNA AOT programthirty-six
months after modification, the total balance reduction is
approximately 68%, consisting of approximately 19% of
paydowns and 49% of net credit losses. The dbom
Temporay AOT program has less vintage history and limited
loss data. In this program, twelve months after modification
the total balance reduction is approximately 16% (as a
percentage of the balance at the time of modification)
consisting of approximately 5% paydowns and 11% of net
credit losses.
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Consumer Mortgage Representations and Warranties RepurchaseWmnbeofiRakment s
The majority of Citids expos uinthedvantofadrrack o thesd regptesentationsandl war r

claims relates to its U.S. Consumer mortgage business. warranties, Citi may be required to either repurchase the
mortgage loans (generally at unpaid principal balance plus

Representation and Warranties accrued interest) with the identified defeatsindemnify

As of March31, 2011, Citi servicelwans previously sold as (Amavkoe 6) the investors for th

follows: representations and warranties are generally not subject to
stated limits in amount or time of coverage. However,

In millions March 31, 201® contractual liability arises only when the representations and

Number of Unpaid warranties are breached and gergmahly when a loss results

Vintage sold: loans principal balance from the breach.

2005 and prior 0.9 $ 89,204 For thequartersendedMarch 31, 2011 and 2010, 7@

2006 0.2 32,032 and7®%, respectively, of -w@Gdlet i 6s

2007 0.2 40333 payments were attributable to misrepresentation of facts by

2008 0.3 48.250 either the borrower or a third party.g., income, employment,

debts, FICO, etc.), appraisal issues (e.g., an error or

2009 0.3 54,004 . . .
misrepresentation of value), or program requirements (e.g., a
2010 0.3 51659 loan that does not meet investor guidelines, such as
2011 0.1 32,335 contractual interest rate). To date, there has not been a
Indemnification& 0.8 96.243 meaningful difference in incurred or estimated loss for each
Total 3.2 $444,060 type of defect.
In the case of a repurchase, Citi will bear any subsequent
(1) Excludes the fourth quartef 2010 sale of servicing rights on 0.1 credit loss on the mortgage loan and the loan is typically
million loans with unpaid principal balances of approximately $28,745 considered a creditpaired loan and accounted for under
million. Citi continues to be exped to representation and warranty o . .
claims on those loans. SOP033, fAAccounting for Certair
(2) Represents loans serviced by CitiMortgagesuant to prioacquisitions Acquired in a Transfero-3g,now
of mortgage servicing rightghich are covered by indemnification Receivabled Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with
agreements from third parties in favor of Siirtgage Deteriorated Credit Quality These repurchases have not had

a material impact on Céiis -pedonming loan statistics
because credimpaired purchased SOP-33oans are not
included in noraccrual loans, since they generally continue to
accrue interest until writeff.

The unpaid principal balance of loans repurchased due to
representén and warranty claims for titeree monthended
March 31, 2011 and 201@espectively, was as follows:

In addition, since 2000, Citi has sol@%illion of loans
to private investors, of which $49 billion were sold through
securitizations. As dflarch 31, 2011, $36illion of these
loans (including $14illion sold through securitizations)
continue to beserviced by @i and are included in the $444
billion of serviced loans above.

When selling a loan, Citi (through its CitiMortgage
business) makes various representations and warranties

relating to, among other things, the following: March 31, 2011 March 31,2010

Unpaid principal Unpaid principal

A Ci ti 6 shipofthelean;s In millions of dollars balance balance

A the validity of the lien securing the loan; GSEs $73 $87

A the absence of delinquent taxes or liens against the Private investors 1 4
property securing the loan; Total $74 $91

A the effectiveness of title insurance on the property ) )
securing the loan; As evidenced in the table a

A the process used in selecting the loamsrfdusion in a repurchases have primarily been from the U.S. government
transaction; sponsored entities (GSESs). In addition, Citi recorded make

A the loands compliance with ¥hplepaymepts ofd miljon and 2gnillignfarthe t er i a
established by the buyer; and qguartereendedMarch 31,2011 and 2010respectively.

A the |l oanés compliance with applicable |l ocal, state and
federal laws.

The specific representations and warranties made by Citi
depend on th nature of the transaction and the requirements
of the buyer. Market conditions and crediting agency
requirements may also affect representations and warranties
and the other provisions to which Citi may agree in loan sales.
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Repurchase Reserve A Claims appeal success rat@his assumption represents

Citi has recorded a reserve for its exposure to losses from the Citibébs expected success at
obligation to repurchase previously sold loans (referred to as the demand for more information, disputing the claim
the repurchase reserve) that is include®ter liabilitiesin validity, etc. This assumption is also based on recent
the Consolidaed Balance Sheet. In estimating the repurchase historical successful appeals rates. These rates could
reserve, Citi considers reimbursements estimated to be fluctuate based on changes in the validity or composition
received from thireparty correspondent lenders and of claims. During the second hatff201Q Ci t i 6 s a
indemnification agreements relating to previous acquisitions success rate improved fraime levelsseenin prior
of mortgage servicing rights. Citi aggsively pursues periods. In the first quarter of 2011, this assumption was
collection from any correspondent lender that it believes has stable compared to prior periodsy  C irecentd s
the financial ability to pay. The estimated reimbursements are experienceapproximately half of the repurchase claims
based on Citidés analysis of it sharedbeensoessullyappealed antl hageaesultedd mnd r e
and the financial solvency of the correspondents. loss to Citi.

In the case of a repurchase of a cradjpaired SOP 03 A Estimated loss given repurchase or makele: The
l oan, the difference bet ween t hassumpianoféhe esfinmted losyambunteer eepudthasen p
principal balance at the time of the repurchase is recorded as a or makewhole payment, or loss severity, is applied
utilization of the repurchase reserve. Maldeole payments to separately for each sales vintage totgepvolatile
the investor are also treated as utilizations and charged directly housing price highs and lows. The assumption is based on
against the reserve. The repurchase reserve is estimated when actual and expected losses of recent repurchases/make
Citi sells loans (recorded as an adjustment to the gain on sale, whole payments calculated for each sales vintage year,
which is included irDther revenuén the Consolidated which are impacted by factors such as macroeconomic
Statement of loome) and is updated quarterly. Any change in indicators, including osrall housing valuesSince the
estimate is recorded @ther revenue secondjuarter 0201Q loss severithas increased,

The repurchase reserve is calculated by individual sales including during the first quarter of 2011.

vintage (i.e., the year the loans were sold) and is based on

various assumptions. While substantially all of €i§ c ur r e rbbl
loan sales are with GSEs, with which Citi has considerable
historical experience, these assumptions contain a level of
uncertainty and risk that, if different from actual results, could
have a material impact on the reserve amounts. The most
significant assumptions used to calculate the reserve levels are

As set forth in the table below, duritiee first quarter of
1 the increasetbss severity estimategrimarily
contribukedto thechange in estimate for the repurchase
reserve amounting tol®2million. The activity in the
repurchase reserve for ttteee monthendedMarch 31 2011
and2010 was as follows:

as follows: Mar. 31, Mar. 31,

A Loan documentation request&ssumptions regarding In millions of dollars _ 2011 2010
future expected loan documentation requests exist as a Balance, beginning of period $969  $482
means to predict future repurchase claim trends. These  Additions for new sales 4 5
assumptions are bad on recent historical trends as well Change in estimate 122 -
as anecdotal evidence and general industry knowledge Utilizations (151) (37)
about the current repurchase environment (e.g., the level Balance, end of period $944 $450
of staffing and focus by the GSEs to Aputo more | oans

back to servicers). These factors are consideréukin
forecast of expected future repurchase claims and changes
in these trends could have a positive or negative impact
on Citids repurchase reserve. During 2010, |l oan
documentatiomequests increased compared to prior
periods. In the first quarter of 2Dlhowever Citi
observed a large decrease compared to prior periods,
althoughthe level of requests continues to be elevated and
will likely remainvolatile.

A Repurchase claims as a percentage of loan
documentation requests3iven that loan documentatio
requests are an indicator of future repurchase claims, an
assumption is made regarding the conversion rate from
loan documentation requests to repurchase claims. This
assumption is also based on historical performance and, if
actual rates differ in thiaiture, could also impact
repurchase reserve levelis percentage was generally
stableduring 2010 andh the first quarter of 2011.

60
CITIGROUPi 2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@



As referenced above, the repurchase reserve is calculated
by sales vintagel o date, he majoriy of C i tréporchases
have beeirfirom the 2006 through 2008 sales vintggekich
also represeptithe vintagesvith the largest loss severity. An
insignificant percentage of repurchabese beerfrom
vintages prior to 2006, and Cdontinues to believthat this
percentage will continue to decrease, as those vintages are
later in the credit cycle. Although still early in the credit cycle,
Citi hasalsoexperienced lower repurchases and loss severity
from 2009 and 2016alesvintages.

Sensitivity of Regrchase Reserve

As discussed above, the repurchase reserve estimation process
is subject to numerous estimates and judgments. The
assumptions used to calculate the repurchase reserve contain a
level of uncertainty and risk that, if different from actual

results, could have a material impact on the reserve amounts.
For example, Citi estimates that if there were a simultaneous
10% adverse change in each of the significant assumptions
noted above, the repurchase reserve would increase by
approximately $84 million as ofMarch 31, 2011 This

potential change is hypothetical and intended to indicate the
sensitivity of the repurchase reserve to changes in the key
assumptions. Actual changes in the key assumptions may not
occur at the same time or to thense degree (i.e., an adverse
change in one assumption may be offset by an improvement in
another). Citi does not belieutehassufficientinformation to
estimate aange of reasonably possible loss (as defined under
ASC 450)relating to its Consumer regsentations and

warranties

Representation and Warranty ClainBy Claimant

The representation and wantgt claims by claimant for the
threemonthperiodsendedMarch 31, 2011 and 2010
respectively, were as follows:

March 31, 2011 March 31,2010

Original Original

Dollars in Number of principal Number of principal
millions claims balance claims balance
GSEs 3,191 $715 2,785 $582
Private

investors 595 115 158 39
Mortgage

insurers?) 157 36 42 10
Total 3,943 $866 2,985 $631

(1) Represents thinsurer's rejection of a claim for loss reimbursement that
has yet to be resolved. To the extent that mortgage insurance will not
cover the claim on a loan, Citi may have to make the GSE or private
investor whole.
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The number of unresolvedaims by tye of claimant as
of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 203 pectively, was
as follows:

March 31, 2011 December 312010
Original Original
Dollars in Number of principal Number of principal
millions claims®  balance claims balance
GSEs 4,661 $1,058 4,334 $954
Private
investors 475 103 163 30
Mortgage
insurers 90 22 76 17
Total 5,226 $1,183 4,583 $1,001

(1) For GSEs, the response to the repurchase claim is required within 90
days of the claim receipf.Citi does not respond within 90 days,
theclaim wouldthen be discussed between Citi and the GSE. For
private investors, the time period for responding is governed by the
individual sale agreementf the specified timeframis exceeded, the
investor may choose to initiate legal action.
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Securities and BankingSponsored Private Label
Residential Mortgage Securitization® Representations
and Warranties

Over the yearsS&B has been a sponsor of privdddel
mortgagebacked securitizationdlortgage securitizations
sponsor e &&Blbysiressirepresérs a much smaller
portion of Citids mortgage
business discussed above.

During the period 2005 through 20(8&B sponsored
approximately $6 billion in privatelabel mortgagéacked
securitization transactions, which approximately $2billion
remairedoutstanding aMarch 31 2011. Theseoutstanding
transactions are backed by loan collateral cosed of
approximately $7L billion prime, $.7 billion Alt-A and $B.9
billion subprime residential mortgage loansii Estimates th
actual cumulative losses to date incurred by the issuing trusts
onthe $66 billion totatransactionseferenced abovieave
been approximately#3billion. The mortgages included in
these securitizations were purchased from paoti¢side of
S&B, and fewer than 3% of the mortgages currently
outstanding were originated by Citi. In addition, fewer than
10% of the currently outstanding mortgage loans underlying
these securitization transactions are serviced by Citi. The
loans serviced bgiti are included in the4st4billion of
residenti al mortgage | oans re
Mortgage Representations and

In connection with such transactions, representations and
warranties (representations) relating to the mortdeaes
included in each trust issuing the securities were made either
by (1) Citi, or (2) in a relatively small number of cases, third
party sellers (Selling Entities, which were also often the
originatoss of the loans). These representations were gdperal
made or assigned to the issuing trust.

The representations in these securitization transactions
generally related to, among other things, the following:

|l

b u

the absence of fraud on the part of the mortgage loan
borrower, the seller or any appraiser, braieother party
involved in the origination of the mortgage loan (which
was sometimes wholly or partially limited to the
knowledge of the representation provider);

1 whether the mortgage property was occupied by the
borrower as his or her principal residence

T the mortgage | oands compli a
state and local laws;

1 whether the mortgage loan was originated in conformity
with the originatords

1 the detailed data concerning the mortgage loans that was

included onlie mortgage loan schedule.

The specific representations relating to the mortgage
loans in each securitization may vary, however, depending on
various factors such as the Selling Entity, rating agency
requirements and whether the mortgage loans were evadid
prime, AltA or subprime in credit quality.

In the event of a breach of its representations, Citi may be
required either to repurchase the mortgage loans with the
identified defects (generally at unpaid principal balance plus
accrued interest) or indmify the investors for their losses.

62

For securitizations in which Citi made representations,
these representations typically were similar to those provided
to Citi by the Selling Entities, with the exception of certain
limited representations required tating agencies. These
latter representations overlapped in some cases with the
representations described above.

s i In @ases wherd Githmadg irepresénsatiofsoandsalsame r
received those representations from the Selling Entity for that
loan, if Citi is the subjeatf a claim based on breach of those
representations in respect of that loan, it may have a
contractual right to pursue a similar (baokback) claim

against the Selling Entity. If only the Selling Entity made
representations, then only the Selling Bnsihould be
responsible for a claim based on breach of these
representations in respect of that loan. (This discussion only
relates to contractual claims based on breaches of
representations.)

However, in some cases where Citi made representations
and reeived similar representations from Selling Entities,
including a majority of such cases involving subprime and
Alt-A collateral, Citi believes that those Selling Entities
appear to be in bankruptcy, liquidation or financial distress. In
those cases, inéhevent that claims for breaches of
representations were to be made against Citi, the Selling
Eerienicedd uhideandiCanscoomedi t i
Vo ohtamingbaclasbackracbveriesgainst them.

In addition to securitization transactions, dgrthe
period2005through March 31, 2015&B sold approximately
$8.2 billion in whole loan mortgages, primarily to private
investors. These loans were generally soldfiservicer
released basisand, as a resul§&B is not able to determine
the currert outstanding balances of these loans. The majority
of theseloans were sold withmited or no representations by
Sé&B, or with limited representations that expire after a certain
period of time (typically six months to one year), a portion of
which have keady expired

To date S&B has received only a small number of claims
based on breaches of representations relating to the mortgage
loans irtluded in itssecuritizatiortransaction®r whole loan
sales Citi continues to monitaiis claim activityclosely

In addition tothe activitiesdescribed aboves&B engages
in other residential mortgagelated activities, including
underwriting of residential mortgadmcked securitiesS&B
Bati€ipat¥d ifl the uidBrRritilg 6f dalbdveéiefefeficddseiza |
sponsord securitizations, as well as underwritings of other
residential mortgagbacked securities sponsored and issued

on

under Witird Jafied. FortaddRidhal infbration ttigaidh

claims relating tahese activities, sedote23to the
Consolidated Financial Seahents
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CORPORATE LOAN DETAI LS

Corporate Credit Portfolio

Thefollowing table represeathe Corporatecredit portfolio

(excluding Private Banking), before consideration of

collateral, by maturity avlarch 31, 2011TheCorporate

portfolio is broken ouby direct outstandings that include

drawn | oans, overdrafts, interbank placements, bankersbod
acceptancedeasesand unfunded commitments that include

unused commitments to lend, letters of credit and financial

guarantees.
At March 31, 201 At Decembe1, 200
Greater Greater
Due than 1year  Greater Due thanlyear Greater
within but within than Total within but within than Total
In billions of dollars 1lyear 5 years Syears  exposure 1year 5 years 5years exposure
Direct outstandings $197 $ 4 $ 10 $254 $191 $ 43 $ 8 $242
Unfunded lending commitments 178 105 19 302 174 94 19 287
Total $375 $152 $29 $556 $365 $137 $27 $529
Portfolio Mix

The Corporatecredit portfolio is diverse across counterparty
industry, and geography. Thellbwing table showshe
percentage ddirect outstandings and unfunded commitments

by region:

March 31, Decembefl1,

2011 2010

North America 46% 47%
EMEA 29 28
Latin America 8 7
Asia 17 18
Total 100% 100%

The maintenance of accurate and consisish ratings
across the&orporatecredit portfolio facilitates the comparison
of credit exposure across all lines of business, geographic
regions and products.

Obligor risk ratings reflect an estimated probability of
default for an obligor and are dert/grimarily through the
use of statistical models (which are validated periodically),
external rating agencies (under defined circumstances) or
approved scoring methodologies. Facility risk ratings are
assigned, using the obligor risk rating, and therofadhat
affect the losgyiven default of the facility, such as support or
collateral, are taken into account. With regard to climate
change risk, factors evaluated include consideration of the
business impact, impact of regulatory requirements, or lack
thereof, and impact of physical effects on obligors and their
assets.

Thesefactors may adversely affect the ability of some
obligors to perform and thus increase the risk of lending
activities to these obligors. Citigroup also has incorporated
climate rik assessment criteria for certain obligors, as
necessary. Internal obligor ratings equivalent to BBB and
above are considered investment grade. Ratings below the
equivalent of the BBB category are considered-imvestment
grade.
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The following table preents theCorporatecredit
portfolio by facility risk rating aMarch 31, 2011 and
DecembeBl, 2010, as a percentage of the total portfolio:

Direct outstandingsand
unfunded commitments

March 31, DecembeBl,
2011 2010
AAA/AAIA 56% 56%
BBB 26 26
BB/B 13 13
CCC or below 4 5
Unrated 1 o)
Total 100% 100%

The Corporatecredit portfolio is diversified by industry,
with a concentration in the financial sector, including banks,
other financial institutions, insurance companies, investment
banks and garnment and central banks. The following table
shows the allocation of direct outstandings and unfunded
commitments to industries as a percentage of the total
Corporateportfolio:

Direct outstandingsand
unfunded commitments

March 31, Decembefl1,
2011 2010

Publicsector 21% 1%
Transportatiorand indugtal 16 16
Petroleum, energy, chemlcand metal 15 15
Banks/brokerdeales 13 14
Consumer retaitindhealth 12 12
Technology, media and telecom 8 8
Insurance and special purpose vehicl 5 5
Red estate 3 4
Hedge funds 3 3
Other industrie$§” 4 4
Total 100% 100%

Includes all other industries, none of which exceeds 2% of total
outstandings.

)
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Credit Risk Mitigation

As part of its overall risk management activities, Citigroup
uses creditlerivatives and other risk mitigants to hedge
portions of the credit risk in itSorporate crediportfolio, in
addition to outright asset sales. The purpose of these
transactions is to transfer credit risk to third parties. The
results of the marto market and any realized gains or losses
on credit derivatives are reflected in fhencipal transactions
line on the Consolidated Statement of Income.

At March 31, 2011 and Decembgt, 2010 $49.5billion
and$49.0 billion, respectively, of credit risk expwes were
economically hedged. Citi
the calculation of its loan loss reserve does not include the
favorable impact of credit derivatives and other risk mitigants.
In addition, the reported amounts of direct outstandings a
unfunded commitments in this report do not reflect the impact
of these hedging transactions.March 31, 2011 and
DecembeB1, 2010, the credit protection was economically
hedging underlying credit exposure with the following risk
rating distributionyespectively:

Rating of Hedged Exposure

March 31, Decembefl,
2011 2010
AAA/AAIA 51% 53%
BBB 34 32
BB/B 13 11
CCC or below 2 4
Total 100% 100%

At March 31, 2011 anBecembeB1, 2010, the credit
protection was economically hedging underlying dred
exposurs with the following industry distribution:

Industry of Hedged Exposure

March 31, DecembeBl,
2011 2010

Petroleum, energy, chemical and met 24% 24%
Transportation and industrial 21 19
Consumer retail and health 18 19
Public sector 12 13
Technology, media and telecom 11 10
Banks/brokeealers 8 7
Insurance and special purpose vehicl 5 4
Other industrie$” 1 4
Total 100% 100%

@

Includes all other industries, none of which is greater than 2% of the
total hedged amount.
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EXPOSURE TO COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE

ICG and theSAR through their business activities and as
capital markets participants, incur exposures that are directly
or indirectly tied to the commercial real estate (CRE) market,
andLCL andRCBhold loans that are celleralized by CRE.
These exposures are represented primarily by the following
three categories:

(1) Assets held at fair valuacluded approximately $5!
billion atMarch 31, 2011of which approximately 43 billion
are securities, loans and other itdmked to CRE that are
carried at fair value as trading accoussets, approximately
$0.7billion are securities backed by CRE carried at fair value
asavailablefor-sale AFS) investmentsapproximately $@G
billion are other exposures classifiedadlse assets and
investmentandapproximately$0.1 billion are loans heldor-
sale. Changes in fairahue for trading account assets are
reported in current earnings, while AFS investments are
reported inAccumulated other comprehensive incqtoss)
with credit-relatedotherthantemporary impairments reported
in current earnings.

The majority of these exposures are classified as Level 3
in the fair value hierarchyver the last severgkars,
weakemrdactivity in the trading markets for some of these
instruments resulted in reduced liquidity, thereby decreasing
the observable inputs for such valuations, and cooifdinue
to have an adverse impact on how these instruments are
valued in the future. See Nat8to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(2) As=ts held at amortized casicluded approximately
$15 billion of secuities classified as heltb-maturity (HTM)
and approximately&7.1billion of loans and commitments
each as of March 31, 201HTM securities are accounted for
at amortized cost, sulgeto otherthantemporary impairment.
Loans and commitments are recorded at amortized cost, less
loan loss reserves. The impact from changes in credit is
reflected in the calculation of the allowance for loan losses
and in net credit losses.

(3) Equity ard other investmeniacluded approximately
$36 billion of equity and other investmen(uch as limited
partner fund investmentst March 31, 201that are
accounted for under the equity method, which recognizes
gains or | osses baedfdhe nebimconteh e
of the investee.
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The foll owing
global CRE funded and unfunded exposurddatch 31,

2011 andDecember 312010:

tabl

provi de

March 31, December 31

In billions of dollars 2011 2010
Institutional Clients Group

CRE exposures carried at fair va

(including AFS securities) $ 3.8 $ 44

Loans and unfunded commitmen 18.0 175

HTM securities 15 15

Equity method investments 3.4 3.5

Total ICG $26.7 $26.9
Special Asset Pool

CREexposures carried at fair val

(including AFS) $ 11 $ 0.8

Loans and unfunded commitmen 4.3 51

HTM securities 0 0.1

Equity method investments 0.2 0.2

Total SAP $ 5.6 $ 6.2
Regional Consumer Banking

Loans and unfunded commitmen $ 28 $ 2.7
Local Consumer Lending

Loans and unfunded commitmen $ 2.0 $ 4.0
Brokerage and Asset Management

CRE exposures carried at fair va $ 0.5 $ 05
Total Citigroup $376 $40.3

The abovdablerepresentsthe vastarj or i t vy

of

directexposure t&CRE. There may be other transactitimest
have indirect exposures to CRE that are not reflectéusn

table.

investoros sh
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MARKET RISK
Market risk encompasses liquidity risk and price risk, both of
which arise in the normal cow®f business of a global
financial intermediary. Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity
may be unable to meet a financial commitment to a customer,
creditor, or investor when due. Liquidity risk is discussed in
ACapital

earnings risk from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange

rates, equity and commaodity prices, and in their implied
volatilities. Price risk arises in nemading portfolios, as well
as in trading portfolios.

March 31, 2011

Interest Rate Exposue (IRE) for Non-Trading Portfolios

The exposures in the following table represent the
approximate annualized risk to net interest revenue (NIR),
assuming an unanticipated parallel instantaneous 100 basis
points change, as well as a more gradual 100 baBiss25

Resour c e Pricariskds tHei q u i d basisypointsapbr quarer) parallel change in rates compared

with the market forward interest rates in selected currencies.

December 31, 2010 March31, 2010

In millions of dollars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
U.S. dollar

Instantaneous change $139 NM $(105) NM $(488) NM
Gradual change 36 NM 25 NM (110) NM
Mexican peso

Instantaneous change $ 93 $(93) $ 181 $(181) $ 42 $(42)
Gradual change 59 $ (59) 107 $(107) 21 $(21)
Euro

Instantaneous change $ 38 NM $ (10) NM $ (56) NM
Gradual change 23 NM (8) NM (50) NM
Japanese yen

Instantaneous change $ 83 NM $ 93 NM $148 NM
Gradual change 49 NM 52 NM 97 NM
Pound sterling

Instantaneous change $ 13 NM $ 33 NM $ (3) NM
Gradual change 5 NM 21 NM (5) NM

NM Not meaningful. A 100 basis point decrease in interest rates would imply negative rateyifdd thave

The changes in the U.S. dollar IRE fraine previous
guarter reflect changes in the custosredated asset and
liability mix, asset sakg the expected impact of market rates
on customer behavior and purchases in the liquidity portfolio.
The changes from the prigear quarter primarily reflecte
modeling of mortgages and deposits based on lower rates,
pricing changes due to the CARD Act, debt issuance and
swapping activities, offset by repositioning of the liquidity
portfolio.

Certain tradingpriented businesses within Citi have
accrualaccountd positions. The U.S. dollar IRE associated
with these businesses(&142) millionfor a 100 basis point
instantaneous increase in interest rates.

The following table shows the risk to NIR from six
different changes in the impliefdrward rates. Each enario
assumes that the rate change will occur on a gradual basis
every three months over the course of one year.

Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3 Scenario 4 Scenario 5 Scenario 6
Overnight rate change (bps) $ 0 $100 $200 $(200) $(100) $ 0
10-year rate change (bps) (100) o) 100 (100) 0 100
Impact to net interest revenue
(in millions of dollars) $ (258) $ 50 $ 33 NM NM $ (109)

NM Not meaningful. A 100 basis point or more decrease in the overnight rate would imply negative rategiédd turve.
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Value at Riskfor Trading Portfolios

For Citigroup's major trading centers, the aggregate pretax
value at risk (VAR) irthe trading portfolios was $20million,

$191 million, $226 million, and $17@illion at March 31,

2011,December 31, 21D, September 30, 20Hhd March 31
2010, respectively. Daily Citigroup trading VAR averaged

$195million and ranged from 367 million to $224million
during thefirst quarter of 2011

The following table summarizes VAR for Citigroup
trading portfoliosatMarch 31, 2011December 312010, and
March 31, 2010including the total VAR, the specific risk
only component of VAR, the isated general market factor
VARSs, along with the quarterly averages.

March 31, First Quarter Decembenl, FourthQuarter March 31 First Quarter

In million of dollars 2011 2011 Average 20102 2010 Average 2010 2010Average
Interest rate $25% $233 $235 $267 $201 $193
Foreign exchange 62 53 52 62 53 51
Equity 34 49 56 46 49 73
Commaodity 27 23 19 27 17 18
Diversification benefit (175) (163) (171) (185) (148) (135)
Total i All market risk

factors, including

general and

specific risk $204 $195 $191 $217 $172 $200
Specific riskonly

componeri? $ 16 $ 15 $ 8 $ 17 $ 15 $ 21
Total i General market
factors only $188 $180 $183 $200 $157 $180

(1) The specific riskonly component represents the level of equity and debt ispeeific risk embedded in VAR.
(2) On April 30, 2010, Citigroup concluded its implementation of expoatpiveighted market factor volatilities for interest rate and FX positions to the VAR
calculation. This methodology uses the higher of stamd longterm annualized volatilities. This enhancement resulted in a 31% increa&B MAR, and a

24% increas in Citigroup consolidated VAR, reported at June 30, 2010.

The table below provides the range of market factor VARS, inclusive of specific risk, across the quarters ended:

March 31, 2011

December 31, 2010

March 31, 2010

In millions of dollars Low High Low High Low High
Interest rate $187 $274 $229 $315 $171 $228
Foreign exchange 34 81 31 98 37 78
Equity 29 74 31 75 47 111
Commodity 16 36 18 39 15 20
The following table provides the VAR f@&@&B for thefirst
quarter of 201ndthe fourthquarte of 2010:
March 31, DecembeBl,

In millions of dollars 2011 2010
Total i All market risk

factors, including

general and specific risk $113 $159
Averagei during quarter $149 $160
Highi during quarter 174 186
Low i during quarter 107 139
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INTEREST REVENUE/EXPENSE AND YIELDS

Average Rates - Interest Revenue, Interest Expense, and Net Interest Margin

—— Interest Revenue- AverageRate B— Interest Experce- Average Rate —&— Net Interest Margin
600% |
5.00% I Interest Revenne-dverage Rate
._____‘_‘—'—-—-—-_’F -
477% . M +
461% . *
4.00% 451% 4.37% 4.32%
— . —
300% 3.34% . -_—— S,
3% 3.09% 2.97% 2.91%
2.00% |!.nteresf£xpense-ﬂvemgeﬁate |
= = ] - ]
1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.58% 1.60%
1.00%
1010 2610 3010 4610 1611
1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 1st Qtr. Change
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2010 1Q11vs. 1Q10
Interest revenue $18,322 $18,999 $20,994 (13)%
Interest expense 5,974 6,069 6,291 (5)
Net interest revenu@ @ $12,348 $12,930 $14,703 (16)%
Interest revenu® average rate 4.32% 4.37% 4.77% (45) bps
Interest expengeaverage rate 1.60 1.58 1.60 o}
Net interest margin 2.91% 2.97% 3.34% (43) bps
Interest-rate benchmarks
Federal Funds radeend of period 0.000.25% 0.000.25% 0.000.25% 0
Federal Funds radeaverage rate 0.00-0.25% 0.00-0.25% 0.00-0.25% )
Two-year U.S. Treasury ndieaverage rate 0.69% 0.49% 0.92% (23) bps
10-year U.S. Treasury ndieaverage rate 3.46% 2.88% 3.72% (26) bps
10-year vs. tweyear spread 277 bps 239 bps 280 bps

(1) Netinterest revenumcludesthe taxable equivalent adjustments (based on the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 3824)roflin, $124million, and 442
million for the threemonths ended March 31, 2011leg@mber 31, 2010 and March 31, 2010, respectively

(2) Excludes expenses associated with hybrid financial instruments and beneficial interest in consolidated VIEs. Theses abéigddissified dsongterm debt
and accounted for at fair value with clyas recorded iRrincipal transactions

A significant portion of Cit i GiscurkentlygaexpeesNsM tarenain under pressure amr e

upon gathering deposits and borrowing money and then the second quarter of 2011, but believes it shoulihiteg

lending or investing those funds, or participating in market stabilize during the second half of the year. NIM will also be

making activities in tradable seatties. The net interest margin negatively i mpacted by the in

(NIM) is calculated by dividing gross interest revenue less assessment, which became effective in the second quarter of

gross interest expense by average interest earning assets. 2011 and will increase the cost of deposits. Citi currently
During the first quarter of amidpatdstbadlitional BDIC abbeshmedttobeg eased b

approximaely 6 basis points, primarilgue tothe continued approximately $550 million annually.

run-off and sales of higher yielding assets in Citi Holdings,
such as the announced sale of Egg Banking PLC credit card
business. Yeaoveryear, NIM decreased by approximately
43 basis points, driven by lower investment yields,
repositionimg of certain portfolios in Citicorp towards a lower
risk profile and the continued rwoff and sales of higher
yielding assets in Citi Holdings.
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES3& ASSETS®M@®®

Taxable Equivalent Bass

Average volume

Interest revenue

% Average rate

1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 1stQtr. | 1stQtr.  4th Qtr. 1stQtr. | 1stQtr.  4th Qtr. 1 Qtr.

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010
Assets
Deposits with banks® $ 179,510% 169,230 $ 166,378 $ 459 $ 353 $ 290 1.04% 0.83% 0.71%
Federal funds sold and securities

borrowed or purchased under

agreements to resel®
In U.S. offices $ 151,041% 149,828 $ 160,033 $ 392 $ 410 $ 471 1.05% 1.09% 1.19%
In offices outside the U.& 104,170 94,704 78,052 446 406 281 1.74 1.70 1.46
Total $ 255,211% 244532 $ 238,085 $ 838 $ 816 $ 752 1.33% 1.32% 1.28%
Trading account asset$” ©
In U.S. offices $ 132,016% 128,721 $ 131,776 $ 1,133 $ 1,158 $ 1,096 3.48% 3.57% 3.37T%
In offices outside the U.&) 144,408 154,332 152,403 900 1,033 803 2.53 2.66 2.14
Total $ 276,424% 283,053 $ 284,1791 $ 2,033 $ 2,191 $ 1,899 2.98% 3.07% 2.71%
Investments
In U.S. offices

Taxable $ 175,870% 186,878 $ 150,858 $ 950 $ 1,014 $ 1,389 2.19% 2.15% 3.73%

Exempt from U.S. income tax 12,996 13,849 15,570 318 302 275 9.92 8.65 7.16
In offices outside the U.&) 131,540 132,206 144,892 1,285 1,319 1,547 3.96 3.96 4.33
Total $ 320,406% 332,933 $ 311,320 $ 2,553 $ 2,635 $ 3,211 3.23% 3.14% 4.18%
Loans (net of unearned income}”
In U.S. offices $ 376,710% 386,691 $ 479,384 $ 7,445 $ 7,836 $ 9,523 8.02% 8.04% 8.06%
In offices outside the U.$) 262,320 259,815 258,488 4,843 4,988 5,163 7.49 7.62 8.10
Total $ 639,030% 646,506 $ 737,872 $12,288 $12,824 $14,686 7.80% 7.87% 8.07%
Other interest-earning assets $ 49,4935 49,787 $ 45894 $ 151 $ 180 $ 156 1.24% 1.43% 1.38%
Total interestearning assets $1,720,074%1,726,041 $1,783,728 $18,322 $18,999 $20,994 4.32% 4.37% 4.77%

Nor-interestearning assefd
Total assets from discontinued
operations

$ 231,083% 224,859 $ 229344

2,672

31,286 )

Total assets

$1,953,829$1,982,186 $2,013,072

(1) Net interest revenumcludesthe taxable equivalent adjustments (based on the ed8rdl statutory tax rate of 35%) dfZBmillion, $124million, and .42

million for the threemonths ended March 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and March 31, 2010, respectively
(2) Interest rates and amounts include the effects of risk managementesctiggbciated with the respective asset and liability categories.
(3) Monthly or quarterly averages have been used by certain subsidiaries where daily averages are unavailable.

(4) Detailed average volume, interest revenue and interest expense exstaieidiied operations. See Not®2he Consolidated Financial Statements.

(5) Average rates reflect prevailing local interest rates, including inflationary effects and monetary corrections in cettas. cou
(6) Average volumes of securities borraver purchased under agreements to resell are reportpdreeant to FIN 41 (ASC 2120-45). However, Interest revenue
excludes the impact of FIN 41 (ASC 220-45).
(7) The fair value carrying amounts of derivative contracts are reported imtevestearning assets and other riaterestbearing liabilities.
(8) Interest expense dfrading account liabilitieof ICG is reported as a reduction loterest Revenuénterest revenue and interest expense on cash collateral
positions are reported interest onTrading account assedTrading account liabilitiesrespectively.

(9) Includes castiasis loans.
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES 8 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY,
AND NET INTEREST REVENUE W@G)®

Taxable Equivalent Bass

Average volume Interest expense % Average rate
1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 1st Qtr. 11st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 1st Qtr.11st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 1st Qtr.

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010
Liabilities
Deposits
In U.S. offices

Savings deposit§ $ 192,298% 196,185% 178,266 $ 391 $ 509 $ 458] 082 1.03% 1.04%

Other time deposits 32,859 38,287 54,391 109 71 143! 1.35 0.74 1.07
In offices outside the U:& 490,525 491,493 481,002 1,514 1545 1,479f 1.25 1.25 1.25
Total $ 715,682% 725,965% 713,659! $2,014 $2,125 $2,080! 1.14% 1.16% 1.18%

Federal funds purchased and securities loanec
or sold under agreements to repurchasg’

In U.S. offices $ 118,314% 119,434% 120,695 $ 175 $ 1B $ 179 060% 0.64% 0.60%
In offices outside the U.& 97,302 85907 79,447 562 493 4751 234 2.28 2.42

Total $ 215,616 205,341$% 200,1421 $ 737 $ 686 $ 6541 1.39% 1.33% 1.33%
Trading account liabilities © ©

In U.S. offices $ 34,8613 36,3823 326421 $ 51 % 72 $ 44 059% 0.79% 0.55%
In offices outside the U:® 45914 43,832 46,905 33 30 191 0.29  0.27 0.16

Total $ 80,7753 80,2143 795471 $ 84 $ 102 $ 63] 0.42% 0.50% 0.32%
Short-term borrowings

In U.S. offices $ 94,0285 98,1385 152,785 $ 69 $ 136 $ 204 0.30% 0.55% 0.54%
In offices outside the U.& 40,229 39,789 27,659 101 77 721 1.02  0.77 1.06

Total $ 134,257 137,927$% 18044 $ 170 $ 213 $ 276/ 0.51% 0.61% 0.62%
Long-term debt @

In U.S. offices $ 347,559% 350,265% 397,113! $2,772 $2,730 $3,005| 3.23% 3.09% 3.07%
In offices outside the U:& 20,290 19,821 25,955 197 213 2131 394 426 3.33

Total $ 367,849% 370,0863 423,068 $2,969 $2,943 $3,218] 3.27% 3.15% 3.08%
Total interest-bearing liabilities $1,514,179%1,519,533$1,596,860! $5,974 $6,069 $6,2911 1.60% 1.58% 1.60%
Demand deposits in U.S. offices 18,815 17,762 16,675

Other noninterestbearing liabilities® 251,663 249,684 247,365

Total liabilities from discontinued operations 39 29,256 o]

Total liabilities $1,784,696%1,816,235%$1,860,900

Citigroup equity ¥ $ 166,777% 163,703% 149,993

Nonontrolling interest $ 2,356% 2,248% 2,179

Total stockHWI dersod e$ 169,133% 1650951$ 152,172

Total |liabilities and$1,953829$1,982186$2,013,072

Net interest revenue as a Pe:entage of average
interest-earning assets!?

In U.S. offices $ 985,985% 999,169$1,084,673!$ 6,831$% 6,72¢ 8,802] 2.81% 2.67% 3.29%
In offices outside the U.& 734,089 726,872 699,055! 5,517 6,201 5,901! 3.05 3.38 3.42
Total $1,720074 $1,726,041$1,783,728! $12,348$12,93C $14,703} 2.91% 2.97% 3.34%

(1) Net interest revenumcludesthe taxable equivalent adjustments (based on the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 3824)roflin, $124million, and 442
million for the threemonths ended March 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and March 31, 2010, respectively

(2) Interest rates and amounts include the effects of risk management activities associated with the respective assit cate diatids.

(3) Monthly or quarterly averags have been used by certain subsidiaries where daily averages are unavailable.

(4) Detailed average volume, interest revenue and interest expense exclude discontinued operations2 8ethél@ensolidated Financial Statements.

(5) Savings depositsonsist of Insured Money Market accounts, NOW accounts, and other savings deposits. The interest expense includes tFHb$Greapesi
fees and charges.

(6) Average rates reflect prevailing local interest rates, including inflationary effects and maoetactions in certain countries.

(7) Average volumes of securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase are reguntedameéto FIN 41 (ASC 2120-45). However interestexpense
excludes the impact of FIN 41 (ASC 220-45).

(8) The far value carrying amounts of derivative contracts are reported iintenestearning assets and other riaterestbearing liabilities.

(9) Interest expense dfrading account liabilitie®f ICG is reported as a reduction loterest Revenuédnterest rgenue and interest expense on cash collateral
positions are reported interest orTrading account assetdTrading account liabilitiesrespectively.

(10) Excludes hybrid financial instruments and beneficial interests in consolidated VIEs thatsifeedlad ong-term debtas these obligations are accounted for at
fair value with changes recordedRmnincipal transactions

(1) I ncludes stockholders6 equity from discontinued operations.

(12) Includes allocationor capital and funding costs basen the location of the asset.
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ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN INTEREST REVENUE W@®

1st Qtr. 2011 vs. 4th Qtr. 2010

1st Qtr. 2011 vslstQtr. 2010

Increase (decrease)
due to change in:

Increase (decrease
due to change in:

Average Average Net Average Average Net
In millions of dollas volume rate change volume rate change
Deposits with banks®™ $ 22 $ 84 $106 $ 24 $145 $ 169
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or

purchased under agreements to resell

In U.S. offices $ 3 $ (21) $(18) $ (25 $(GB4) $ (79
In offices outside the U.$? 41 1) 40 105 60 165
Total $ 44 $ (22) $22 $ 80 $ 6 $ 86
Trading account asset$”
In U.S. offices $ 29 $ (54) $(25 ¢ 2 $ 35 $ 37
In offices outside the U.$? (64) (69) (133) (44) 141 97
Total $ (35) $(123) $(158) $ (42 $176 $ 134
Investments®
In U.S. offices $ (79) $ 31 $(48 $ 203 $(599) $ (396)
In offices outside the U.$? (7) (27) (34) (136) (126) (262)
Total $(86) $ 4 $(82 $ 67 $(725) $ (658)
Loans (net of unearned incomef®
In U.S. offices $(200) $(191) $(391) $(2,029) $ (49) $(2,078)
In offices outside the U.$? 48 (193) (145) 76 (396) (320)
Total $(152) $(384) $(536)  $(1,953) $(445)  $(2,398)
Other interest-earning assets $ D $ (28) $(29 $ 12 $ (17) $ (5
Total interest revenue $(208) $(469) $(677)  $(1,812) $(860)  $(2,672)

o
)
®3)
(4)
®)

(6)

The taxable equivalent adjustment is lshge the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 35% arncisded inthis presentation.

Rate/volume variance is allocated based on the percentage relationship of changes in volume and changes in rated¢bdhartgéal

Detailed average volummmterest revenue and interest expense exclude discontinued operations. S&® MwteConsolidated Financial Statements.

Changes in average rates reflect changes in prevailing local interest rates, including inflationary effects and maoeeitamg aoertain countries.

Interest expense ofrading account liabilitie®f ICG is reported as a reduction of interest reveinterestrevenueand interest expense on cash collateral

positions are reported interest orTrading account assedTrading account liabilitiesrespectively.

Includes castbasis loans.
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ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN INTEREST EXPENSE AND NET INTEREST REVENUE V@G

1st Qtr. 2011 vs. 4th Qtr. 2010

1st Qtr. 2011 vslstQtr. 2010

Increase (decrease)

due to chaage in:

Increase (decrease)
due to change in:

Average  Average Net Average Average Net

In millions of dollars volume rate change volume rate change
Deposits
In U.S. offices $ (22) $ (58) $(0) $ (19 $(B82 $ (101)
In offices outside the).S.® (3) (28) (31) 29 6 35
Total $ (25) $ (86) $(111) $ 10 $(76) $ (66)
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned

or sold under agreements to repurchase
In U.S. offices $ (2 $ (16) $ (18) $ 4 $ 0 $ @
In offices outside the U.$? 66 3 69 104 (17) 87
Total $ 64 $ (13) $ 51 $ 100 $(17) $ 83
Trading account liabilities ©
In U.S. offices $ (3) $ (18) $ (21) $ 3 $ 4 $ 7
In offices outside the U.$?Y 1 2 3 ] 14 14
Total $ (2 $ (16) $ (18) $ 3 $ 18 $ 21
Short-term borrowings
In U.S. offices $ (5) $ (62) $ (67) $ (62) $(73) $ (135)
In offices outside the U.$Y 1 23 24 32 (3) 29
Total $ 4 $ (39) $ (43) $ (30) $(76) $ (106)
Long-term debt
In U.S. offices $ (21) $ 63 $ 42 $ (389) $ 156 $ (233)
In offices outside the U.$? 5 (21) (16) (51) 35 (16)
Total $ (16) $ 42 $ 26 $ (440) $191  $ (249)
Total interest expense $ 17 $(112 $(95 $ (357 $ 40 $ (317)
Net interest revenue $(225 $(357) $(582)  $(1,455) $(900)  $(2,355)

(1) The taxable equivalent adjustment is based on the U.S. federal statutory tax réteamfd3Sincluded inthis presentation.

(2) Rate/volume variance is allocated based on the percentage relationship of changes in volume and changes in ratedgbchartgéal
(3) Detailed average volume, interest revenue and interest expenseeaisicmhtinued operations. See Ndte the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4) Changes in average rates reflect changes in prevailing local interest rates, including inflationary effects and moegtiansdorecertain countries.
(5) Interest epense orTrading account liabilitie®f ICG is reported as a reduction loterestrevenuelnterest revenuand interest expense on cash collateral
positions are reported interest oriTrading account assedTrading account liabilitiesrespectively.
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COUNTRY AND CROSS-BORDER RISK

As required by SEC rulethetable below shows all countries where total FFIEC chmssler outstandings exceed 0.75% of total
Citigroup assets:

In billions March 31, 2011 December 31, 2D
of U.S. CrossBorder Claims on Third Parties
dollars
Investments
Trading in and Total
and short-  funding of Total Cross
term local crossborder border
Banks  Public Private Total claims franchises?  outstandings Commitments® outstandingsCommitmers®
France $121 $93 $11.7 $331 $248 $0 $331 $ 57.8 $358 $53.9
Germany 8.9 154 3.8 281 21.8 1.4 295 42.5 26.0 43.9
India 3.8 0.8 5.5 10.1 9.0 18.2 28.3 55 28.3 45
Cayman
Islands 0.2 o] 202 204 200 o] 204 45 19.7 3.2
Brazil 3.5 o} 6.0 9.5 9.6 9.2 18.7 26.3 162 221
United
Kingdom 6.3 0.2 11.1 17.6 15.4 o] 17.6 103.9 17.4 104.4
South Korea 1.0 1.8 1.7 4.5 4.4 9.6 14.1 227 15.8 22.6
Mexico 0.5 0.2 2.9 3.6 2.3 9.7 13.3 18.6 16.8 15.2

(1) Included in total crosborder claims on third parties.
(2) Commitments (not included in total crelssrder outstandings) include legally bindingssborder letters of credit and other commitments and contingencies as
defined by the FFIECThe FFIECdefinition of commitmentincludes commitments to local residents to be funded with local currency local liabilities.
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DERIVATIVES addition, all or a portion of the credit valuation adjustments may
be reversed or otherwise adjusted in future periods in the event

See Notel8to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a of changes in the credit risk of Citi or its counterparties, or
discussion and disclosures rethiteo  Ci t i gr oup 6 s CRRBIES inthe credjf mitigants (collateral and netting
activities. The following discussions relate to the Derivative agreements) associated with the derivative instruments.

Obligor Information, the Fair Valuation for Derivatives and The table below summarizes the CVA applied to the fair
Credit Derivatives activities. value of derivative instruments asMfrch31, 2011 and

December 312010:

Fair Valuation Adjustments for Derivatives

The fair value adjustments applied by Citigroup to its derivative Credit valuation adjustment

contra-liability

carrying values consist of the following items: (contra-asset)

A Liquidity adjustments are applied to items in Level 2 or - March 31,  December 31
Level 3 of the faitvalue hierarci (see Notel9to the In millions of dollars , 2011 2010
Consolidated Financial Statements for more details) to gf:_” monoline counterparties $(f'§58? Miggg)
ensure that the fair value reflects the price at which the tgroup (OWn.) . .

. " L R . Net normonoline CVA $(1,232 $(1,730)
entire position could be liquidated. The liquidity reserve is : .

b d he bid/off df . di d Monoline counterparti¢8 (1) (1,548)

ased on the bid/otfer spread for an Instrument, adjuste Total CVA @ derivative instruments $(1,233 $(3,278)

take into account the size of the position.
A Credit valuation adjustments (CVA) are applied to ever (1) The reduction in CVA on derivative instruments with monoline

the-counter derivative instruments, in which the base counterparties includes $t billion of utilizations/releases ithe first
valuation generally discounts expected cash flows using quarter of 2011
LIBOR interest rate curves. Because ribtaunterparties
have the same credit _rlsk as that |mpl'|ed by the relevant changes in credit valuation adjustmeon derivative
LIBOR curve, a CVA is necessary to incorporate the . .

X instruments, net of heggest.
mar ket view of both counterparty <t edi

credit risk in the valuation. Credit valuation

Citigroup CVA methodology comprises tvsteps. First, the adjustment gain
exposure profile for each counterparty is determined using the (loss)
terms of all individual derivative positions and a Monte Carlo - First Quarter  First Quarter
simulation or other quantitative analysis to generate a series ofd.milions of dollars : 2011 2010
expected cash flows at future points in tifige calculation of ~ CVA on derivatives, excluding
this exposure profile considers the effect of credit risk mitigant V2°n°|'nes . $(143) $314
. ) . related to monoline
including pledged cash or other collateral and any legal right o counterparties 179 398

offset that exists with a counterparty through arrangements sUg{Jz cvA S derivative instruments 3 36 712
as netting agreements. Individuarivative contracts that are
subject to an enforceable master netting agreement with a
counterparty are aggregated for this purpose, since it is those The credit valuation adjustment amounts shown above

aggregate net cash flows that are subject to nonperformance  relate solely to the derivative portfolio, and do not include:
risk. This process identifies specific, peinttime future cash

flows that are subject to nonperformance risk, rather than using A Own-credit adjustments for nederivative liabilities
the current recognized net asset or liability as a basis to measure  measured at fair value under the faatue option. See Note
the CVA. 19to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further
Second, markebased views of default probabilities derived information.
from observed credit spreadstive credit default swap market A The effect of counterparty credit risk embedded in-non
are applied to the expected future cash flows determined in step  derivative instruments. Losses on rderivative
one. Owncredit CVA is determined using C—i$'pecificcredit instruments, such as bonds and loans, related to
default swap@DS) spreads for the relevant tenor. Generally, counterpaty credit risk are not included in the table above.
counterparty CVA is determined usi@pS spread indices for
each credit rating and tenor. For certain identified facilities
where individual analysis is practicable (for example, exposures
to monoline counterparties) counterpaspecific CDS spreads
are used.
The CVA adjustment is designéalincorporate a market
view of the credit risk inherent in the derivative portfolio.
However, most derivative instruments are negotiated bilateral
contracts and are not commonly transferred to third parties.
Derivative instruments are normally settled twaaotually or if
terminated early, are terminated at a value negotiated bilaterally
betweerthe counterparties. Therefore, the CVA (both
counterparty and owaredit) may not be realized upon a
settlement or termination in the normal course of business. In
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Credit Derivatives

Citigroup makes markets in and trades a range of credit
derivatives, both on behalf of clients as well as for its own
account. Through these contracts Citigroup either purchases or
writes protection on either a singlame or portfolio basis. Citi
primarily uses credit derivatives to help mitigate credit risk in its
corporate loan portfolio and other cash positions and to facilitate
client transactions.

Credit derivatives generallgquire that the seller of credit
protection make payments to the buyer upon the occurrence of
predefined events (settlement triggers). These settlement
triggers, which are defined by the form of the derivative and the
referenced credit, are generally lipttto the market standard of
failure to pay indebtedness and bankruptcy (or comparable
events) of the reference credit and, in a more limited range of
transactions, debt restructuring.

Credit derivative transactions referring to emerging market
referencecredits will also typically include additional settlement
triggers to cover the acceleration of indebtedness and the risk of
repudiation or a payment moratorium. In certain transactions on
a portfolio of referenced credits or asbatked securities, the
seller of protection may not be required to make payment until a
specified amount of losses has occurred with respect to the
portfolio and/or may only beequired to pay for losses up to a
specified amount.
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The following tablessumenr i ze t he key characteristics of Cidarivativeformase di t
of March31, 2011 and DecembeB1, 2.0

March 31, 2011 Fair values Notionals

In millions of dollars Receivable Payable Beneficiary Guarantor
By industry/counterparty

Bank $ 3,078 $ 34,546 $ 915674 $ 862230
Brokerdealer 14,476 14,899 316,682 305,104
Monoline 17 4 317 o]
Non-financial 64 59 1,323 1591
Insurance and other financial institutions 8,647 8,438 176,669 134,717
Total by industry/counterparty $ 61,282 $ 57,942 $1410665  $1303642
By instrument

Credit default swaps and options $ 61,124 $ 55,434 $1,34,297 $1302176
Total return swaps and other 158 1,508 26,368 1,466
Total by instrument $ 61,282 $ 57,942 $1410665  $1303642
By rating

Investment grade $ 20679 $ 17,581 $ 630,087 $ 555,984
Norrinvestment grade 40,603 40,681 780578 737,658
Total by rating $ 61,282 $ 57,942 $1410665  $1303642
By maturity

Within 1 year $ 1,90 $ 1700 $ 181552 $ 173583
From 1 to 5 years 33967 33,165 970,199 890,511
After 5 years 25,525 23077 258914 239,548
Total by maturity $ 61282 $ 57,942 $1410665  $1303642
December31, 200 Fair values Notionals

In millions of dollars Receivable Payable Beneficiary  Guarantor
By industry/counterparty

Bank $ 37,586 $ 35,727 $ 820,211 $ 784,080
Brokerdealer 15,428 16,239 319,625 312,131
Monoline 1,914 2 4,409 0
Non-financial 93 70 1,277 1,463
Insurance and other financial institutions 10,108 7,760 177,171 125,442
Total by industry/counterparty $ 65,129 $ 59,798 $1,322,693  $1,223,116
By instrument

Credit default swaps and options $ 64,840 $ 58,225 $1,301,514 $1,221,211
Total return swaps and other 289 1,573 21,179 1,905
Total by instrument $ 65,129 $ 59,798 $1,322,693  $1,223,116
By rating

Investment grade $ 20,480 $ 17,281 $ 598,179 $ 532,283
Norrinvestment grade 44,649 42,517 724,514 690,833
Total by rating $ 65,129 $ 59,798 $1,322,693 $1,223,116
By maturity

Within 1 year $ 1,716 $ 1,817 $ 164,735 $ 162,075
From 1 to 5 years 33,853 34,298 935,632 853,808
After 5 years 29,560 23,683 222,326 207,233
Total by maturity $ 65,129 $ 59,798 $1,322,693  $1,223,116

(1) Also includes not rated credit derivative instruments.
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The fair values shown are prior to the application of any
netting agreements, cash collateral, and market or credit
valuationadjustments.

Citigroupactively participates in trading a variety of
credit derivatives products as both an active-tvey market
maker for clients and to manage credit risk. The majority of
this activity was transacted with other financial intermediaries,
including both bankand brokerdealers. Citigroup generally
has a mismatch between the total notional amounts of
protection purchased and sold and it may hold the reference
assets directly, rather than entering into offsetting credit
derivative contracts as and when desifgte open risk
exposures from credit derivative contracts are largely matched
after certain cash positions in reference assets are considered
and after notional amounts are adjusted, either to a duration
based equivalent basis or to reflect the level obsdibation
in tranched structures.

Citi actively monitors its counterparty credit risk in credit
derivative contracts. Approximaie92% and 8% of the gross
receivables are from counterparties with which Citi maintains
collateral agreements asMfrch 31 2011 and December 31,
201Q respectively A maj or ity of
(by receivable balance owed to the company) are banks,
financial institutions or other dealers. Contracts with these
counterparties do not include ratiAgased termin&n events.
However, counterparty ratisglowngrades may have an
incremental effect by lowering the threshold at which
Citigroup may call for additional collateral.
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INCOME TAXES

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred taxeassets (DTAsqre recorded for the fute
consequences of events that have been recognized in the
financial statements or tax returns, based upon enacted tax
lawsandratesDT As ar e recogni zed
judgment that realization is more likely than néor

additional informat on, see ASignificant
and Significant Estimatésl ncome Taxeso i n C
Annual Report on Form %K.

At March 31, 2011Citigroup had recalednet DTAs of
approximately $51 billion, adecrease of $hillion from
$52.1billion at December 31, 2010

Although realization is not assured, Citi believes that the
realization of the recogrezi net deferred tax asset of $61
billion at March 31 2011 is more likely than not based on
expectations as to future taxable income in thedigi®ns in
which the DTAs arise, and based on available tax planning
strategies as defined in ASC 740come Taxeghat could be
implemented if necessary to prevent a carryforward from
15 counterparties

The following table summari z
March31, 2A1 andDecember 312010:

sub

Jurisdiction/Component

DTAs balance
December 31, 20D

DTAs balance

In billions of dollars March 31, 201

U.S. federal $411 $41.6
State and local 43 4.6
Foreign 5.7 5.9
Total $51.1 $52.1

Approximately$13 billion of the net deferred tax asset is
included in Tier 1Capitaland Tier 1 Common regulatory
capital.
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DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND
PROCEDURES

Citigroupés disclosure contro
ensure that information required to be disclosed utide
Securities Exchange Act of 1934rexorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
the SECO6s rules and forms, i
information required to be disclosed by Citi in its SEC filings,
is accunulated and communicated to management, including
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial

Officer (CFO),as appropriatéo allow for timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Citibés Di scl asgststhe CEOand@FCin e e
theirresponsibilities to design, establish, maintain and
evaluate the effectiveness
procedures. The Disclosure Commitieeesponsible fqor
among other things, the oversight, maintenance and
implementation of théisclosurecontrols and procedures
subject to the supervision and oversight of the CEO and CFO.

Citigroupbébs managemernts, wit
CEO and CFO, has evaluated t
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in R3de
15(e) under the Exelmge Act) as ofMarch31, 201 and,
based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded
that at that date Citigroupos
were effective.

n

of

h
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Form-I@including but not limited

t i I d i i
Ln% An%lil]s% of‘éir?;?cliaal%cgngitrio% ;énd F%egu ts ofd ¥ B n
Operati onsj;l oarka nigf srtvaarednent s o
meaning of the rules and regudats of the SECIn addition,

itig I ay, Fr riboking : t% S.in. it

gtﬁeﬁ%lgocﬁri%g?s fi\@?lﬁ ur(r¥1\ilg1t£d thhﬁlﬁ %mgl;gd Etsl on ot
managementay make forwardooking statements orally to
analysts, investors, representatives of the mediateds.

Generally, forwardooking statements are not based on
historical facts but instead
management's beliefs regarding future events. Such statements
may be identified by words such laslieve, expect, anticipate,
intgng sfimale. may increase, ay fugluaedsiniiap o | 5 4
expressions, or future or conditional verbs sucwills
should, wouldandcould

Such statements are based on management's current
expectations and are subject to uncertainty and changes in

h

ﬁircu[mﬁt%nce tya{r?sglt;s aé(gifferon}?ter'@lllry from those
!é‘c'“g.ef’ ‘P.E% ?ﬁtﬁﬁ@%‘tg Ug 1o g variefy prfagtars, o, 5 o
including without limitation the precautionary statements

included in this Form 1@, the factors listed and described
underfiRisk Factor6 | ® sCi2t0il 0 Annual

104 agdgthe fpglagsdgscriped Refoyo | s
A

Rep

and proc
the impact of the ongoing implementation of the Dodd

Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act

of 2010 (Financi al Reform A
activities and practicespsts of operations and overall

results of operations;

the impact of increases in FDIC insurance premiums on
Citids earnings, net intere
position, in the U.S. and globally;

Citids ability to osafi nt ai
maintaining, adequate capital in light of changing
regulatory capital requirements pursuant to the Financial
Reform Act, the capital standards adopted by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision (including as
implemented by U.S. regulators) or ettvise;

disruption to, and potential adverse impact to the results
of operations of, certain
business structures and practices as result of the central
clearing, excha+ge Ot padivi g i
the Financial Refrm Act;

the potential negative impacts to Citi of regulatory
requirements aimed at facilitation of the orderly

resolution of large financial institutions, as required under
the Financial Reform Act;

ri sks arising from @sideéthed s
U.S., including the continued volatile political

environment in certain emerging markets and with respect
to certain sovereigns with which Citi does business or
investsand Citids ability to
inconsistent regulations;

the impact of recently enacted and potential future
regulations on Citibs abili-
securitization transactions;

a reduction in Citiés or it
including in response to the passage of the Finhncia
Reform Act, and the potenti

n,

a |

(S8

co
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and liquidity, borrowing costs and access to the capital reduce riskweighted assets and limit its expesiss a

markets, among other factors; result;

the impact of restrictions imposed on proprietary trading A Citiés ability to continue -
and fundsrelated activities by the Financial Refo Act, as it continues to invest in the businesses in Citicorp with
including the potenti al- negat ihescentiriuedprcerthintyohthe Gripactrobtanslatiarr k e t
making activities and its global competitive position with and legal and regulatory expenses from quarter to quarter;
respect to its trading activities; A Ccitios ability to hire and
increased compliance costs and possible changesto i 6 s result of regulatory uncertainty regarding compensation
practices and operations with respica number of its practices or otherwise;

U.S. Consumer businesses as a result of the Financial A Citi 6s ab iolestimgte themutgpmesod i ¢ t
Reform Act and the establishment of the new Bureau of exposure of the extensive legal and regulatory

Consumer Financial Protection; proceedigs to which it is subject, and the potential for

the continued impact of The Credit Card Accountability the Awhistlebl owero provisi
Responsibility and Disclosure Act 00@9 as well as Act to further increase Cit|
ot her regulatory requirement slegalrandCegulaitoy proceedimgsli t car d
businesses and business models; A potential future changes in key accounting standards

the exposure of Citi, as originator of residential mortgage utilized by Citi and their impact on how Citi records and
loans, servicer or seller of such loans, sponsor of reports its financial condition and results of operations;
residential mortgagbacked securitizatiotransactions, or A the accuracy of Citiés assu
in other capacities, to government sponsored enterprises including in determining credit loss reserves, litigation
(GSEs), investors, mortgage insurers, or other third and regulatory exposures, matg representation and

parties as a result of representations and warranties made warranty claims and the fair value of certain assets, used

in connection with the transfer, sale or securitization of to prepare its financial statements;

such loans A Citiés ability to maintain
the outcome of inquiries and proceedings by processes and strategies to protect against losses, which
governmental entities or state attorneys general, or can be increased by amemtration of risk, particularly

judicial and regulatory decisions, regarding practices in with Citids counter parties
the residential mortgage industry, including among other A a failure in Citids operati.
things the processes followed for foliesing residential those of third parties;

mortgages and mortgage transfer and securitization A Citiés ability to mai;andai n
processes, and any regutdsoenti alA i mpaconoinncCedi dvsl atility an
operations or financial conditipn Japan Consumer Finance businesduding the type,

the continued uncertainty about the sustainability and number and amount of customer refund claims received

pace OT ‘h‘? economic recovery, inding continued . Any forwardlooking statementsiade by or on behalf of
disruption in the global financial markets and the potential Citigro%ps eak only a%of the. date theg are made Gitid
i i e

I mpact on ) consumer credit, @0&s notindeltaketo udeat% forvvaerosokmg Statefehts to
results of operations;

Citios ability to maintain Weggimpag ofciicunstanges or pverisfhatarisefigr g
changing liquidity standards in the U.S.afiroad, and the € dat eforward)okm%satemens ere made.
impact of maintaimg adequate INIMfui dity on Citiéds

an 0 own er sumdempthe tnteraah Reeedue Code

and its effect on Citibs ability to utilize its deferred
assets (DTASs) to offset future taxable income;
the potenti al negative impact on the value of Citids DTA

if corporate tax rates in the U.S., or certain foreign

jurisdictions, are decreased;

the expiration of a provision of the U.S. tax law allowing

Citi to deferU.S. taxes on certain active financial services

income and its effect on Citibds tax expense;

Citids ability to continue to wind down Citi Holdings at
the same pace or level as in the past and its ability to
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME (Unaudited)

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries
Three Months Ended March 31,

In millions of dollars, excedppershare amounts 2011 2010
Revenues
Interest revenue $18,200 $20,852
Interest expense 5,976 6,291
Net interest revenue $12,224 $14,561
Commissions and fees $ 3,368 $ 3,645
Principal transactions 3,167 4,116
Administration and other fiduciafges 1,097 1,022
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investments 580 538
Other than temporary impairment losses on investments

Gross impairment losses (1,733) (550)

Less: Impairments recognized in OCI 26 43

Net impairment losses recognized in eagsi $(1,707) $ (507)
Insurance premiums $ 672 $ 748
Other revenue 325 1,298
Total non-interest revenues $ 7,502 $10,860
Total revenues, net of interest expense $19,726 $25,421
Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims
Provision for loan losses $ 2,899 $ 8,366
Policyholder benefits and claims 260 287
Provision for unfunded lending commitments 25 (35)
Total provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims $ 3,184 $ 8,618
Operating expenses
Compensationrad benefits $ 6,409 $ 6,162
Premises and equipment 825 830
Technology/communication 1,214 1,199
Advertising and marketing 397 302
Other operating 3,481 3,025
Total operating expenses $12,326 $11,518
Income from continuing operations before incomeaxes $ 4,216 $ 5,285
Provision for income taxes 1,185 1,036
Income from continuing operations $ 3,031 $ 4,249
Discontinued operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 60 $ (B
Gain on sale 4 94
Provision (benefit) for iname taxes 24 (122)
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ 40 $ 211
Net income before attribution of noncontrolling interests $ 3,071 $ 4,460
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 72 32
Citigroupds net i ncome $ 2,999 $ 4,428
Basic earnings per sharé?
Income from continuing operations $ 0.10 $ 0.15
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes d 0.01
Net income $ 0.10 $ 0.15
Weighted average common shares outstanding 29,043.5 28,444.3
Diluted earnings per share'?
Income from continuing operations $ 0.10 $ 0.14
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes 0 0.01
Net income $ 0.10 $ 0.15
Adjusted weighted average common shares outstanding 29,965.8 29,333.5

(1) Due to rounding, earnings per share on continuing operatmhgiscontinuedperations may not sum to earnings per share amount on net income.

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries

March 31,
2011 December 31

In millions of dollars, except shares (Unaudited) 2010
Assets
Cash and due from banks (including segregated cash and other deposits) $ 27,842 $ 27,972
Deposits with banks 163,603 162,437
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell

(including $98,566and$87512as ofMarch 31, 201l andDecember 31, 2010espectively, at fair value) 261,120 246,717
Brokerage receivables 40,901 31,213
Trading account assets

(including$128,020and$117,554pledged to creditors &arch31, 2011andDecember 31, 2010@espectively) 323,110 317,272
Investments (includin§14,988 an&12,546pledged ¢ creditors aMarch31, 201landDecember 31, 2010

respectivelyand$303,981and$281,174as of March 31, 2011andDecember 31, 2010espectively, at fair value 327,257 318,164
Loans, net of unearned income

Consumer (includingl1,489and$1,745asof March31,2011andDecember 31, 2010@espectivelyat fair value) 441,213 457,632

Corporate (including2,862and$2,627as of March31, 2011landDecember 31, 2010espectively, at fair value) 195,923 191,162
Loans, net of unearned income $ 637,136 $ 648,79

Allowance for loan losses (36,568) (40,655)
Total loans, net $ 600,568 $ 608,139
Goodwill 26,339 26,152
Intangible assets (other than MSRs) 7,280 7,504
Mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) 4,690 4,554
Other assets (includirgl3,758and$19,319%asof March 31, 201landDecember 31, 2010espectivelyat fair value 162,433 163,778
Assets of discontinued operations held for sale 2,672 o}
Total assets $1,947,815 $1,913,902

The following table presents certain assets of consolidated variabilesirgatities (VIES), which are included in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet above. The assets in the table below include only those assets that can be used to @estlef obligati
consolidated VIEs on the following page, and are in excess of those avigyati

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Assets of consolidated VIEs that can only be used to settle obligations of consolidated VIEs
Cash and due from banks $ 1,506 $ 799
Trading account assets 3,804 6,509
Investments 7,809 7,946
Loans, net of unearned income
Consumer (includingh462and $1,718 as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively,
at fair value) 106,363 117,768
Corporate (including 86and $425 as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, resbgcti
at fair value) 21,766 23,537
Loans, net of unearned income $128,129 $141,305
Allowance for loan losses (9,432) (11,346)
Total loans, net $118697 $129,959
Other assets 1,203 680
Total assets of consolidated VIEs that can only be uséal settle obligations of consolidated VIEs $133,019 $145,893

[Statement continues ahe nextpage]
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Continued)

March 31,
2011 Decenber 31,
In millions of dollars, except shares (Unaudited) 2010
Liabilities
Norrinterestbearing deposits in U.S. offices $ 81,839 $ 78,268
Interestbearing deposits in U.S. offices (including4® and $65as ofMarch 31, 2011andDecember 31, 2010
respectively, at fair value) 222,613 225731
Norrinterestbearing deposits in offices outside the U.S. 61,851 55,066
Interestbearing deposits in offices outside the U.S. (includingnd $00as ofMarch31, 2011andDecember 31
2010, respectively, at fair value) 499,560 485,903
Total deposits $ 865,863 $ 844,968
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase (itithdiéhgusd
$121,193as ofMarch31, 2011andDecember 31, 2010respectively, at fair value) 187,825 189,558
Brokerage payales 50,394 51,749
Trading account liabilities 146,346 129,054
Shat-term borrowings (including®914and $,429 as ofMarch31, 201landDecembeB1, 2010 respectively,
at fair value) 78,622 78,790
Longterm debt (including 36,278and $25,97 asof March31, 2011andDecembeB1, 2010, respectively,
at fair value) 376,541 381,183
Other liabilities (including ¥,716and $9,710 as dflarch31, 2011andDecembeB1, 2010 respectively,
at fair value) 68,792 72,811
Liabilities of discontinud operations held for sale 39 o}
Total liabilities $1,774,422 $1,748,113
Stockhol dersé equity
Preferred stock ($1.00 par value; authorized shares: 30 million), issued §R2z088: at March31, 201] at aggrega
liquidation value $ 312 $ 312
Common stock ($0.01 par value; authorized shares: 60 billion), issued $9aBd8,448,574t March 31, 2011
and29,224,016,234 at Decembgt, 2010 293 292
Additional paidin capital 102,740 101,024
Retained earnings 82,554 79,559
Treasurystock, at cos20118 112,008,014haresand 2010 165,655,72Ehares (879 (1,442)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (13,989 (16,277)
Tot al Citigroup stockholdersd equity $ 171,037 $ 163,468
Noncontrolling interest 2,356 2,321
Total equity $ 173,393 $ 165,789
Total liabilities and equity $1,947,815 $1,913,902

The following table presents certain liabilities of consolidated VIEs, which are included in the Consolidated Balandm@heet a
The liabilities in the table below includkird-party liabilities of consolidated VIEs only, and exclude intercompany balances that
eliminate in consolidation. The liabilities also exclude amounts where creditors or beneficial interest holders havdéadiceurse
general credit of Citigroup.

March 31, December 31

2011 2010

Liabilities of consolidated VIEs for which creditors or beneficial interest holders do not have recourse to the

general credit of Citigroup
Shortterm borrowings $22,665 $22,046
Longterm debt (including 025and $3,942 as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, at fe

value) 67,381 69,710
Other liabilities 553 813
Total liabilities of consolidated VIEs for which creditors or beneficial interest holders do not

have recourse to the genet credit of Citigroup $90599 $92,569

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLI DATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES I N STO Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Unaudited) Three months ended March 31,
In millions of dollars except shares in thousands 2011 2010
Preferred stock at aggregate liquidation value
Balance, beginning of year $ 312 $ 312
Balance, end gberiod $ 312 $ 312
Common stock and additional paidin capital
Balance, beginnipof year $101,316 $ 98,428
Employee benefit plans (157) (3,506
Issuance of new common stock o} o}
Conversion oADIA Upper Decs Equity Units Purchase Contreccommon stock 1,85 1,875
Other (€] (83)
Balance, end gberiod $103,033 $ 96,714
Retained earnings
Balance, beginning of year $ 79,559 $ 77,440
Adjustment to opening balance, net of taes 5 (8,442)
Adjusted balance, beginning of period $ 79,559 $ 68,998
Citi greonegné s n 2,999 4,428
Common dividend¥ 3 6
Preferred dividends 4 o}
Balance, end gberiod $ 82,554 $ 73,432
Treasury stock, at cost
Balance, beginning of year $ (1,442) $ (4,543
Issuance of shares pursuant to esgpé benefit plans 564 3,364
Treasury stock acquiréd 3 )
Other o) 2
Balance, end gberiod $ (878) $ (1,178
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance, beginning of year $(16,277) $(18,937)
Net changeri unrealized gains and losses on investment securities, net of taxes 740 1,182
Net change in cash flow hedges, net of taxes 152 223
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustment, net of taxes 1,364 (279)
Pension liability adjustment, net of taé@ 37 (48)
Net change ilAccumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 2,293 $ 1,078
Balance, end gberiod $(13,984) $(17,859)
Total Citigroup ¢ o mm@haressoutssanding: @9,206e441sabhtcle 31,201tand

29,058,360 at December 3010 $170,725 $151,109
Total Citigroup stockholdersé equity $171,037 $151,421
Noncontrolling interest
Balance, beginning ofear $ 2321 $ 2,273
Initial origination of a noncontrolling interest o} (10)
Transactions between noncontrollimjerest shareholders and the relatedsolidaéd subsidiary o} (22)
Transactions between Citigroup and the noncontrolliterest shareholders (92) o}
Net income attributable to noncontrolligterest shareholders 72 32
Dividends paid to noncontrollinopterest shareholders o] (54)
Accumulated other comprehensive incé@meet change in unrealized gains and losses on investment

securities, net of tax 2) 12

Accumulated other comprehensive incé@meet dange in FX translation adjustment, net of tax 31 5)
All other 26 132
Net change in noncontrolling interests $ 3 $ 85
Balance,end of period $ 2,356 $ 2,358
Total equity $173,393 $153,779
Comprehensive income (loss)
Netincome (loss) before attribution of noncontrolling interests $ 3,071 $ 4,460
Net change ilAiccumulated other comprehensive income (Ibef)re attribution of noncontrolling interest 2,322 1,085
Total comprehensive income (losd)efore attribution of noncontrolling interest $ 5,393 $ 5,545
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interests $ 101 $ 39
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Citigroup $ 5,292 $ 5,506

(1) The adjustment to the opieg balance foRetained earnings 2010 represents the cumulative effect of initially adopting ASC 8afsolidation(SFAS 167)
See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statgsne

(2) Common dividends in 2010 represent a reversal of dividends accrued on forfeitures of previously issued but unvestedteciptoyerls related to employees
who have left Citigroup.

(3) All open market repurchases were transacted undexiating authorized share repurchase plan and relate to customer fails/errors.

(4) Reflects adjustments to the funded status of pension and postretirement plans, which is the difference betwealu¢hef ftie plan assets and the projected
beneft obligation. See Not8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited) Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries
Three Months Ended March 31,

In millions of ddlars 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations

Net income before attribution of noncontrolling interests $ 3,071 $ 4,460

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 72 32

Citigroupds net i ncome $ 2,999 $ 4428
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes 36 147
Gain on sale, net of taxes 4 64

Income from continuing operationg excluding noncontrolling interests $ 2,959 $ 4,217

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating tgties of
continuing operations

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and present value of future profits $ 62 $ 102
(Additions)/reductions to deferred policy acquisition costs (25) 1,994
Depreciation and amortization 671 623
Provision for credit losses 2,924 8,331
Change in trading account assets 4,162 (13,110)
Change in trading account liabilities 17,292 5,236
Change in federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell (14,403) (12,326)
Change in federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase (1,733) 53,630
Change in brokerage receivables net of brokerage payables (11,043) (6,172)
Realized gains from sales of investments (580) (538)
Change in loas heldfor-sale (629) (1,444)
Other, net 1,382 (5,125)
Total adjustments $ (1,920 $31,201
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations $ 1,039 $35,418
Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations
Changem deposits with banks $ (1,166) $ 3,889
Change in loans 5,624 25,536
Proceeds from sales and securitizations of loans 1,824 1,252
Purchases of investments (105,554) (95,504)
Proceeds from sales of investments 35185 32,962
Proceeds from maturitiexf investments 47,361 45,904
Capital expenditures on premises and equipment and capitalized software (688) (278)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment, subsidiaries and affiliates, and repossessed assets 422 637
Net cash (used in) provided by imesting activities of continuing operations $(16,992 $14,398
Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations
Dividends paid $ (4) $ 0
Issuance of common stock o} o}
Conversiorof ADIA Upper Decs equity units purchase conttmotommon stock 1,85 1,875
Treasury stock acquired o} 1)
Stock tendered for payment of withholding taxes (220) (126)
Issuance of longerm debt 8,190 7,331
Paymentsand redemptions of loAgrm debt (14,189 (16,682)
Change in deposits 20,908 (7,989)
Change in shoiterm borrowings (1,068) (33,885)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of continuing operations $15,492 $(49,477)
Effect of exchange ta changes on cash and cash equivalents $ 331 $ (185)
Discontinued operations
Net cash provided by discontinued operations $ 9 $ 52
Change in cash and due from banks $ (130) $ 206
Cash and due from banks at beginning of griod 27,972 25472
Cash and due from banks at end of period $27,842 $25,678
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information for continuing operations
Cash paid during theeriodfor income taxes $ 874 $ 1,802
Cash paid during theeriodfor interest $ 4,608 $ 5711
Non-cash investing activities
Transfers to OREO and other repossessed assets $422 $ 669
Transfers to trading account assets from investn{aetd-to-maturity) $12,700 o}

See Notes to the Consolidated Fio@al Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATE D FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS

1.BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial
Statements as dflarch31, 2011 and for the threenonth

periods endedMarch 31, 2011and 2010dnclude the accoust

of Citigroup Inc. (Citigroup) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the Company). In the opinion of management, all
adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments,
necessary for a fair presentation have been reflected. The
accompanying Unauditedonsolidated Financial Statements
should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes
Report on Form 1 for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2010(2010Annual Report on Form 1H).

Certain financial information that is normally included in
annual financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, but is not required
for interim reporting purposes, has been condensed or omitted.

Managemenmust make estimates and assumptions that
affect the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
footnote disclosures. While management makes its best
judgment, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Current market conditions increase tigk and complexity of
the judgments in these estimates.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the-prior
perioddbés financi al statement s
presentation.

As noted above, the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements arunaudited.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Companyds accounting pol
understanding management 6s d
results of operations and financial condition. The Company
has identifiecsix policies as being gnificant because they
require management to make subjective and/or complex
judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain. These
policies relate to Valuations of Financial Instruments,
Allowance for Credit Losses, Securitizatio@odwill,

Income Taxes and Legal Reserves. The Company, in
consultation with the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors, has reviewed and approved these significant
accounting policies, which are furthéescribedunder
ASignificant
and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Stegntsin the
C o mp a 20§0&mnual Report on Form 1H.
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Accountti rEgg t P onait ®iseés

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of
the Company. The Company consolidates suasas in

which it holds, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the

voting rights or where it exercises control. Entities where the
Company holds 20% to 50% of the voting rights and/or has

the ability to exercise significant influence, other than
investents of designated venture capital subsidiaries, or
investments accounted for at fair value under the fair value
option, are accounted for under the equity method, and the pro
rata share of their income (loss) is include®ther revenue
incorod frond iBvdtmeants in IEss than @G&negcdnspanfes n u a
is recognized when dividends are received. As discussed
below, Citigroup consolidates entities deemed to be variable
interest entities when Citigroup is determined to be the
primary beneficiary. Gains and lossestbe disposition of
branches, subsidiaries, affiliates, buildings, and other

i nvest ments and charges for
impairment in their value that is other than temporary, such
that recovery of the carrying amount is deemed unlikely, are
included inOther revenue

m

Repurchase and Resale Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (repos) and
securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos)
genheonallydmnotfcanstitute 4 sale forlaecountingrpurgoses of p e
the underlyingsecurities, and so are treated as collateralized
financing transactions. Where certain conditions are met under
ASC 86010, Transfers and Servicin@ormerly FASB

Statement No. 16@&ccounting for Transfers of Financial

Asset} the Company accounts foertain repurchase
agreementsaandesectirities lgralingeagréeménts aissales. The
ey disinstiororesultiangiirdtheseragréements Iseingaccounted
for as sales is a reduction in initial margin or restriction in

daily maintenance margin. At March 31, 2011 and Ddxam

31, 2010, a nominal amount of these transactions were
accounted for as sales that reduced trading account assets.

and Significan
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ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Change in Accounting for Embedded Credit Derivatives
In March 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010, Sope
Exception Related to Embedded Credit Derivatifée ASU
clarifies that certain embedded derivatives, such as those

contained in certain securitizations, CDOs and structured notes,

should be considered embedded credit derivatives subject to
potentialbifurcation and separate fair value accounting. The
ASU allows any beneficial interest issued by a securitization
vehicle to be accounted for under the fair value option at
transition on July 1, 2010.

The Companyaselected to account faertainbeneicial
interests issued by securitization vehicles under the fair value
optionthat are included in the table beloBeneficial interests
previously classified as hetd-maturity (HTM) were
reclassified to availablfor-sale (AFS) on June 30, 2010,
becauses of that reporting datthe Company did not have the
intent to hold the beneficial interests until maturity.

The following tablealsoshows the gross gains and gross
losses that make up theetaxcumulativeeffect adjustment to
retained earnings foeclassified beneficial interests, recorded
on July 1, 2010:

July 1, 2010

Pretax cumulative effect adjustment to Retained earnings

Gross unredized losses

Gross unrealizd gains

In millions of dollarsat June 30, 2010 Amortized cost recognized in AOCIY recognized in AOCI Fair value
Mortgagebacked securities

Prime $ 390 $ 0 $49 $ 439

Alt-A 550 0 54 604

Subprime 221 o} 6 227

Non-U.S.residential 2,249 5] 38 2,287
Total mortgagebacked securities $ 3,410 $ 0 $147 $ 3,557
Assetbacked securities

Auction rate securities $ 4463 $401 $48 $ 4,110

Other assebacked 4,189 19 164 4,334
Total assebacked securities $ 8,652 $420 $212 $ 8,444
Total reclassified debt securities $12,062 $420 $359 $12,001

(1) Allreclassified debt securities with gross unrealized losses were assessed frasthemporaryimpairment as of June 30, 2010, irdilg an assessment of
whether the Company intends to sell the security. For securities that the Company insefidsxtpairment charges of $1#llion were recorded in earnings

the second quarter of 2010

Beginning July 1, 2010, theéompany eleted to account
for these beneficial interests under the fair value option for
various reasons, including:

A To reduce the operational burden of assessing beneficial
interests for bifurcation under the guidance in the ASU;

A Where bifurcation would otherwidee required under the
ASU, to avoid the complicated operational requirements
of bifurcating the embedded derivatives from the host
contracts and accounting for each separately. The
Company reclassified substantially all beneficial interests
where bifurcabn would otherwise be required under the
ASU; and

A To permit more economic hedging strategidsle
minimizing volatility in reported earnings.
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Credit Quality and Allowance for Credit Losses

Disclosures

In July 2010, the FASB issuediSU No. 201020, Disclosures
about Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and Allowance
for Credit LossesThe ASU requires a greater level of
disaggregated information about the allowance for credit
losses and the credit quality of financing receivabilég.
periodend balance disclosure requirements for loans and the
allowance for loans lossegereeffective for reporting periods
ending on or after December 15, 2Cdd were included in
theC o mp a 20¢0&mnual Report on Form 18, while
disclosures forctivity during a reporting period in the loan
and allowance for loan losses accouwareeffective for

reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2010
and are included in this quarterly report (see Bafeand 13

to the Consolidated Finaial Statmen)s The FASBhas
deferedthe troubled debt restructurifgDR) disclosure
requirements that were parttbis ASUto be concurrent with
the effective date akecently issueduidance for identifying a
TDR (discussed below)n thethird quarter of 2011.
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FUTURE APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING Potential Amendments to Current Accounting Standards

STANDARDS In January 2011, the FASB issued the Proposed Accounting
Standards UpdaBieBalance Sheet (Topic 210): Offsettirig

Troubled Debt Restructurings (TDRS) propose a frqmework for offsetting fiMaI assets and

In April 2011, he FASB issuedASU 201102 to clarify the liabilities. This proposal would prohibit netting most

guidance for accounting for troubled debt restructurings derivative contracts covered by ISDA master netting
(TDRs). The ASU clarifies the guidance n a c r e d i2grgemeNts and also prohibit netting most repurchase/resale

evaluation of whether it has granted a concession and whether agreements under standard industry agreements that are
a debtor is experiencing financial difficulties, such as: allowed to be néed todayand would result in a significant
grossup of assets and liabilities on the balance sheet.

1 Creditors cannot assume that debt extensions at or above a The FASBand IASB arecurrently working orseveral
borrower 6s original contr ac fomtplojectsdricl@dingreendments toesting hctouritirig e
troubled debt restructurings standards governing financial instruments é&ease

T If a borrower doesndét have aceustisgsUpbnxonfpletiordostheatandaads,he Company I ¢
for debt with characteristics similar to the restructured will need to reevaluate its accounting and disclosuigse
debt, that may indicate that the creditor has granted a FASB is proposing sweeping changes to the classification and
concession. measurement of financial instruments, hedging and

1 A borrower that is not currently in defamay still be impairment guidace. The FASB is also working on a project
considered to be experiencing financial difficulty when that would require all leases to be capitalized on the balance
payment default i s consi der ashket.Tipese@injactks ik haversignifitast impagts fershe e a b |
future.o Company. However, due to ongoing deliberations of the

standaresetters, the Company is cently unable to determine

The guidancevil be effective for theC o mp a thisd © s the effect of future amendments or proposals.

quarter2011 Forml0-Q and is to be appliedbtrospectivly to
restructurings occurring on or after January 1, 20he
Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of
adoptig the ASU.

LossContingency Disclosures

In July 2010 the FASB issued secondexposure draft

proposing expanded disclosures regaydoss contingencies.

This proposal increases the number of loss contingencies

subject to disclosure and requires substantial quantitative and

gualitative information to be provided about those loss

contingencies. The proposal will have no impact on the

Companyds accounting for |l oss contingencies.

8¢
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2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Sale of Egg Banking PLC Credit Card Business
On March 1, 201, the Company announced that Bganking
PLC (Egg), an indirect subdiary which is part of the Citi
Holdings segment, entered into a definitagreementhat
will result in
to BarclaysPLC. Thesaleclosal on April 28,2011

This sale is reported as discontinued operatfonthe
first quarter of 201Dbnly. Prior periods were not reclassified

In millions of dollars

t hceeditccard/bessnéss t u r

due to the immateriality of the impact in those periods. The
total gain on sale of Egg will be recognized upon closing.
Total assets of $2 billion associated with the sale of the
Eggcredit cardbusiness are included Assets of discontinued
operations held for salen the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
The following is a summary as of March 31, 2011 of the
assets Aind [@biltties @scontiued operationiseld for sale
on the Conslidated Balance Sheet for the operations related
to Egg

March 31, 2011

Assets
Deposits at interest with banks $ 16
Loans, net of unearned income 2,665
Allowance for loan losses (240
Total loans, net $2,425
Goodwill 147
Intangibles 18
Other assets 66
Total assets $2,672
Liabilities
Deposits $ 13
Other liabilities 26
Total liabilities $ 39

Summarized financial information for discontinued
operations, including cash flows, related to the shlegy
follows:

Three Months Endec

In millions of dollars March 31, 2011

Total revenues, net of interest expense $126
Incomefrom discontinued operations $61
Losson sale 0
Provisionfor income taxes 21
Income from discontinued operations,

net of taxes $40

Three Months Ended

In millions of dollars March 31, 2011

Combined Results for Discontinued Operations

The following is summarized financial information for the
Eggcards busines$Jikko Cordial business, German retalil
banking operations and CitiCapital businédse SLC
business, which was sold on December 3102&lnot
included aghis salewasreported as discontinuegerations
for the third and fourth quartec§ 20100nly due to the
immateriality of the impact of that presentation in other
periods The Nikko Cordial business, which was sold on
October 1, 209, theGerman retail banking operation, which
was sold on December 5, 2008, and the CitiCapital business,
which was sold on July 31, 2008, continue to have minimal
residual costs associated with the sales.

Cash flows from operating activities $5 Three Months EndedMarch 31,
Cash flows from investing activities o In millions of ddlars 2011 2010
Cash flows from financing activities ) Total revenues, net of interest
Net cash provided by discontinued expense : : $ 130 $ 117
; Income(loss)from discontinued
operations $0 .
operations $ 60 $ B
Gain on sale 4 94
Provision (enefif) for income taxes 24 (122
Income from discontinued
operations, net of taxes $ 40 $ 211

Three Months EndedMarch 31,

In millions of dollars 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities $0 $(135)
Cash flows from investing activities o] 186
Cash flows from financing activities o} 1
Net cash provided by (used in)

discontinued operations $0 $ 52
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3. BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The Citi Holdings segment is composed of Brekerage

Citigroup is a diversified bank holding company whose and Asset Management, Local Consumer LendidfSpecial
businesses provide a broad range of financial services to Asset Pool.

Consumer and Corporate customers around the world. The Corporat/Otherincludes net treasury results, unallocated
Company6s act i vthraugheahsRegionad ¢ o n d comporaedexpenses, offsets to certain-lteen

Consumer Banking, Institutional Clients Group (ICG}ii reclassifications (eliminations), the results of discontinued
Holdings andCorporate/Othebusiness segments. operations and unallocated taxes.

The Regional Consumer Bankirsggment includes a
global, fulkservice Consumer franchise delivering a wide
array of banking, &dit card lending, and investment services
through a network of local branches, offices and electronic
delivery systems.

The Co mg@Gsegmértis composed B&curities
and BankingandTransaction Serviceand provides
corporations, governments, irtstions and investors in
approximately 100 countries with a broad range of banking
and financial products and services.

The following table presents certain information regardingye Company 6s conti nuing operation

Revenues, Provision (benefit) Income (loss) from Identifiable
net of interest expensé” for income taxes continuing operations®® assets
Three Months EndedMarch 31,

In millions of dollars, except Mar. 31, Dec. 31,
identifiableassetsn billions 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Regional Consumer Bankin $ 7,942 $ 8,082 $ 625 $ 207 $1,545 $ 973 $ 333 $ 331
Institutional Clients Group 8,562 10,440 1,075 1,812 2,550 4,116 997 953

Subtotal Citicorp $16,504 $18,522 $1,700 $2,019 $4,095 $5,089 $1,330 $1,84
Citi Holdings 3,283 6,550 (264) (946) (547) (875) 337 359
Corporate/Other (61) 349 (251) (37) (517) 35 281 271
Total $19,726 $25,421 $1,185 $1,036 $3,031 $4,249 $1,948 $1,914

(1) Includes Citicorp total revenues, net of interest expensdgith Americaof $6.3 billion and $8.0 billion; iEMEA of $3.3 billion and $3.8 billion; il.atin
Americaof $3.3 billion and $3.0 billion; and iAsiaof $3.6 billion and $3.7 billion for the thremonths ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively. Regional
numbers exclude Citi Holdings afbrporate/Other which largely operate within the U.S.

(2) Includes pretax provisions (credits) for credit lossed for benefits and claims in tRegional Consumer Bankimgsults of $1.3 billion and $2.9 billion; in the
ICG results of $(0.2) billion and $(0.1) billion; and in the Citi Holdings results of $2.1 billion and $5.8 billion for thertbnéles ended Mah 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively.
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4. INTEREST REVENUE AND EXPENSE 5. COMMISSIONS AND FEES

For thethreemonths ended MarcBi, 2A.1 and 2A0, Commissions and fees revenue includes charges to customers
respectively, interest revenue and expense consisted of the for credit and bak cards, including transactigmocessing
following: fees and annual fees; advisory and equity and debt
underwriting services; teling and depositelated
Three Months EndedMarch 31, transactions, such as loan commitments, standby letters of
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 credit and other deposit and loan servicing activities;
Interest revenue investment managemerglated fees, including brokerage
Loan interest, including fees $12,286  $14,673 services and custody and trust services; and insurancarfdes
Deposits with banks 459 290 commissions.
Federal funds sold and securities purchas The following table presents commissions and fees
under agreements to r.es.e" 838 752 revenue for the¢hree monthendedMarch31:
Investments, including dividends 2,456 3,109
Trading account assefs 2,010 1,872 Three Months EndedMarch 31,
Other interest 151 156 In millions of dollars 2011 2010
Total interest revenue $18,200  $20,852
Interest expense Credit cards and bank cards $ 865 $ 965
Deposits? $ 2,014 $ 2,080 Tradingrelated 691 599
Federal funds purchased and Investmait banking 647 845
securities loaned or sold under Transaction services 374 347
agreements to repurchase 737 654 Checkingrelated 225 273
Trading account liabilitiéd 84 63 Other Consumer 217 312
Shortterm borrowings 170 276 Primerica - 91
Longterm debt 2,971 3,218 Loan servicing 146 139
Total interest expense $ 5976 $ 6,291 Corporate finance 128 96
Net interest revenue $12,224  $14,561 Other 75 (22)
Provision for loan losses 2,899 8,366 Total commissions and fees $3,368 $3,645
Net interest revenue after
provision for loan losses $ 9325 $6,1%

(1) Interest expense dfrading account liabilitieof ICG is reported as a
reduction of interest revenue frofnading account assets

(2) Includes deposit insurance fees and charges of $220 million and $223
million for the three months ended Marchl32011 and 2010,
respectively.
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6. PRINCIPAL TRANSACT IONS 7. INCENTIVE PLANS

Principal transactions revenue consists of realized and Stock-Based Incentive Compensation
unrealized gains and losses from trading activities. Trading The Company has adopted a number of equity compensation
activities include revenues from fixed income, equities, credit plans under which it currently administers award program
and commodities products, as well as foreign exchange involving grants of stock options, restricted or deferred stock
transactions. Not inated in the table below is the impact of awards, and stock payments. The award programs are used to
net interest revenue related to trading activities, which is an attract, retain and motivate officers, employees and non
integral part of trading act i enplbyeediettory to provide ircentivesifartheir The f o
table presents principal transactions revenue fothite= contributions to thedngterm performance and growth of the
monthsendedMarch 31: Company, and to align their interests with those of
stockholders. Certain of these equity issuances also increase
Three Months EndedMarch 31, the Companyo6s stockhol derso e
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 programs are administered by the Personnel and
Regional Consumer Banking $ 93 $ 159 Compensation Committee of the Citigroup Board of Directors
Institutional Clients Group 2,260 3307 (the Committee), which is composed entirely of independent
Subtotal Citicorp $2,353  $3,456 non-employee directors. Since April 19, 2005, all equity
Ié?glilaé%gsgr%e,z\ls_sgtdll/rllgnagemem (g) (gg)) awards have been pursuant to stockhefggroved plans.
Special Asset Pool 632 1,147 .
Subtotal Citi Holdings $ 627 $ 997 Stock Award and Stock Qption Programs
Corporate/Other 187 (347) The Company recognized compensation expense related to
Total Citigroup $3,167 $4,116 stock award and stock option programs 4#5&million for the
three months ended March 31, 2011. The Company granted
Three Months EndedMarch 31, 366 million shares as equity awards in the first quarter of
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2011, ofwhich 36 million shares were issued as immediately
Interest rate contracts $1624 $1,374 vested stock payments, some of which are subject to sales
Foreign exchangeontracts? 787 241 restrictions, as described below.
Equity contract$” 428 565 On February 14, 2011, 29 million stock options were
Commodity and other contracfs (25) 109 granted to certain employees. In general, the optionuest
Credit derivative$” 353 1,827 third per year for three years, and have aysiar life. The
Total Citigroup $3,167 $4,116 strike price of these options is $4.91.

Annual incentive awards made in January 2011 to certain

(1) Includes revenues from government securities and corporate debt, executive officers and highly Compensated employees were

municipal securitiespreferred stock, mortgage securities, and other debt

instruments. Also includes spot and forward trading of currencies and made in the Torm of longerm resticted stock (ll-TRS)7 .V_Vith_
exchangdraded and ovethe-counter (OTC) currency options, options terms prescribed by the Emergency Economic Stabilization
on fixed income securities, interest rate swaps, currencyss\sap Act of 2008, as amended (EESA). The senior executive

options, caps and floors, financial futures, OTC options, and forward ) :
contracts on fixed income securities. officers and next 20 most highly compensated employees for

(2) Includes revenues from foreign exchange spot, forward, option and swap 2010 (the 20_10 Top 25) were eligible for LTRS awards. LTRS
contracts, as well as translation gains and losses. awads vest in full after three years of service and there are no
(3) Includesrevenues from common, preferred and convertible preferred provisions for early vesting of LTRS in the event of

stock, convertible corporate debt, eqelitiked notes, and exchange retirement, involuntary termination of employment or change
traded and OTC equity options and warrants.

(4) Primarily includes revenues from crude oil, refined oil products, natural in control, but early vesting will occur upon death or
gas, ad other commodities trades. disability. Other execuwie officers and employees received
(5) Includes revenues from structured credit products. annual incentive awards in January 2011 in the form of

deferred stock awards wunder t
Accumulation Program (CAP). Generally, CAP awards
granted in January 2011 vest ratably over thoedouryear
periods.

Annual incentive awards made in January 2011 to
executive officers (in the form of LTRS or under CAP) have
an additionalperformancebased vesting condition. If
Citigroup has pretax net losses during any of the years of the
deferral period, the Comntéle may exercise its discretion to
eliminate or reduce the number of shares in the award that are
considered attributable to that ye@he compensation cost
associated with these awards is remeasured each period until
the performancebased vesting condith is resolved.

All CAP and LTRS awards made in January 2011 provide
for a clawback that applies if the awards were based on
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earnings that were misstated or on materially inaccurate
performance metric criteria, or if the participant knowingly
provided inacurate information relating to financial
statements or performance metrics, or materially violated risk
limits or balance sheet or workimgpitalor regulatory capital
guidance. FoEuropean UniorfEU) participants who are
Ai denti fi ed <«tsabddiioatothdEUs
clawback described below.

CAP awards made in January
the EU have several features that differ from the generally
applicable CAP provisions des
are those Citigroup eployees whose compensation is subject
to various banking regulations on sound incentive
compensation policies in the EU. These CAP awards vest in
full after three years of service, are subject to angixth sale
restriction after vesting, and are subjtectancellation if there
is reasonable evidence that participant engaged in misconduct
or committed material error, in either case in connection with
his or her empl oyment, or Cit
business unit has suffered a material downtuitsifinancial
performance or a material failure of risk managemenée
compensation cost associated with these awards is remeasured
each period until they are no longer subject to cancellation
upon a material downturn financialperformance or a
materal failure of risk management.

A portion of the immediately vested cash incentive
compensation awarded in January 2011 to selected highly
compensated employees was delivered in immediatsyed
stock payments. In the EU, this stock was subjestles
restrictions of at least six months.

Generally, shares subject to unvested restricted and
deferred stock awards are eligible to receive dividends or
dividend equivalent payments during their applicable vesting
periods. However, pursuant to the provisionthef
Companybds 2009 Stock Incentiyv
with performance vesting criteria, the CAP and LTRS stock
awards with performaneeased vesting conditions described
above are not eligible to receive or accrue dividends or
dividend equivalentduring their vesting periods.

Profit Sharing Plan

On February 14, 2011, the Committee approved grants of
awards under the 2011 Key Employee Profit Sharing Plan
(KEPSP) to certain executive officers, which may entitle
participants to profisharing paymets based on an initial
performance measurement period of January 1, 2011 to
December 31, 2012. Generally, if a participant remains
employed and all other conditions to vesting and payment are
satisfied, the participant will be entitled to an initial paytne

in 2013, as well as a holdback payment in 2014 that may be
reduced based on performance during the subsequent holdback
period (generally, January 1, 2013 through December 31,
2013). If the vesting and performance conditions are satisfied,

a p ar tsinitial payanertt Will equal twaehirds of the
product of the cumulative pretax income for the initial
performance period and the
percentage. The initial payment will be paid after January 20,
2013, but no later than March 15, 2013

pa

The participantdéds hol dback
product of (a) the lesser of cumulative pretax income of
Citicorp (Citigroup less Citi Holdings) for the initial
performance period and cumulative pretax income of Citicorp
for the initial perfamance period and the holdback period
combined, and (b) the partici

c | a wthaimtial payment; provided that the holdback payment may

not be less than zero. The holdback payment, if any, will be
paid Bffer Janoaryi20, 8044 Ind later thad Marah a5f 20B4. i n
The holdback payment, if any, will be credited with notional
interéstdaritg tlee aldbaek periodi It id imtanddd that thel
initial payment and holdback payment will be paid in cash;
however, awards may be paid in Citi comnsbock if

required by regulatory authority. Regulators have required that
U.K. participants receive 50% of their initial payment and

50% of their holdback payment, if any, in shares of Citi

common stock that will be subject to a-sronth sale

restriction.

i gln additpn to the vésting ang @erformance qoraditionsd s
described above, nonvested or undelivered KEPSP payments
are subject to forfeiture or reduction if a participant (a)

received a payment based on materially inaccurate financial
statements (includindput not limited to, statements of

earnings, revenues or gains) or any other materially inaccurate
performance metric criteria; (b) knowingly engaged in
providing inaccurate informat
knowingly failing to timely correct inacrate information)

relating to financial statements or performance metrics; or (c)
materially violated any risk limits established by senior
management and/or risk management, or any balance sheet or
working capital guidance provided by a business heal)or

is terminated on account of gross misconduct.

Independent risk function employees were not eligible to
participate in the KEPSP as the independent risk function
partiéiplatasnn thee geperminatiantof whethierqpayauts avitl tzk s
made under the KEPSP.

The Conpany recognized8 million of expense related
to all KEPSP plans for the three months ended March 31,
2011.

st

rticipantés applicabl e
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8. RETIREMENT BENEFIT S

The Company has several roontributory definedenefit
pension plans covering certain U.S. employees and has
variousdefinedbenefit pension and terminatiamlemnity

plans covering employees outside the United States. The U.S.
qualified definedbenefit plan provides benefits under a cash
balance formula. However, employees satisfying certain age
and service requirementemain covered by a prior final
average pay formula under that plan. Effective Januiary

2008, the U.S. qualified pension plan was frozen for most
employees. Accordingly, no additional compensatased
contributions were credited to the cdstianceportion of the

plan for existing plan participanéter 2007 However, certain
employees covered under the prior fipaly planformula

continue to accrue benefits. The Company also offers
postretirement health care and life insurance benefits to certain
eligible U.S. retired employees, as well as to certain eligible
employees outside the United States.

Net (Benefit) Expense

The following table summarizghe components of net
(benefit) expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Incomef or t he Co mpanandmenquilifi®. qua
pension plag postretirement plans and plans outside the
United States.

Three Months EndedMarch 31,

Pension plans

Postretirement benefit plans

U.S. plans

Non-U.S. plans

U.S. plans Non-U.S. plans

In millions of dollars 2011 2010 2011

2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Qualified Plans

Benefits earned during the year $ 4
Interest cost on benefit obligation 155
Expected return on plan assets (222)
Amortization of unrecognized

$ 4

(211)

Prior service cost (benefit) o} o} 1
Net actuarial loss 17 11 14
Curtailment loss d o) 3

$ 42
159 85
(94)

$ 41 $0 $ 0 $ 6 $ 6
84 15 14 26 26

(94) ) @ (25) (25

1 1) 3 5 3
3 1 5 5
3 5 3 5 3

Net qualified (benefit) expense $ (46) $ (37

$15 13 12 $ 12

Nongualified (benefit) expense $ 10 $ 11

$0 ) o

Total net (benefit) expense $ (36) $ (26)

Lad il R
zd d Kozl

$15 13 12

Contributions
Citigroupbés pension fundiSg
plans is generally to fund to applicable minimum funding

requirements rather than to the amounts of accumulated benefit

obligations. For the U.S. plans, the Company may increase its
contributions above the minimum requireghtribution under
Employee Retiremnt Income Security Act of 1974, as
amendedif appropriate to its tax and cash position and the

pl ansd f unFdrehé U.8.plans, &tiMarch.31, 2011,
there were no minimum required cash contributions and no
discretionary cash or nezash contribtions are currently
planned. For the neb.S. plans, the Company contributegB$
million during the first quarteof 2011 and expects to contribute
an additional $55million during the year. For the ndn.S.
postretirement plans, the Company expéotcontribute $71
million during 2011 These estimates are subject to change,

since contribution decisions are affected by various factors, such
as market performance and regulatory requirements. In addition,

management has the ability to change fungiolicy.

o5

policy f

or U. S. plans and non
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9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the income and share data used in the basic and diluted parsimy®(EPS)computations for
thethree monthendedMarch31:

In millions, except peshare amounts 2011 2010
Income from continuing operations before attribution of noncontrolling interests $3,031 $4,249
Noncontrolling interestfom continuing operations 72 32
Net incomefrom continuing operations (for EPS purposes) $2,959 $4,217
Income from discontinuedperations, net of taxes 40 211
Citigroupds net i ncome $2,999 $4,428
Preferred dividends (4 s}
Net income availableto common shareholders $2,995 $4,428
Dividendsand undistributed earningdlocated to participating securities (35 (28)
Net income allocated to common shareholders for basic EPS $2,960 $4,400
Effect of dilutive securities 1 s}
Net income allocated to common shareholders for diluted E¥ $2,961 $4,400
Weighted-average common shares outstanding applicable to basic EPS 29,043.5 284443
Effect of dilutive securities

TDECs 876.2 882.8

Options 24.7 o}

Other employee plans 20.7 5.7

Convertible securities 0.7 0.7
Adjusted weightedaverage common shares outstanding applicable to

diluted EPS 29965.8 29,333.5
Basic earnings per sharg
Income from continuing operations $ 0.10 $ 015
Discontinued operations o) 0.01
Net income $ 0.10 $ 0.15
Diluted earnings per sharé
Income from continuing operations $ 0.10 $ 014
Discontinued operations o) 0.01
Net income $ 0.10 $ 0.15

(1) Due to rounding, earnings per share on continuing operations and discontinued operations may not sum to earnings pet sttammen

During the first quarters of 2011 and 2QM@eighted
average options tpurchas@7.2 million and 395.&nillion
shares of common stock, respectively, were outstanding but not
included in the computation of earnings per common share,
because the weightealerage exercise prices df%20and
$11.64,respectively, were greatdran the average market price
of the Company6s common stock.
Warrants issued to the U.S. Treasury as part of the Troubled
Asset Relief Program (TARP) and the lksdgring agreement
(each of which were subsequently sold to the public in January
2011) with exercise prices of $17.85 and $10.61 for
approximately 210 million and 255 million shares of common
stock, respectively, were not included in the computation of
earnings per common sharetle first quarters of 2011 and
201Q becaus¢he exercise price was greater than the average
mar ket price of the Companyds common stock
In addition,performancebased equitawards of
approximatelys million shares were not included in tfiest
quarters of 2011 and 20Earnings peshare calculation,
because the performance targets under the terms of the awards
were not met.
Equity units convertible into approximated$ million
shares and 77 million shares of Citigroup common stock held
by the Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (ADIAyere not
included in the computation of earnings per common share in
the first quarters of 2011 and 2QX8spectively, because the
exercise price of $31.83 was greater than the average market
price of the Companyds common stock.
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10. TRADING ACCOUNT A SSETS AND LIABILITIE S

Trading account assetdTrading account liabilitiesat fair
valug consisted of the following at March 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010

March 31, December 31
In millions of dollars 2011% 2010
Trading account assets
Mortgagebacked securitiés
U.S. governmensponsored

agency guaranteed $ 28,906 $ 27,127
Prime 4,341 1,514
Alt-A 6,151 1,502
Subprime 1,847 2,036
Non-U.S. residential 968 1,052
Commercial 2,042 1,301
Total mortgagebackedsecurities $ 44,255 $ 34,532
U.S. Treasury and federal aggnc

securities

U.S. Treaswr $ 14,51 $ 20,168

Agency obligations 2,382 3,418
Total U.S. Treasury and fedeaglencies $ 16,873 $ 23,586
State and municipal securities $ 6,041 $ 7,493
Foreign government securities 88,902 88,311
Corporate 57,479 52,726
Derivatives® 47,145 50,213
Equity securities 37,831 37,436
Assetbacked securitiés 7555 7,759
Other debt securities 17,029 15,216
Total trading account assets $323,110  $317,2772
Trading account liabilities
Securities sold, not yet purchased $ 86,265 $ 69,324
Derivative$® 60,081 59,730
Total trading account liabilities $146,346 $129,054

(1) Includesthesecurities reclassified fronvestment$iTM to Trading
accountassetsSeeNote 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) The Company invests in mortgabacked securities and asbaicked
securities. Mortgage securitizations are generally considered VIEs. The
Companyds maxi mum exposiseqeltatte | oss from these VI Es
carrying amount of the securities, which is reflected in the table above. For
mortgagebacked and assbacked securitizations in which the Company
has other involvement, information is provided in Nbfdo the
Consolidated Financial Sehents.

(3) Presented net, pursuant to master netting agreements. Sek8ipthe
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion regarding the
accounting and reporting for derivatives.
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11. INVESTMENTS

Overview
March 31, December 31

In millions of dollars 2011 2010
Securities availablor-sale $294,917 $274,572
Debt securities hekb-maturity 15,484 29,107
Non-marketable equity securities carried at fair vaflie 9,064 6,602
Non-marketable equity securities carried at ¢8st 7,792 7,883
Total investments $327,257 $318,164

(1) Recorded at amortized cdess impairment on securities that have cregldted impairment

(2) Unrealized gains and losses for roarketable equity securities carried at fair value are recognized in earnings.

(3) Nornrmarketable equity securities carried at cost primarily consist of shares issued by the Federal Reserve Bank, Federal Blanke favaign central banks
and various claang houses of which Citigroup is a member.

Securities Availablefor-Sale
The amortized cost and fair value of securities availédisale(AFS) at March31, 2A1 and Decembed1, 2010were as follows:

March 31, 2011 December 31, 201(
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Amortized unrealized unrealized
In millions of dollars cost gains losses  Fair value cost gains losses Fair value
Debt securities AFS
Mortgagebacked securitiés
U.S. goernmentsponsored
agencyguaranteed $ 32,953 $ 360 $374 $32939 $ 23,433 $ 425 $ 235 $ 23,623
Prime 1,588 2 4 1,586 1,985 18 177 1,826
Alt-A 20 1 - 21 46 2 0 48
Subprime - - - - 119 1 1 119
Non-U.S. residential 300 1 - 301 315 1 4 316
Commercial 514 19 6 527 592 21 39 574
Total mortgagéhacked
securitie§) $ 35,375 $ 383 $ 384 $35374 $ 26,490 $ 468 $ 452 $ 26,506
U.S. Treasury and federal
agency securities
U.S. Treasury 56,02 201 71 56,182 58,069 435 56 58,448
Agency obligations 56,151 306 76 56,381 43,294 375 55 43,614
Total U.S. Treasury and federal
agency securities $112,203 $ 507 $ 147 $112,563 $101,363 $ 810 $ 111 $102,062
State and municipal 15,394 48 2,566 12,876 15,660 75 2,500 13,235
Foreign government 101,261 603 519 101,345 99,110 984 415 99,679
Corporate 15,571 305 49 15,827 15,910 319 59 16,170
Assetbacked securitiéd 9,333 47 39 9,341 9,085 31 68 9,048
Other debt securities 1,859 19 62 1,816 1,948 24 60 1,912
Total debt securitie8FS $290,996 $1,912 $3,766  $289,142 $269,566 $2,711 $3,665 $268,612
Marketable equity securitie®sFS $ 3590 $2,376 $ 191 $ 5775 $ 3,791 $2,380 $ 211 $ 5,960
Total securitiesAFS $294586 $4288 $3,957 $294,917 $273,357 $5,091 $3,876  $274,572

(1) The Company invests in mortgagacked and assbticked securities. These securitizations are generally considered VIEs. The Company's maximum exposure
to loss from these VIEs is equal to thergarg amount of the securities, which is reflected in the table above. For mebgeked and assbacked
securitizations in which the Company has other involvement, information is provided ia™Notthe Consolidated Financial Statements.

As discissed in more detail below, the Company conducts
and documents periodic reviews of all securities with
unrealized losses to evaluate whether the impairment is other
than temporary. Any creditlated impairment related to debt
securities the Company doestiplan to sell and is not likely
to be required to sell is recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Income, with the neneditrelated impairment
recognized inAOCI. For other impaired debt securities, the
entire impairment is recognized in the Coidated Statement
of Income.
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The table below shows the fair valueARS securities that have been in an unrealized loss position for less than 12 months or for

12 months olonger as of MarcB1, 2011 and December 31, 2010

Less than12 months 12 months or longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair unrealized Fair unrealized unrealized
In millions of dollars value losses value losses Fair value losses
March 31, 201
SecuritiesAFS
Mortgagebacked securities
U.S.governmenisponsored agenguaranteed $17,635 $338 $ 12 $ 36 $ 17647 $ 374
Prime 13 - 101 4 114 4
Alt-A 1 - 9 - 10 -
Subprime - - - - - -
Non-U.S. residential - - 68 - 68 -
Commercial 42 - 41 6 83 6
Total mortgagebacked securities $17,691 $338 $231 $ 46 $ 17922 $ 384
U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities
U.S. Treasury 21,939 34 711 37 22,650 71
Agency obligations 14,438 76 - - 14,438 76
Total U.S. Treasury anféderal agency securities $36,377 $110 $711 $ 37 $ 37,088 $ 147
State and municipal 41 2 11,023 2,564 11,064 2,566
Foreign government 41,169 343 10,521 176 51,690 519
Corporate 1,345 28 653 21 1,998 49
Assetbacked securities 2221 32 88 7 2,309 39
Other debt securities 11 - 574 62 585 62
Marketable equity securitigsFS 63 2 1,829 189 1,892 191
Total securitiesAFS $98918 $85 $25630 $3,1@ $124,548 $ 3,957
December 31, 2010
SecuritiesAFS
Mortgagebacked securities
U.S.governmenisponsored agenguaranteed $ 8,321 $ 214 % 38 $ 21 $ 8359 $ 235
Prime 89 3 1,506 174 1,595 177
Alt-A 10 o} o} o} 10 o}
Subprime 118 1 o} o} 118 1
NontU.S. residential o] o) 135 o] 135 o]
Commercial 81 9 53 30 134 39
Total mortgagebacked securities $ 8,619 $ 227 $ 1,732 $ 225 $ 10,351 $ 452
U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities
U.S. Treasury 9,229 21 725 35 9,954 56
Agency obligations 9,680 55 o) 0 9,680 55
Total U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities $18,909 $ 76 $ 725 $ 35 $ 19634 $ 111
State and municipal 626 60 11,322 2,440 11,948 2,500
Foreign government 32,731 271 6,609 144 39,340 415
Corporate 1,128 30 860 29 1,988 59
Assetbacked securities 2,533 64 14 4 2,547 68
Other debt securities o} o} 559 60 559 60
Marketable equity securities-S 68 3 2,039 208 2,107 211
Total securitiesAFS $64,614 $ 731 $23,860 $3,145 $ 88,474  $3,876
99

CITIGROUPT

2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@



The following tabé presents the amortized cost and fair value of debt secéii@by contractual maturity dates as of March
31,2011 and December 31, 2010

March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Amortized Amortized
In millions of dollars Cost Fair value cost Fairvalue
Mortgage-backed securities?
Due within 1 year $ o} $ o} $ o} $ o}
After 1 but within 5 years 309 311 403 375
After 5 but within 10 years 1,099 1,085 402 419
After 10 yeard? 33,967 33,978 25,685 25,712
Total $ 35375 $ 35,374 $ 26,490 $ 26,506
U.S. Treasury and federal agencies
Due within 1 year $ 29,747 $ 29,761 $ 36,411 $ 36,443
After 1 but within 5 years 69,572 69,898 52,558 53,118
After 5 but within 10 years 11,411 11,400 10,604 10,647
After 10 yeard? 1,473 1,504 1,790 1,854
Total $112,203 $112,563 $101,363 $102,062
State and municipal
Due within 1 year $ 11 $ 11 $ 9 $ 9
After 1 but within 5 years 174 176 145 149
After 5 but within 10 years 211 211 230 235
After 10 year$? 14,998 12,478 15,276 12,842
Total $ 15,394 $ 12,876 $ 15,660 $ 13,235
Foreign government
Due within 1 year $ 34,901 $ 34,879 $ 41,856 $ 41,387
After 1 but within 5 years 59,441 59,431 49,983 50,739
After 5 but within 10 years 6,088 6,103 6,143 6,264
After 10 years? 831 932 1,128 1,289
Total $101,261 $101,345 $ 99,110 $ 99,679
All other @
Due within 1 year $ 9,018 $ 8,978 $ 2,162 $ 2,164
After 1 but within 5 years 10277 10,285 17,838 17,947
After 5 but within 10 years 2,804 2,915 2,610 2,714
After 10 years? 4,664 4,806 4,333 4,305
Total $ 26,763 $ 26,984 $ 26,943 $ 27,130
Total debt securitiesAFS $290,996 $289,142 $269,566 $268,612

(1) Includes mortgageacled securities of U.S. federal agencies.
(2) Investments with no stated maturities are included as contractual maturities of greater than 10 years. Actual matdiffezsdimayo call or prepayment rights.
(3) Includes corporate, asdaacked and ber debt securities.

The following table presents interest and dividends on all The following table presents realized gains and losses on all
investments for the thremonth periods ended March 31, 2011 investments for the thremonth periods ended March 31, 2011
and 2010: and 2010.The gross realized investment losses exclude losses

from otherthantemporary impairment:
Three months ended

March 31, March 31 Three months ended
In millions of dollars 2011 2010 March 31, March 31
Taxable interest $2,166 $2,868 In millions of dollars 2011 2010
Interest exempt from U.S. federal Gross realized investment gains $ 680 $593
income tax 221 173 Gross realized investment los$es (100 (55
Dividends 69 68 Net realized gains $ 580 $538
Total interest and dividends $2,456 $3,109

(1) During the first quarter of 2010, the Company sold four corporate debt
securities that were classified as hdematurity. These sales were in
response to a significant deterioration in the creditworthineteo
issuers. The securities sold had a carrying value of $413 million, and the
Company recorded a realized loss of $49 million.
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Citigroup reclassified and sold the securities as part of its
overall efforts to mitigate its rislveightad assets (RWA) in
order to comply with significant new regulatory capital
requirements which, although not yet implemented or formally
adopted, are nonetheless currently being used to assess the
forecasted capital adequacy of the Company and other large
held-to-maturity toTrading account asset$he Companwglso U.S. banking organizations. These regulatory capital changes,
soldan additional2.7 billion of suctHTM securities which were largely unforeseen when the Company initially
recognizing a corresponding receivable from the unsettled salesreclassified the debt securities frdmading account assetnd
as of March 31, 2011As a result of these actions, a net pretax Investmentsvailablefor-sale tolnvestmentfieldto-maturity in
loss of $709 milon ($427 million after tax) was recognized in the fouth quarter of 2008 (see footnote 1 to the table
the Consolidated Statement of Income for the three months immediately below) include: (i) the U.S. Basel Il credit and
ended March 31, 2011, composed of gross unrealized gainsof oper at i onal ri sk capital stand
$311 million included irDther revenuggross unrealized losses  agreedupon, and the U.S. proposed, revisions to the market risk
of $1,387 million includedn Otherthantemporaryimpairment capital rules, whdh significantly increased the risk weightings
losses on investmentnd net realized gains of $367 million for certain trading book posi
included inRealized gains (losses) on sales of investments substantial issuance of Basel Ill, which raised the quantity and
Prior to the reclassification, unrealized losses totalling $1,656 quality of required regulatory capital and materially increased
million pretax ($J012 milli on after tax) had been reflected in RWA for securiization exposures; and (iv) certain regulatory
AOCI (see table below) and have now been reflected in the capitatrelated provisions in The Doedgrank Wall Street
Consolidated Statement of Inconas detailed above. Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010.

Debt Securities Heldto-Maturity

During the first quarter of 2011, the Compaitgtermined that it
no lorger hadhe intent to hold $12.7 billion of HTM securities
to maturity. As a result, the Company reclassifitdd.0billion
carrying value of mortgagleacked, other assbacked, state
and municipal, and corporate debt securities fhrovestments

The Company has the intent to sell the debt securities reclassifieddimg account asseis the neaterm.Through April29, 2011,
the Company has sof1.0.6billion of the$12.7 billion ofHTM securitiesThe carrying value and fair value of debt securities at the
date of reclassification or sale were as follows:

Net unrealized

loss
Amortized recognized in  Carrying Gross Gross Fair

In millions of dollars cost® AOCI value® gains losses value
Total held-to-maturity debt securities transferred

to Trading account assetsr sold®
Mortgagebacked securities

Prime $ 3,410 $ 528 $ 2,882 $ 131 $131 $ 2,882

Alt-A 5,357 896 4,461 605 1838 4,878

Subprime 240 7 233 5 36 202

NonU.S. residential 317 75 242 76 2 316

Commercial 117 18 99 22 - 121

Total mortgagebacked securities $ 9,441 $1,524 $ 7,917 $ 839 $357 $ 8,399
Stae and municipal 900 8 892 68 7 953
Corporate 3,569 115 3,454 396 41 3,809
Assetbacked securities 456 9 447 50 2 495
Total held-to-maturity debt securities transferred tc

Trading account assetsr sold® $14,366 $1,656 $12,710 $1,353 $407 $13,656

(1) During the fourth quarter of 20086 $47billion and $.063billion carrying value of these debt securities were transferred Trawling account assetnd
Investments availabifor-sale to Investments hetd-maturity, respectively. The transfer bese debt securities froffading account assetgas in response to
the significant deterioration in market conditions, which was especially acute during the fourth quarter of 2008.

(2) For securities transferred keldto-maturityfrom Trading accounassetsn 2008 amortized cost is defined as the fair value amount of the securities at the date of

transfer plus any accretion income and less any impairments recognized in earnings subsequent tootraesfeiti€s transferred to hetlokmaturity fom
availablefor-sale in 2008amortized cost is defined as the original purchase cost, plus or minus any accretion or amortazatisohafse discount or premium

less any impairment recognized in earnings

(3) Heldto-maturitysecurities are carriemh the Consolidated Balance Sheet at amortized cost and the changes in the value of these securities other than impairme

charges are not reportedthe financial statements.

101
CITIGROUPi 2011 FIRST QUARTER 1@
















































































































































































































































